
 

  
The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

AGENDA  
 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  

 
REGULAR MEETING 
December 11, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 
 
 

Board Conference Room 
1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 350 

Concord, California 
 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 
 

1.  Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2.  Accept comments from the public. 
 

3.  Approve minutes from the November 6 and November 20, 2019 meetings. 
 

4.  Routine items for December 11, 2019. 
 

a. Approve certifications of membership. 
b. Approve service and disability allowances. 
c. Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required. 
d. Approve death benefits. 
e. Accept asset allocation report. 
f. Accept liquidity report. 

 
CLOSED SESSION 
 

5.  The Board will go into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 to 
consider recommendations from the medical advisor and/or staff regarding the 
following disability retirement applications: 
 
Member Type Sought Recommendation 
a.  Margaret Freudenthal Service Connected Service Connected 

 



   

   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

6.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 to 
evaluate the performance of the following public employee:  
 
Title: Chief Executive Officer  
 

7.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 
54956.9(d)(1) to confer with legal counsel regarding pending litigation: 
 

a. Nowicki v. CCCERA, et al., Contra Costa County Superior Court, Case No. C17-
01266 

 
OPEN SESSION 
 

8.  Educational presentation on fiduciary duties presented by fiduciary counsel. 
 

9.  Educational presentation on Ralph M. Brown Act open meetings laws. 
 

10.  Legislative update. 

11.  Consider and take possible action to add CCCERA staffing: 
a. Add one Retirement Services Supervisor, one Retirement Services 

Technician, and establish an Internal Auditor classification; 
b. Amend Attachment A of Resolution 2019-2 providing salary and benefits for 

unrepresented employees of CCCERA effective January 1, 2020; and  
c. Adopt the CCCERA Position Pay Schedules effective January 1, 2020. 

 
12.  Consider and take possible action to adopt the 2020 CCCERA budget. 

13.  Presentation of 2020 Compliance Activity Plan. 
 

14.  Presentation of the Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture employer audit 
report. 
 

15.  Presentation of the Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff employer audit report. 

16.  Presentation of the Contra Costa County Probation Department employer audit 
report. 
 

17.  Report from Audit Committee Chair on November 20, 2019 Audit Committee 
meeting. 
 
 
 



   

   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

18.  Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 
a. 38th Annual Client Workshop, Sit Investment Associates, Inc., February 13-

16, 2020, Carlsbad, CA. 
b. The Pension Bridge Annual 2020, April 14-15, 2020, San Francisco, CA.  

 
19.  Miscellaneous 

a. Staff Report     
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 



 

 

 
 

MINUTES 
 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
November 6, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 
 

Board Conference Room 
1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 350 

Concord, California 
 

 
Present: Candace Andersen, Donald Finley, Louie Kroll, Jay Kwon, David MacDonald, John 

Phillips, Mike Sloan, Todd Smithey and Russell Watts 
 
Absent: Scott Gordon, Jerry Holcombe and William Pigeon 
 
Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive 

Officer; Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; 
Wrally Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Anne Sommers, Administrative/HR 
Manager; Henry Gudino, Accounting Manager; Tim Hoppe, Retirement Services 
Manager; and Jasmine Lee, Member Services Manager 

 
Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

Anne Harper  Cheiron 
William Hallmark  Cheiron 
Paul Angelo  Segal Consulting 
John Monroe  Segal Consulting 

 
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

The Board, staff and audience joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Accept comments from the public 

No member of the public offered comment. 

3. Approval of minutes 

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the October 9, 2019 Board meeting. (Yes: 
Andersen, Finley, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts). 

 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#3



Page 2 
November 6, 2019 

 

 

4. Routine Items 

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the November 6, 2019 meeting. (Yes:  
Andersen, Finley, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts) 

CLOSED SESSION 
The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 and 54956.9(d)(1). 
 

The Board moved into open session. 
5. It was M/S/C to accept the Medical Advisor’s recommendation and grant the following 

disability benefits: 

a. Neal Bassett – Non-Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, 
Phillips, Smithey and Watts) 

b. Tracy Kenney – Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, 
Phillips, Smithey and Watts) 

c. Alex Ray – Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, 
Smithey and Watts) 
 

6. There was no reportable action related to CCCERA v. Salgado, Contra Costa County Superior 
Court, Case No. MSC19-00580.   

7. Presentation of the Actuarial Audit Report by Cheiron 

Bill Hallmark, Anne Harper  
 
Hallmark reported the liabilities and costs computed in the valuation provided by Segal as of 
December 31, 2018 are materially accurate and were computed in accordance with generally 
accepted actuarial principles. He stated the valuation is reasonable and can be relied on by 
the Board. 
 
Harper reported on recommended methodology changes for future valuation reports. 
 
Angelo stated Segal will make many of the recommended changes. 
 

8. Consider and take possible action concerning the SACRS legislative proposals to be voted 
on at the November 2019 SACRS Conference 

Levy reviewed the SACRS legislative proposals to be voted on at the SACRS 2019 Fall 
Conference. 

After a discussion, it was M/S/C to direct the CCCERA Board voting delegate to vote in 
support of the two legislative proposals at the November 2019 SACRS Fall Conference with 
direction to recommend to the Legislative Committee that they add a $5,000 cap on the 
lump-sum minimum age distributions; Timing and Lump-Sum Options proposal. (Yes: 
Andersen, Finley, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts)   

 



Page 3 
November 6, 2019 

 

 

9. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of all Board members at the General 
Assembly, CALAPRS, March 7-10, 2020, Rancho Mirage, CA. (Yes: Andersen, Finley, 
Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts) 

b. There was no action taken on this item. Advanced Principles of Pension Management 
for Trustees, CALAPRS, March 30-April 1, 2020, Los Angeles, CA.  

 
10. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report – 
 

Strohl reported some of the annual Benefit Statements had errors. 
 

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -    
 

None 
 

(c) Trustees’ comments – 
 

Kwon reported on the CALAPRS Trustees’ Roundtable he attended. 
 

 
It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, 
Smithey and Watts) 
 
 
 
 
             
Todd Smithey, Chairman    David MacDonald, Secretary 
 
 



 

 

 
 

MINUTES 
 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
November 20, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 
 

Board Conference Room 
1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 350 

Concord, California 
 

 
Present: Candace Andersen, Scott Gordon, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Jay Kwon, David 

MacDonald, John Phillips, Mike Sloan, Todd Smithey and Russell Watts 
 
Absent: Donald Finley and William Pigeon 
 
Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive 

Officer; Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; 
Wrally Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; and Henry Gudino, Accounting Manager 

 
Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

Eileen Neill  Verus Investments 
 
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

The Board, staff and audience joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Accept comments from the public 

No member of the public offered comment. 

3. Approval of minutes 

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the October 23, 2019 Board meeting. (Yes: 
Andersen, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts). 

4. Review of total portfolio performance for period ending September 30, 2019 

a. Presentation from Verus 
 
Neill reviewed CCCERA’s investment fund performance for the period ending 
September 30, 2019.  

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#3



Page 2 
November 20, 2019 

 

 

 
b. Presentation from staff 

 
Price reviewed CCCERA’s sub-portfolios noting all of them are meeting expectations 
except for achieving positive real returns in the Risk Diversifying sub-portfolio.  
 

5. Update from StepStone Group on private equity – Tom Keck and Natalie Walker 

Keck gave a brief overview of the firm and the private equity market. 

Walker reviewed the private equity investment objectives for CCCERA, their investment 
process, CCCERA commitments during 2019, and priorities for 2020. She also reviewed 
CCCERA’s performance from inception to June 30, 2019. 

6. Update from StepStone Group on private credit implementation – Urs von Buren and 
Ariel Goldblatt 

Buren provided an update on the private debt market.  He also reviewed CCCERA’s private 
debt investment objectives, CCCERA’s commitments to date, and the investment process. 
 

Andersen was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting.  
 
Goldblatt reviewed the outlook for 2020, an activity report, and CCCERA’s performance 
through June 30, 2019. 

 
7. Presentation of the alternate investment fees and expense report 

Garbharran presented the alternate investment fees and expense report for the 2018 
calendar year. 

 
8. Consider and take possible action on Board meeting schedule for 2020 

It was M/S/C to adopt the Board meeting schedule for 2020. (Yes: Gordon, Holcombe, 
Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts) 

9. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 Board member at the 2020 Legislative 
Conference, National Conference on Public Employee Retirement Systems, January 
26-28, 2020, Washington, DC. (Yes: Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, 
Phillips, Smithey and Watts). 

b. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 2 Board members at the Commonfund 
Forum 2020, March 8-10, 2020, Orlando, Fl. (Yes: Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, Kwon, 
MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts). 

10. Miscellaneous 



Page 3 
November 20, 2019 

 

 

(a) Staff Report – 
 
Strohl provided an update to the East Contra Costa Fire Protection District’s (ECCFPD) 
request from the July 24, 2019 Board meeting.  She reported Segal is working on 
responses and they should have something for the Board at the beginning of next 
year.  

 
(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -    

 
None 

 
(c) Trustees’ comments – 

 
Phillips reported on the key points he took away from the SACRS 2019 Fall 
Conference. 
 
Gordon reported on the Torchlight 2019 Annual Investment Conference he recently 
attended with Garbharran noting it was an excellent conference. 
 
MacDonald reported on the 17th Annual Global Arc Conference he attended with 
Price and encouraged Board members to attend next year.  He also commented on 
the SACRS 2019 Fall Conference. 

 
Smithey reported there is an Audit Committee meeting following this meeting. 

 
 
It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, 
Phillips, Smithey and Watts) 
 
 
 
             
Todd Smithey, Chairman    David MacDonald, Secretary 
 



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#4





sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#4











Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association

Asset Allocation as of October 31, 2019

Market Percentage Current Target Current Target Long Term Long Term

Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight CCCERA - INSIGHT SHORT1,006,054,108 10.9% 12.0% -1.1%

Sit CCCERA - SIT SHORT DURATION541,886,884 5.9% 6.0% -0.1%

Dimensional Fund Advisors CCCERA - DFA488,896,723 5.3% 6.0% -0.7%

Total Liquidity 2,036,837,715           22.2% 24.0% -1.8% 24.0% -1.8%

Growth

Domestic Equity

Boston Partners CCCERA - ROBECO236,115,626 2.6% 2.5% 0.1%

Jackson Square CCCERA - JACKSON SQUARE234,255,929 2.5% 2.5% 0.0%

BlackRock Index Fund CCCERA-BLACKROCK RUSSELL191,620,628 2.1% 2.0% 0.1%

Emerald Advisors CCCERA - EMERALD149,287,044 1.6% 1.5% 0.1%

Ceredex CCCERA - CEREDEX157,127,355 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%

Total Domestic Equity 968,406,581 10.5% 10.0% 0.5% 5.0% 5.5%

Global & International Equity

Pyrford (BMO) CCCERA-BMO PYRFORD465,177,996 5.1% 5.0% 0.1%

William Blair CCCERA-WILLIAM BLAIR468,584,706 5.1% 5.0% 0.1%

First Eagle CCCERA - FIRST EAGLE376,641,145 4.1% 4.0% 0.1%

Artisan Global Opportunities CCCERA-ARTISAN PARTNERS377,375,831 4.1% 4.0% 0.1%

PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets CCCERA-PIMCO RAE EM345,079,050 3.8% 4.0% -0.2%

TT Emerging Markets CCCERA-TT EM328,452,139 3.6% 4.0% -0.4%

Total Global & International Equity 2,361,310,868 25.7% 26.0% -0.3% 24.0% 1.7%

Private Equity 1,025,369,544 11.2% 11.0% 0.2% 11.0% 0.2%

Private Credit 516,827,536 5.6% 5.0% 0.6% 12.0% -6.4%

Real Estate - Value Add 171,662,851 1.9% 4.0% -2.1% 4.0% -2.1%

Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 488,242,895 5.3% 4.0% 1.3% 4.0% 1.3%

Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) CCCERA - ADELANTE CAPITAL81,683,051 0.9% 1.0% -0.1% 1.0% -0.1%

High Yield (Allianz) CCCERA - ALLIANZ GLOBAL204,522,080 2.2% 2.0% 0.2% 0.0% 2.2%

Risk Parity 5.0% -0.1% 5.0% -0.1%

AQR GRP EL CCCERA-AQR230,760,428 2.5%

PanAgora CCCERA-PANAGORA223,825,924 2.4%

Total Other Growth Assets 2,942,894,309 32.0% 32.0% 0.0% 37.0% -5.0%

Total Growth Assets 6,272,611,758 68.2% 68.0% 0.2% 66.0% 2.2%

Risk Diversifying 

AFL-CIO CCCERA-AFL CIO337,664,322 3.7% 3.5% 0.2% 3.0% 0.7%

Parametric Defensive Equity CCCERA - PARAMETRIC DEFENSE204,997,213 2.2% 2.5% -0.3% 3.5% -1.3%

Wellington Real Total Return CCCERA-WELLINGTON188,393,363 2.0% 2.0% 0.0% 3.5% -1.5%

Total Risk Diversifying 731,054,898 8.0% 8.0% -0.0% 10.0% -2.0%

Cash and Overlay

Overlay (Parametric) CCCERA-Parametric Overlay30,794,075 0.3% 0.3%

Cash CCCERA-CASH119,713,758 1.3% 1.3%

Total Cash and Overlay 150,507,833 1.6% 0.0% 1.6% 0.0% 1.6%

Total Fund 9,191,012,204.27      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Current targets and ranges reflect asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 26, 2019 (BOR Resolution 2019-4)

0% - 10%

Range

16% - 28%

Range

60% - 80%

Range

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#4



P
ri

va
te

 M
ar

ke
t 

In
ve

st
m

e
n

ts

A
s 

o
f 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

3
1

, 2
0

1
9

  
 

 
 

 

R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 -
 V

al
u

e 
A

d
d

In
ce

p
ti

o
n

Ta
rg

et
# 

o
f

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
N

e
w

 T
ar

ge
t

Fu
n

d
in

g
M

ar
ke

t
%

 o
f

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

D
at

e
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Ex

te
n

si
o

n
b

y 
G

P
/L

P
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t
V

al
u

e
To

ta
l A

ss
e

t
C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t

In
ve

sc
o

 IR
EF

 II
05

/3
0/

07
12

/3
1

/1
5

in
 f

u
ll 

liq
.

8
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
1

,8
58

0.
00

%

In
ve

sc
o

 IR
EF

 II
I

08
/0

1/
13

08
/0

1
/2

0
3

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

,4
1

1
,5

98
0.

04
%

In
ve

sc
o

 IR
EF

 IV
12

/0
1/

14
12

/0
1

/2
1

3
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
1

,5
7

8
,0

03
0.

23
%

5,
19

1,
26

1 

In
ve

sc
o

 IR
EF

 V
09

/1
1/

18
09

/1
1

/2
5

7
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
2

,9
7

3
,1

20
0.

25
%

52
,4

82
,9

55
 

Lo
n

g 
W

h
ar

f 
FR

EG
 IV

08
/1

4/
13

09
/3

0
/2

1
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
7

,5
2

9
,4

10
0.

08
%

Lo
n

g 
W

h
ar

f 
FR

EG
 V

10
/3

1/
16

09
/3

0
/2

4
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

4
,0

6
6

,4
32

0.
48

%

La
Sa

lle
 In

co
m

e 
&

 G
ro

w
th

 F
u

n
d

 V
I

01
/3

1/
12

01
/3

1
/1

9
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

5
,2

2
8

,1
75

0.
27

%
3,

94
6,

00
0 

La
Sa

lle
 In

co
m

e 
&

 G
ro

w
th

 F
u

n
d

 V
II

10
/3

1/
16

09
/3

0
/2

4
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

6
,8

6
4

,2
55

0.
51

%
20

,8
36

,6
46

 

5
8

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

7
1

,6
6

2
,8

5
1

1.
8

7%
8

2
,4

5
6

,8
6

2
 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g 

C
o

m
m

it
m

en
ts

8
2

,4
5

6
,8

6
2

 

To
ta

l
2

5
4

,1
1

9
,7

1
3

R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 -
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

is
ti

c 
&

 D
is

tr
e

ss
ed

In
ce

p
ti

o
n

Ta
rg

et
# 

o
f

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
N

e
w

 T
ar

ge
t

Fu
n

d
in

g
M

ar
ke

t
%

 o
f

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

D
at

e
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Ex

te
n

si
o

n
b

y 
G

P
/L

P
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t
V

al
u

e
To

ta
l A

ss
e

t
C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t

D
LJ

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s,
 L

.P
. I

II
06

/3
0/

05
06

/3
0

/1
4

in
 f

u
ll 

liq
.

7
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
1

,2
9

9
,1

06
0.

23
%

4,
03

1,
33

8

D
LJ

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s,
 L

.P
. I

V
12

/3
1/

07
09

/3
0

/1
8

1
0

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
8

0
,3

7
9

,9
65

0.
87

%
2,

89
0,

80
9

D
LJ

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s,
 L

.P
. V

07
/3

1/
13

12
/3

1
/2

2
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
5

1
,5

6
2

,9
89

0.
56

%
15

,6
35

,8
16

D
LJ

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s,
 L

.P
. V

I
02

/2
8/

19
01

/3
1

/2
9

5
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
8

,8
2

7
,1

36
0.

31
%

20
,3

86
,9

99

O
ak

tr
ee

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

Fu
n

d
 V

02
/0

1/
11

02
/0

1
/2

1
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

,7
1

3
,2

71
0.

05
%

25
,7

50
,0

00
 

O
ak

tr
ee

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

Fu
n

d
 V

I
09

/3
0/

13
09

/3
0

/2
0

8
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
1

,0
4

0
,6

02
0.

34
%

18
,4

00
,0

00
 

O
ak

tr
ee

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

Fu
n

d
 V

II
02

/2
8/

15
02

/2
8

/2
3

6
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

5
6

,9
2

3
,6

91
0.

62
%

18
,7

20
,0

00
 

Si
gu

le
r 

G
u

ff
 D

is
tr

es
se

d
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
O

p
p

. F
u

n
d

07
/3

0/
11

07
/3

0
/2

2
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

2
,8

5
3

,9
26

0.
36

%
5,

62
5,

00
0 

Si
gu

le
r 

G
u

ff
 D

is
tr

es
se

d
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
O

p
p

. F
u

n
d

 II
08

/3
1/

13
08

/3
1

/2
5

7
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

4
8

,8
1

1
,9

70
0.

53
%

8,
01

5,
00

0 

Si
gu

le
r 

G
u

ff
 D

is
tr

es
se

d
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
O

p
p

. I
I C

o
-I

n
v

01
/3

1/
16

10
/3

1
/2

5
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

0
,3

6
6

,4
95

0.
22

%
4,

46
2,

13
8 

P
au

ls
o

n
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
Fu

n
d

 II
11

/1
0/

13
11

/1
0

/2
0

2
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
5

,5
0

3
,0

76
0.

28
%

65
4,

37
7 

A
n

ge
lo

 G
o

rd
o

n
 R

ea
lt

y 
Fu

n
d

 V
III

12
/3

1/
11

12
/3

1
/1

8
8

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

2
,3

5
9

,1
54

0.
24

%
12

,3
34

,3
02

 

A
n

ge
lo

 G
o

rd
o

n
 R

ea
lt

y 
Fu

n
d

 IX
10

/1
0/

14
10

/1
0

/2
2

6
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

6
3

,6
0

1
,5

14
0.

69
%

12
,1

22
,5

00
 

8
3

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

8
8

,2
4

2
,8

9
5

5.
3

1%
1

4
9

,0
2

8
,2

7
9

 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g 

C
o

m
m

it
m

en
ts

1
4

9
,0

2
8

,2
7

9
 

To
ta

l
6

3
7

,2
7

1
,1

7
4

P
R

IV
A

TE
 C

R
ED

IT
In

ce
p

ti
o

n
Ta

rg
et

# 
o

f
D

is
cr

e
ti

o
n

N
e

w
 T

ar
ge

t
Fu

n
d

in
g

M
ar

ke
t

%
 o

f
O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g

D
at

e
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Ex

te
n

si
o

n
b

y 
G

P
/L

P
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t
V

al
u

e
To

ta
l A

ss
e

t
C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t

To
rc

h
lig

h
t 

D
eb

t 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

Fu
n

d
 II

I
09

/3
0/

08
06

/3
0

/1
6

2
n

d
 1

 Y
R

LP
0

6
/3

0
/1

8
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

0.
00

%
0

To
rc

h
lig

h
t 

D
eb

t 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

Fu
n

d
 IV

08
/0

1/
12

08
/3

0
/2

0
6

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

1
,2

3
6

,6
54

0.
12

%
0

To
rc

h
lig

h
t 

D
eb

t 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

Fu
n

d
 V

12
/3

1/
14

09
/1

7
/2

2
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

2
,1

8
5

,8
71

0.
35

%
15

,0
00

,0
00

A
n

ge
lo

 G
o

rd
o

n
 E

n
er

gy
 C

re
d

it
 O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
09

/1
0/

15
09

/1
0

/2
0

1
6

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

4
,2

9
2

,1
37

0.
05

%
2,

31
9,

78
3

C
C

C
ER

A
 S

te
p

St
o

n
e

12
/0

1/
17

11
/3

0
/2

7
9

2
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

4
6

9
,1

1
2

,8
74

5.
10

%
47

6,
81

1,
09

9 

1
,2

7
4

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

5
1

6
,8

2
7

,5
3

6
5.

6
2%

4
9

4
,1

3
0

,8
8

2

 
O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g 
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

ts
4

9
4

,1
3

0
,8

8
2

To
ta

l
1

,0
1

0
,9

5
8

,4
1

8



P
ri

va
te

 M
ar

ke
t 

In
ve

st
m

e
n

ts

A
s 

o
f 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

3
1

, 2
0

1
9

P
R

IV
A

TE
 E

Q
U

IT
Y

In
ce

p
ti

o
n

Ta
rg

et
# 

o
f

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
N

e
w

 T
ar

ge
t

Fu
n

d
in

g
M

ar
ke

t
%

 o
f

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

D
at

e
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Ex

te
n

si
o

n
b

y 
G

P
/L

P
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t
V

al
u

e
To

ta
l A

ss
e

t
C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t

A
d

am
s 

St
re

e
t 

P
ar

tn
er

s
12

/2
2/

95
1

2/
22

/2
5

2
6

9
,5

6
5

,6
1

4
1

5
2

,2
5

5
,6

23
1.

66
%

26
,2

05
,0

80
 

A
d

am
s 

St
re

e
t 

Se
co

n
d

ar
y 

II
12

/3
1/

08
1

2/
31

/2
0

3
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

6
,8

9
5

,3
57

0.
08

%
1,

63
5,

00
0 

A
d

am
s 

St
re

e
t 

Se
co

n
d

ar
y 

V
10

/3
1/

12
1

0/
31

/2
2

4
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

   
   

   
   

 
2

0
,9

0
4

,5
94

0.
23

%
9,

38
8,

10
0 

A
d

am
s 

St
re

e
t 

V
en

tu
re

 In
n

o
va

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
03

/0
9/

16
0

3/
09

/2
8

7
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

5
1

,2
5

0
,0

10
0.

56
%

29
,5

87
,5

00
 

A
E 

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s 
Fu

n
d

 II
05

/1
8/

18
0

5/
18

/2
8

3
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

4
,4

7
1

,7
62

0.
05

%
29

,8
96

,3
16

 

B
ay

 A
re

a 
Eq

u
it

y 
Fu

n
d

06
/1

4/
04

1
2/

31
/1

4
2

n
d

 2
 Y

R
LP

1
2

/3
1

/2
0

1
7

1
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,4

0
7

,5
45

0.
03

%
0

B
ay

 A
re

a 
Eq

u
it

y 
Fu

n
d

 II
2

/2
9/

09
1

2/
31

/1
9

1
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
2

,3
4

6
,5

71
0.

13
%

0

C
ar

p
en

te
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

B
an

cF
u

n
d

10
/3

1/
09

1
0/

31
/1

9
3

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

0.
00

%
0

EI
F 

U
SP

F 
II

06
/1

5/
05

0
6/

15
/1

5
3

rd
 1

 Y
R

LP
0

6
/1

5
/1

8
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
6

,6
6

5
,5

95
0.

07
%

0

EI
F 

U
SP

F 
III

02
/2

8/
07

0
2/

28
/1

7
1

st
 1

 Y
R

LP
0

2
/2

8
/1

8
6

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

6
,7

3
6

,9
68

0.
18

%
0

EI
F 

U
SP

F 
IV

06
/2

8/
10

0
6/

28
/2

0
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

7
,3

2
6

,5
20

0.
51

%
4

A
re

s 
EI

F 
V

09
/0

9/
15

1
1/

19
/2

5
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

1
,7

0
2

,9
13

0.
45

%
9,

56
6,

32
8 

G
en

st
ar

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s 
IX

, L
.P

.
02

/2
1/

19
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
6

,9
8

2
,9

67
42

,5
36

,2
91

 

O
ak

tr
ee

 P
ri

va
te

 In
ve

st
m

en
t 

Fu
n

d
 2

00
9

02
/2

8/
10

1
2/

15
/1

9
4

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

3
,2

66
0.

02
%

6,
30

8,
96

1

O
ce

an
 A

ve
n

u
e 

Fu
n

d
 II

05
/0

7/
14

0
5/

07
/2

4
3

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

9
,9

5
9

,8
08

0.
33

%
3,

90
0,

00
0

O
ce

an
 A

ve
n

u
e 

Fu
n

d
 II

I
12

/0
9/

15
1

2/
09

/2
5

5
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

5
1

,6
5

5
,3

72
0.

56
%

6,
50

0,
00

0

P
al

ad
in

 II
I

08
/1

5/
08

0
8/

15
/1

8
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

2
,7

5
4

,1
67

0.
36

%
25

6,
98

3

P
at

h
w

ay
11

/0
9/

98
0

5/
31

/2
1

1
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

5
,5

7
8

,6
47

0.
17

%
10

,9
21

,4
35

 
N

o
ga

le
s 

In
ve

st
m

en
t

02
/1

5/
04

0
2/

15
/1

4
so

ld
 la

st
 in

v.
1

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

P
at

h
w

ay
 2

00
8

12
/2

6/
08

1
2/

26
/2

3
3

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

9
,4

4
0

,5
33

0.
21

%
3,

27
9,

61
3 

P
at

h
w

ay
 6

05
/2

4/
11

0
5/

24
/2

6
4

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

6
,2

9
8

,6
55

0.
39

%
4,

28
7,

76
0 

P
at

h
w

ay
 7

02
/0

7/
13

0
2/

07
/2

3
7

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
6

9
,7

6
0

,4
40

0.
76

%
8,

76
9,

96
2 

P
at

h
w

ay
 8

11
/2

3/
15

1
1/

23
/2

5
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

5
,7

0
5

,1
94

0.
50

%
15

,1
99

,6
31

 

Si
gu

le
r 

G
u

ff
 C

C
C

ER
A

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

06
/0

3/
14

0
5/

31
/2

5
2

0
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
6

8
,0

2
2

,3
47

1.
83

%
60

,2
24

,7
72

 

Si
gu

le
r 

G
u

ff
 S

ec
o

n
d

ar
y 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

12
/3

1/
16

1
2/

31
/2

6
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

6
9

,0
34

0.
00

%
46

,3
94

,8
13

 

Si
ri

s 
P

ar
tn

er
s 

IV
05

/1
8/

18
0

5/
18

/2
8

3
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

,3
3

3
,8

94
0.

11
%

24
,3

27
,0

36
 

TP
G

 H
e

al
th

ca
re

 P
ar

tn
er

s,
 L

.P
.

06
/2

8/
19

2
4

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
23

,8
86

,9
12

 

Tr
id

en
t 

V
III

, L
.P

.
05

/2
4/

19
4

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

40
,0

00
,0

00
 

R
e

al
 A

ss
et

s

A
et

h
er

 II
I &

 II
I S

u
rp

lu
s

11
/3

0/
13

1
1/

30
/2

0
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
7

1
,0

6
3

,7
05

0.
77

%
7,

22
4,

09
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

A
et

h
er

 IV
01

/0
1/

16
0

1/
01

/2
8

5
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

4
0

,9
6

2
,3

82
0.

45
%

15
,1

87
,3

89
   

   
   

   
  

C
o

m
m

o
n

fu
n

d
 C

ap
it

al
 N

at
u

ra
l R

es
o

u
rc

es
 IX

06
/3

0/
13

0
6/

30
/2

0
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

3
,7

7
1

,6
73

0.
48

%
6,

67
5,

00
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
Fu

n
d

12
/3

1/
15

1
1/

30
/2

2
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

7
,9

4
4

,0
02

0.
20

%
4,

35
3,

02
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
,8

1
8

,5
6

5
,6

1
4

1
,0

2
5

,3
6

9
,5

4
4

12
.7

4%
4

3
6

,5
1

2
,0

0
6

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g 

C
o

m
m

it
m

en
ts

4
3

6
,5

1
2

,0
0

6

To
ta

l
1

,4
6

1
,8

8
1

,5
5

0

M
ar

ke
t 

va
lu

e 
eq

u
al

s 
th

e 
m

o
st

 r
ec

en
t 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 n

et
 a

ss
et

 v
al

u
e,

 p
lu

s 
ca

p
it

al
 c

al
ls

 a
ft

er
 n

et
 a

ss
et

 v
al

u
e 

d
at

e,
 le

ss
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

af
te

r 
n

et
 a

ss
et

 v
al

u
e 

d
at

e.

Th
e 

Ta
rg

et
 T

er
m

in
at

io
n

 c
o

lu
m

n
 is

 t
h

e 
b

eg
in

n
in

g 
o

f 
liq

u
id

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
fu

n
d

, h
o

w
ev

er
, s

o
m

e 
fu

n
d

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
ex

te
n

d
ed

 f
o

r 
an

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 t

w
o

 o
r 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s.

 

 



Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association 

Liquidity Report – October 2019 

October 2019 Performance 

Cash Flow Coverage Ratio 

Benefit Cash Flow Projected by Model $42,000,000 

Liquidity Sub-Portfolio Cash Flow $42,000,000 100% 

Actual Benefits Paid $40,742,399 103% 

Next Month’s Projected Benefit Payment $42,500,000 

Monthly Manager Positioning – October 2019 

 Beginning  
Market Value 

Liquidity Program 
Cash Flow 

Market Value 
Change/Other 

Activity 

Ending 
Market Value 

Sit $542,662,117 ($1,250,000) $474,768 $541,886,884 

DFA $501,752,961 ($14,500,000) $1,643,763 $488,896,723 

Insight $1,028,461,532 ($26,250,000) $3,842,575 $1,006,054,108 

Liquidity $2,072,876,610 ($42,000,000) $5,961,105 $2,036,837,715 

Cash $96,443,107 $1,257,601 $22,013,049 $119,713,758 

Liquidity + Cash $2,169,319,717 ($40,742,399) $27,974,154 $2,156,551,473 

Functional Roles 

Manager Portfolio Characteristics Liquidity Contribution 
Sit High quality portfolio of small balance, 

government guaranteed mortgages 
with higher yields. 

Pays out net income on monthly basis.  

DFA High quality, short duration portfolio of 
liquid, low volatility characteristics. 

Pays out a pre-determined monthly amount.  DFA 
sources liquidity from across their portfolio. 

Insight Buy and maintain (limited trading) 
portfolio of high quality, short duration, 
primarily corporates. 

Completion portfolio makes a payment through net 
income and bond maturities that bridges the gap 
between other managers and projected payment. 

Cash STIF account at custodial bank. Buffer in the event of any Liquidity shortfall/excess. 

Notes 
The tenth cash flow for 2019 from the liquidity program was completed on October 23rd.  The actuarial model cash 
flow was slightly higher than actual experience, producing $1,258 thousand more than the actual benefits paid.  

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#4



 
 

2 
 

Cash Flow Structure 

The chart below shows the sources of cash flow for the next several years of CCCERA’s projected benefit payments.  

This table will change slightly as the model is tweaked and as the portfolios receive new rounds of funding each 

August as part of the Annual Funding Plan. 

 

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

35,000,000

40,000,000

45,000,000

50,000,000

Dollar Investment by Cashflow Period - Current & Future Investments

Sit Contribution DFA Contribution
PV of Principal Maturities PV of Coupon Payments
Growth of Current Insight Investments  Investment Growth (to be sourced)
Future Contributions and Investment Growth



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#8











sshedd
Text Box



sshedd
Text Box



sshedd
Text Box



sshedd
Text Box



sshedd
Text Box



sshedd
Text Box



sshedd
Text Box

























A
N

N
U

A
L 

FI
D

U
C

IA
R

Y 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 

B
o

ar
d

 o
f 

R
et

ir
em

en
t

C
o

n
tr

a 
C

o
st

a 
C

o
u

n
ty

 
Em

p
lo

ye
es

’ R
et

ir
em

en
t 

A
ss

o
ci

at
io

n

D
ec

em
b

er
 1

1
, 2

0
1

9

H
ar

ve
y 

L.
 L

ei
d

er
m

an
R

ee
d

 S
m

it
h

LL
P



R
e

e
d

 S
m

it
h

W
H

A
T
 I
S
 A

 F
ID

U
C

IA
R

Y
?

➢
S
o

m
e
b

o
d

y
 e

n
tr

u
st

e
d

 t
o

 m
a
n

a
g

e
 t

h
e
 a

ss
e
ts

 o
f 

o
th

e
rs

 

w
it

h
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 s
in

g
u

la
r 

d
e
v
o

ti
o

n

➢
A

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

tr
u

st
 a

n
d

 r
e
li
a
n

ce
 t

o
 a

ct
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

o
th

e
rs

 i
n

 a
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
u

ln
e
ra

b
il
it

y

➢
A

 r
o

le
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
st

 l
e
g

a
l 
d

u
ti

e
s 

im
p

o
se

d
 o

n
 i
t

➢
A

 r
e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 s

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 t
o

rt
 l
a
w

, 
n

o
t 

co
n

tr
a
ct

 l
a
w

2



W
H

Y
 A

R
E
 T

H
E
R

E
 F

ID
U

C
IA

R
Y

 R
U

L
E
S

A
N

Y
W

A
Y

? 

To
 o

v
e
rc

o
m

e
 h

u
m

a
n

 n
a
tu

re
: 
 L

o
o

k
in

g
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

o
u

r 
o

w
n

 
in

te
re

st
s,

 n
o

t 
th

e
 i
n

te
re

st
s 

o
f 

o
th

e
rs

•
D

o
in

g
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g

 t
o

 a
d

va
n

ta
g

e
 o

u
rs

e
lv

e
s 

o
r 

o
th

e
rs

 w
e
 l
ik

e

•
D

o
in

g
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g

 t
o

 d
is

a
d

va
n

ta
g

e
 o

th
e
rs

 w
e
 d

o
n

’t
 l
ik

e

•
A

ct
in

g
 o

n
 o

u
r 

k
n

o
w

n
 a

n
d

 u
n

k
n

o
w

n
 b

ia
se

s 
w

h
e
n

 d
e
ci

d
in

g

•
G

o
in

g
 a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 g

ro
u

p
 t

o
 a

v
o

id
 c

o
n

tr
o

v
e
rs

y

•
B

o
w

in
g

 t
o

 p
re

ss
u

re
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

d
o

n
’t

 s
h

a
re

 o
u

r 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
il
it

y

•
M

a
k
in

g
 s

n
a
p

 j
u

d
g

m
e
n

ts

•
E
a
si

e
r 

sp
e
n

d
in

g
 o

th
e
rs

’ 
m

o
n

e
y,

 e
sp

e
ci

a
ll
y
 w

h
e
n

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 l
o

t 
o

f 
it

•
R

a
ti

o
n

a
li
zi

n
g

 a
ct

io
n

s 
w

e
 k

n
o

w
 a

re
 w

ro
n

g

•
M

a
k
in

g
 “

b
a
ck

-d
o

o
r”

 d
e
a
ls

3



R
e

e
d

 S
m

it
h

FI
V

E 
FU

N
D

A
M

EN
TA

L 
FI

D
U

C
IA

R
Y 

D
U

TI
ES

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
1
.

D
u

ty
 o

f 
L
o

y
a
lt

y.
  
Yo

u
 o

w
e
 y

o
u

r 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 d
u

ty
 t

o
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 

b
e
n

e
fi

ci
a
ri

e
s 

o
f 

th
e
 t

ru
st

. 
 A

ll
 o

th
e
r 

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
a
re

 s
u

b
o

rd
in

a
te

d
.

2
.

E
xc

lu
si

v
e
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
R

u
le

. 
 T

h
e
 a

ss
e
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 t

ru
st

 m
a
y
 b

e
 u

se
d

 o
n

ly
 

to
 p

a
y
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 a

n
d

 r
e
a
so

n
a
b
le

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e
 e

xp
e
n

se
s.

3
.

P
ru

d
e
n

t 
E
xp

e
rt

 R
u

le
. 
 Y

o
u

 m
u

st
 e

xe
rc

is
e
 t

h
e
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 s

k
il
l 
o

f 
a
 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e
a
b

le
, 
p

ru
d

e
n

t 
p

e
rs

o
n

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it

h
 s

im
il
a
r 

d
u

ti
e
s.

  
A

n
d

 a
ss

u
re

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
cy

 o
f 

th
e
 a

ss
e
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 t

ru
st

.

4
.

D
iv

e
rs

if
y
 I
n

v
e
st

m
e
n

ts
. 
 Y

o
u

 m
u

st
 b

ro
a
d

ly
 d

iv
e
rs

if
y
 t

h
e
 p

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
u

n
le

ss
 i
t 

is
 i
m

p
ru

d
e
n

t 
to

 d
o

 s
o

 (
a
k
a
 “

M
o

d
e
rn

 P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 T
h

e
o

ry
.”
)

5
.

F
o

ll
o

w
 t

h
e
 l
a
w

. 
 Y

o
u

 m
u

st
 o

b
e
y
 t

h
e
 p

la
n

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

in
cl

u
d

e
s 

th
e
 l
a
w

, 
p

o
li
ci

e
s,

 r
e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 g

o
v
e
rn

in
g

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
 

o
f 

th
e
 t

ru
st

.

4



R
e

e
d

 S
m

it
hB
EI

N
G

 A
 P

U
B

LI
C

 T
R

U
ST

EE
 IS

 U
N

IQ
U

E!

1
.

Tr
a
n

sp
a
re

n
cy

 

2
.

C
o

ll
e
ct

iv
e
 d

e
ci

si
o

n
 m

a
k
in

g

3
.

C
o

n
fl

ic
ts

 o
f 

in
te

re
st

4
.

Im
p

a
rt

ia
li
ty

 a
n

d
 f

a
ir

n
e
ss

5
.

D
e
le

g
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

d
u

ti
e
s

5



R
e

e
d

 S
m

it
h

1
.  

TR
A

N
SP

A
R

EN
C

Y

➢
O

p
e
n

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

 l
a
w

s 
(B

ro
w

n
 A

ct
)

•
P

u
b

li
c’

s 
ri

g
h

t 
to

 k
n

o
w

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

•
P

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 a
g

e
n

d
a
s,

 o
p

e
n

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

s,
 l
im

it
e
d

 c
o

n
fi

d
e
n

ti
a
li
ty

•
N

o
 “

b
e
h

in
d

-t
h

e
-s

ce
n

e
s”

 b
o

a
rd

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s

➢
P

u
b

li
c 

re
co

rd
s 

la
w

s

•
P

u
b

li
c’

s 
ri

g
h

t 
to

 k
n

o
w

 a
n

d
 a

cc
e
ss

•
In

cl
u

d
e
s 

a
ll
 m

e
d

ia
 u

se
d

 t
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
te

 p
u

b
li
c 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

•
L
im

it
e
d

 n
o

n
-d

is
cl

o
su

re
 p

e
rm

it
te

d

6



R
e

e
d

 S
m

it
h2

.  
C

O
LL

EC
TI

V
E 

D
EC

IS
IO

N
-M

A
K

IN
G

➢
D

iv
e
rs

e
 b

o
a
rd

 c
o

m
p

o
si

ti
o

n

•
A

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
n

d
 e

le
ct

e
d

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

•
“I

n
te

re
st

e
d

” 
b

u
t 

n
o

t
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

v
e

➢
F
o

ll
o

w
 a

 p
ru

d
e
n

t 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
-m

a
k
in

g
 p

ro
ce

ss

•
B

ro
a
d

 d
is

cr
e
ti

o
n

, 
b

u
t 

m
u

st
 b

e
 r

e
a
so

n
e
d

•
N

o
 l
ia

b
il
it

y
 f

o
r 

b
re

a
ch

 o
f 

fi
d

u
ci

a
ry

 d
u

ty
, 
so

 l
o

n
g

 a
s 

th
e
 

b
o

a
rd

 a
ct

s 
in

 a
 p

ru
d

e
n

t 
m

a
n

n
e
r

•
R

ig
h

t 
to

 i
m

m
u

n
it

y,
 i
n

d
e
m

n
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

e
fe

n
se

➢
M

a
jo

ri
ty

 r
u

le
s;

 d
e
ci

si
o

n
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

7



R
e

e
d

 S
m

it
hTH

E 
M

O
ST

 R
EC

EN
T 

C
O

U
R

T 
R

U
LI

N
G

   
   

   
   

   
O

N
 B

O
A

R
D

 D
IS

C
R

ET
IO

N

➢
O

’N
e
a
l 
v.

 S
ta

n
C

E
R

A
, 
tr

ia
l 
co

u
rt

, 
F
e
b

. 
2
0
1
9
:

“W
h

e
n

 f
a
ce

d
 w

it
h

 w
h

a
t 

a
m

o
u

n
te

d
 t

o
 a

 ‘
fi

v
e
-a

la
rm

 f
ir

e
,’ 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 

p
ro

p
e
rl

y
 e

xe
rc

is
e
d
 i
ts

 d
u

e
 d

il
ig

e
n

ce
, 
co

n
si

d
e
re

d
 i
ts

 o
p
ti

o
n

s 
(a

s 

p
re

se
n

te
d
 t

o
 i
t 

b
y
 i
ts

 a
ct

u
a
ri

a
l 
a
n

d
 f

id
u

ci
a
ry

/l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

),
 a

n
d
 

a
ct

e
d
 a

s 
ca

u
ti

o
u

sl
y
 a

n
d
 c

o
n

se
rv

a
ti

v
e
ly

 a
s 

p
o
ss

ib
le

 t
o
 i
n

su
re

 t
h

e
 

ce
rt

a
in

ty
 t

h
a
t 

it
s 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 w
o
u

ld
 r

e
ce

iv
e
 a

ll
 v

e
st

e
d
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
.”

➢
A

cc
o
rd

, 
N

a
sr

a
w

i 
v.

 B
u

ck
, 
a
p

p
e
ll
a
te

 c
o

u
rt

, 
2
0
1
4
:

“T
h

e
 d

e
ci

si
o
n

, 
re

q
u

ir
in

g
 a

s 
it

 d
o
e
s,

 c
o
m

p
a
ri

so
n

s,
 c

h
o
ic

e
s,

 j
u

d
g
m

e
n

ts
, 

a
n

d
 e

va
lu

a
ti

o
n

s,
 c

o
m

p
ri

se
s 

th
e
 v

e
ry

 e
ss

e
n

ce
 o

f 
th

e
 e

xe
rc

is
e
 o

f 

‘d
is

cr
e
ti

o
n

’ 
a
n

d
 w

e
 c

o
n

cl
u

d
e
 t

h
a
t 

su
ch

 d
e
ci

si
o
n

s 
a
re

 i
m

m
u

n
iz

e
d
…

”

8



R
e

e
d

 S
m

it
h3
.  

A
V

O
ID

IN
G

 C
O

N
FL

IC
TS

 O
F 

IN
TE

R
ES

T

➢
C

ri
ti

ca
l 
d

u
ty

 o
f 

lo
y
a
lt

y
 –

a
 p

u
b

li
c 

tr
u

st
e
e
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
se

rv
e
 t

w
o

 
m

a
st

e
rs

, 
o

n
e
 t

h
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

h
e
rs

e
lf

 (
o

r 
o

th
e
rs

)

➢
M

o
st

 s
e
ri

o
u

s 
o

f 
a
ll
 f

id
u

ci
a
ry

 d
u

ti
e
s;

 s
e
v
e
re

 p
e
n

a
lt

ie
s 

fo
r 

b
re

a
ch

➢
Im

p
a
ct

s 
a
ll

d
e
ci

si
o

n
s:

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

s,
 h

ir
in

g
 o

f 
co

n
su

lt
a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
v
e
n

d
o

rs
, 
re

la
ti

o
n

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 a
n

d
 d

is
tr

ic
ts

, 
u

n
io

n
s,

 
re

ti
re

e
s,

 p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
si

n
e
ss

 i
n

te
re

st
s,

 l
it

ig
a
ti

o
n

, 
e
tc

…

➢
B

e
in

g
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

v
o

id
in

g
 u

n
d

u
e
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

ce
 i
s 

e
ss

e
n

ti
a
l

➢
R

u
le

s 
a
re

 c
o

m
p

li
ca

te
d

 a
n

d
 o

ft
e
n

 n
o

t 
in

tu
it

iv
e
; 
se

e
k
 c

o
u

n
se

l 
w

h
e
n

 i
n

 d
o

u
b

t

9



R
e

e
d

 S
m

it
h

C
C

C
E
R

A
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
F
id

u
ci

a
ry

 C
o

n
d

u
ct

 &
 E

th
ic

s
E
xh

ib
it

 B

1
.

A
d

h
e
re

 t
o

 f
u

n
d

a
m

e
n

ta
l 
fi

d
u

ci
a
ry

 d
u

ti
e
s

2
.

O
b

e
y
 c

o
n

fl
ic

t 
o

f 
in

te
re

st
 l
a
w

s 
a
n

d
 C

C
C

E
R

A
's

 C
o

n
fl

ic
ts

 C
o

d
e
 

3
.

A
v
o

id
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
th

a
t 

im
p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

ce
 o

r 
im

p
a
ir

 y
o

u
r 

ju
d

g
m

e
n

t,
 o

r 
 a

re
 

in
co

n
si

st
e
n

t 
w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

d
u

ty
 t

o
 a

ct
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

e
st

 i
n

te
re

st
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
st

e
m

4
.

D
is

cl
o

se
 c

o
n

fl
ic

ti
n

g
 i
n

te
re

st
s;

 r
e
cu

se
 w

h
e
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 a
n

d
 t

im
e
ly

5
.

C
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 a
ll
 l
e
g

a
l 
li
m

it
a
ti

o
n

s 
o

n
 g

if
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
in

g
s 

o
f 

va
lu

e

6
.

H
o

n
o

r 
th

e
 "

q
u

ie
t 

p
e
ri

o
d

" 
d

u
ri

n
g

 i
n

v
e
st

m
e
n

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

se
a
rc

h
e
s

7
.

A
v
o

id
 u

si
n

g
 y

o
u

r 
p

u
b

li
c 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
p

ri
va

te
 g

a
in

 o
r 

in
fl

u
e
n

ce

8
.

M
a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a
li
ty

 o
f 

cl
o

se
d

 s
e
ss

io
n

s

9
.

C
o

n
d

u
ct

 y
o

u
rs

e
lf

 w
it

h
 c

iv
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 r
e
sp

e
ct

 a
t 

b
o

a
rd

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

s

1
0
.

U
se

 c
a
re

 i
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s 
w

it
h

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

 s
p

o
n

so
rs

1
0



R
e

e
d

 S
m

it
h

4
.  

M
A

IN
TA

IN
IN

G
 IM

PA
R

TI
A

LI
TY

 
A

N
D

 F
A

IR
N

ES
S

➢
B

o
a
rd

 i
s 

a
rb

it
e
r 

o
f 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
ri

g
h

ts

➢
F
u

n
d

a
m

e
n

ta
l 
d

u
e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

ss
u

re
s 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

fa
ir

n
e
ss

 i
n

 

m
a
k
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s

➢
Im

p
a
rt

ia
li
ty

 a
ss

u
re

s 
co

n
su

lt
a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 v
e
n

d
o

rs
 o

f 
a
 l
e
v
e
l 

co
m

p
e
ti

ti
v
e
 p

la
y
in

g
 f

ie
ld

, 
fo

r 
th

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
o

f 
th

e
 t

ru
st

➢
Im

p
a
rt

ia
li
ty

 a
ss

u
re

s 
fa

ir
 b

a
la

n
ci

n
g

 o
f 

a
ct

iv
e
 a

n
d

 r
e
ti

re
d

 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
in

te
re

st
s

1
1



R
e

e
d

 S
m

it
h

5
.  

D
EL

EG
A

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 O
V

ER
SI

G
H

T

➢
A

 p
u

b
li
c 

fi
d

u
ci

a
ry

 m
a
y
 (

o
ft

e
n

 m
u

st
!)

 d
e
le

g
a
te

, 
b

u
t 

o
n

ly
 t

o
 o

th
e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 f

id
u

ci
a
ry

 

st
a
n

d
a
rd

s

➢
N

o
 “

se
t 

a
n

d
 f

o
rg

e
t”

 –
P

ru
d

e
n

t 
d

e
le

g
a
ti

o
n

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
s 

v
ig

il
a
n

t 
o

v
e
rs

ig
h

t:
  

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

, 
a
u

d
it

in
g

, 
a
d

ju
st

in
g

, 

te
rm

in
a
ti

n
g

 w
h

e
n

 n
e
ce

ss
a
ry

➢
B

o
a
rd

 e
n

g
a
g

e
s 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h

t 
a
d

v
is

o
rs

 (
a
u

d
it

o
rs

, 

co
n

su
lt

a
n

ts
, 
fi

d
u

ci
a
ry

 c
o

u
n

se
l, 

e
tc

.)
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

o
f 

st
a
ff

, 
co

n
su

lt
a
n

ts
, 
in

v
e
st

m
e
n

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

1
2



R
e

e
d

 S
m

it
h

1
3

T
H

E
F
IV

E
 F

ID
U

C
IA

R
Y

 P
IL

L
A

R
S
 

P
ri

m
a
ry

 L
o

y
a
lt

y
  
  

 E
xc

lu
si

ve
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
  
  

 P
ru

d
e
n

t
C

a
re

D
iv

e
rs

if
y
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
F
o

ll
o

w

to
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

  
  

  
  
  

  
o

f 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

  
  
  

  
  

 a
n

d
 E

xp
e
rt

is
e
  

  
  

  
 t

h
e

A
ss

e
ts

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 t
h

e
 L

a
w

•
A

v
o

id
 “

tw
o

 h
a
t”

 

co
n

fl
ic

ts
 o

f 

in
te

re
st

•
A

tt
ra

ct
a
n

d
 r

e
ta

in
 

ca
p

a
b

le
 s

ta
ff

•
P

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p

e
ri

o
r 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

se
rv

ic
e

•
M

in
im

iz
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 

lo
ss

•
A

v
o

id
d

iv
e
rt

in
g

 

a
ss

e
ts

 f
o

r 
o

th
e
r 

p
u

rp
o

se
s

•
A

v
o

id
 i
m

p
a
ct

in
g

 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
rs

’ 

g
o

a
ls

•
P

a
y
 o

n
ly

 

re
a
so

n
a
b

le
 

e
xp

e
n

se
s 

to
 

a
d

m
in

is
te

r 
fu

n
d

•
E
st

a
b

li
sh

a
n

d
 

fo
ll
o

w
 g

o
o

d
 

g
o

v
e
rn

a
n

ce
 

p
o

li
ci

e
s 

a
s 

a
 B

o
a
rd

•
B

e
 t

ra
n

sp
a
re

n
t

•
E
n

g
a
g

e
 a

n
d

 

d
e
le

g
a
te

 t
o

 e
xp

e
rt

 

st
a
ff

 a
n

d
 

co
n

su
lt

a
n

ts

•
M

o
n

it
o

r 
a
n

d
 a

d
ju

st
 

a
s 

n
e
e
d

e
d

•
E
st

a
b

li
sh

 

co
ll
e
ct

iv
e
 r

is
k
 

to
le

ra
n

ce

•
S
e
e
k

ri
sk

-a
d

ju
st

e
d

 

re
tu

rn
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 a
ll
 

m
a
rk

e
ts

•
W

e
ig

h
 e

a
ch

 

in
v
e
st

m
e
n

t 
fo

r 
it

s 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

w
h

o
le

 p
ro

g
ra

m

•
E
st

a
b

li
sh

 a
n

d
 

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 

w
ri

tt
e
n

p
la

n
 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts

•
B

e
 m

in
d

fu
l 
o

f 

p
u

b
li
c 

o
ff

ic
ia

l 
ro

le



1
4

F
in

a
l 
N

o
te

: 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 
“R

e
a
so

n
a
b

le
 E

xp
e
n

se
s 

o
f 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

”

➢
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
L
it

ig
a
ti

o
n

 T
a
rg

e
ti

n
g

 U
n

iv
e
rs

it
y
 D

C
 P

la
n

s

M
u

lt
ip

le
 c

la
ss

 a
ct

io
n

s 
b

ro
u

g
h

t 
o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 o

f 
u

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

4
0
1
(k

) 
a
n

d
 4

0
3
(b

) 
p

la
n

s 
a
g

a
in

st
 t

ru
st

e
e
s 

a
n

d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
to

rs
, 
a
ll
e
g

in
g

 
b

re
a
ch

 o
f 

d
u

ti
e
s 

o
f 

lo
y
a
lt

y
 a

n
d

 p
ru

d
e
n

ce
 u

n
d

e
r 

E
R

IS
A

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 a

ll
e
g

e
 o

n
e
ro

u
s 

in
v
e
st

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 r

e
co

rd
-k

e
e
p

in
g

 f
e
e
s,

 
ch

u
rn

in
g

, 
a
n

d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
to

r-
a
ff

il
ia

te
 t

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s,
 s

p
e
ci

fi
ca

ll
y
 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
:

•
D

u
p

li
ca

ti
ve

 f
u

n
d

s 
in

 s
a
m

e
 i
n

ve
st

m
e
n

t 
st

y
le

 c
a
u

se
d

 p
la

n
 t

o
 l
o

se
 

b
a
rg

a
in

in
g

 p
o

w
e
r 

a
n

d
 c

a
u

se
d

 “
d

e
ci

si
o

n
 p

a
ra

ly
si

s”
 f

o
r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
.

•
A

n
n

u
a
l 
re

co
rd

-k
e
e
p

in
g

 f
e
e
s 

w
e
re

 t
o

o
 h

ig
h

•
To

o
 m

a
n

y
 r

e
co

rd
-k

e
e
p

e
rs

, 
a
n

d
 f

a
il
u

re
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
e
ti

ti
v
e
ly

 b
id

 r
e
co

rd
-

k
e
e
p

e
r 

co
n

tr
a
ct

s

•
Fa

il
u

re
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
e
xp

e
n

se
s



1
5

R
e
a
so

n
a
b

le
 E

xp
e
n

se
s,

 c
o

n
t’
d

.

➢
T
w

e
n

ty
 u

n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s 
h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 s
u

e
d

, 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 D

u
k
e
, 
N

Y
U

, 
M

IT
, E

m
o

ry
, 

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

, 
C

o
rn

e
ll
, 
P

ri
n

ce
to

n
, 
U

n
iv

. 
o

f 
P
e
n

n
., 

N
o

rt
h

w
e
st

e
rn

, 
V
a
n

d
e
rb

il
t,

 

B
ro

w
n

, 
Ya

le
, 
U

S
C

, 
U

n
iv

. 
o

f 
C

h
ic

a
g

o
, 
Jo

h
n

s 
H

o
p

k
in

s,
 G

e
o

rg
e
to

w
n

, 
G

e
o

rg
e
 

W
a
sh

in
g

to
n

 U
n

iv
., 

U
n

iv
. 
o

f 
R

o
ch

e
st

e
r,
 W

a
sh

in
g

to
n

 U
n

iv
. 
a
n

d
 L

o
n

g
 I
sl

a
n

d
 

U
n

iv
.

•
N

Y
U

 p
re

va
il
e
d

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 t

ri
a
l 

•
A

t 
le

a
st

 s
ix

 u
n

iv
e
rs

it
ie

s 
h

a
v
e
 s

e
tt

le
d

 f
o

r 
m

il
li
o

n
s 

o
f 

d
o

ll
a
rs

 e
a
ch

 a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

re
li
e
f

•
S
o

m
e
 d

is
m

is
sa

ls
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

ia
l 
d

is
m

is
sa

ls
, 
m

a
n

y
 c

la
im

s 
st

il
l 
p

e
n

d
in

g

➢
W

h
a
t 

o
th

e
r 

e
xp

e
n

se
s 

co
u

ld
 c

o
m

e
 u

n
d

e
r 

sc
ru

ti
n

y?

➢
W

h
a
t 

ca
n

 w
e
 d

o
 t

o
 a

v
o

id
?



R
e

e
d

 S
m

it
h

Q
U

E
S
T
IO

N
S
?

1
6



 

Ralph M. Brown Act
Open Meeting Laws:  
The Fundamentals
December 11, 2019

Karen Levy, Esq.

General Counsel

Ralph M. Brown Act

Open Meeting Laws for Local Legislative Bodies 

• The Brown Act sets forth the rules regarding open
meetings held by local legislative bodies.

• The CCCERA Board of Retirement is subject to the
Brown Act.

California Government Code § 54950 et seq.
2

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#9



 

 

Purpose

• To ensure that agency actions are taken openly

• To ensure that agency deliberations are conducted
openly

Government Code § 54950 et seq.
3

Key Concepts

• Retirement Board meetings must be open and
accessible to the public.

• A Board meeting agenda must be posted publicly.

• During Board meetings, the public must be given an
opportunity to comment.

4



 

 

Retirement Board Meetings must be 
Open and Accessible to the Public

“Meeting” means any congregation of a majority of 
the Retirement Board (i.e. five Retirement Board 
members) at the same place and location (including 
teleconference locations) to hear, discuss, deliberate 
or take action on any item within the Retirement 
Board’s subject matter jurisdiction.

Government Code § 54952.2(a)
5

Serial Meetings

• “Meeting” also means any serial use of
communication, personal intermediaries, or
technological devices through which a majority of
the Board’s members discuss, deliberate, or take
action on an item.

• Example of an unlawful “serial” meeting: Trustee A
emails Trustee B about a Retirement Board issue. B
forwards A’s email to C, who then forwards to D,
who then forwards to E.  A mere series of emails or
phone calls by a majority of the trustees about a
business item violates the Brown Act.

Government Code § 54952.2(b)
6



 

 

Committee Meetings
• The Brown Act also applies to meetings of standing
committees – committees that have continuing
jurisdiction over a particular topic.  For example:
Audit Committee.

• Exception – The Brown Act does not apply to a
committee that is an advisory committee convened
for a limited purpose and a limited duration.

Government Code § 54952
7

Attendance at Conferences

• A majority of the Retirement Board members may
attend a conference or similar gathering open to the
public that involves a discussion of issues of general
interest to the public or to other public pension
systems, so long as the majority of the board do not
discuss among themselves business that is within the
subject matter jurisdiction of the Retirement Board.

• Examples: the State Association of County Retirement
Systems (SACRS) and the California Association of
Public Retirement Systems (CALAPRS) conferences.

Government Code § 54952.2(c)(2)
8



 

 

Attendance at Purely Social Events
A majority of the Retirement Board members may 
attend a purely social or ceremonial occasion, 
provided that the majority of the Retirement Board 
members do not discuss among themselves business 
that is within the subject matter of the Retirement 
Board.

Government Code § 54952.2(c)(5)
9

Meeting via Teleconference 

• All votes taken during a teleconference must be taken by roll call.
• Agendas must be posted at all teleconference locations.
• Each teleconference location must be identified in the agenda.
• Each teleconference location must be accessible to the public.
• At least a quorum must participate from locations within Contra
Costa County.
• The agenda must provide for public comment at each
teleconference location.

Government Code § 59453(b)
10



 

 

Voting Report Requirement

Board must publicly report any action taken and the 
vote or abstention of each member present for the 
action.

Government Code § 54953(c)(2)
11

Agenda Requirement

• At least 72 hours before a regular meeting,
an agenda containing a general description
of each item of business to be transacted,
including items to be discussed, and the
time and location of the meeting must be
posted in a public location and the CCCERA
website.

• For Board meetings occurring on or after
January 1, 2019: Agenda must be accessible
through a prominent, direct link on the
CCCERA website.

Government Code § 54954.2(a)
12



 

 

Agenda Requirement
If an item is not included on the agenda:

• Board may not act on or discuss that item, or add that item
to the meeting’s agenda as an urgency item, subject to
limited exceptions.

• Board and staff may ask a question for clarification, make a
brief announcement, or make a brief report. Board may
provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual
information, request staff to report back to the body at a
subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or take action
to direct staff to place a matter of business on a future
agenda.

Government Code § 54954.2
13

Public Comment
• During each meeting, the Board must allow public
comment on each agenda item and on other
matters within the jurisdiction of the Board.

• Board may limit comment time.
• If Board limits public comment time, the Board
must provide at least twice as much of the
allocated time to members of the public who utilize
a translator.

Government Code § 54954.3
14



 

 

Disruptive Attendees

• Public comment must be allowed,
including negative comments.

• If the meeting is willfully interrupted, the Board
may clear the room of the disruptive individuals
and continue the meeting.  Those members of the
public not participating in the disturbance must be
allowed to stay.

Government Code § 54957.9
15

Closed Session

• Closed sessions are authorized under
certain enumerated circumstances.
• Examples
• Purchase or sale of a particular, specific
pension fund investment (Govt. Code
§54956.81).
• Personnel matters, including disability
applications (Govt. Code §54957).

16



 

 

Closed Session
Examples (Cont.)

• Conference with CCCERA’s designated representatives
regarding employees’ salaries, benefits but prohibition
against taking final action in closed session (Govt. Code
§54957.6).

• Conference with legal counsel regarding pending
litigation, exposure to litigation against the retirement
system or the board, and to decide whether to initiate
litigation (Govt. Code §54956.9).

17

Closed Session – Public Report
• Public report of action taken in closed session and
the vote or abstention on that action of every
member present is required.

• Public report of pension fund investment
transaction decisions made in closed session are to
be disclosed either at the first open meeting of the
legislative body held after the earlier of the close of
the investment transaction or the transfer of
pension fund assets for the investment transaction.

Government Code § 54957.1
18



 

 

Closed Session Confidentiality

Board members may not disclose confidential 
information acquired by being present in a closed 
session to a person not entitled to receive the 
information.

Government Code § 54963(a)
19

Consequence of Violating the 
Brown Act

• Criminal liability for individual Board members

• Civil remedies: Civil actions to stop, prevent or
invalidate the action of the Board

• Attorneys fees and costs awarded to plaintiff

20



 

 

Questions?

21



1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: December 11, 2019 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Karen Levy, General Counsel  

Subject: Legislation Update 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
The California Legislature convened on December 3, 2018 for the 2019-2020 legislative session.  
October 13, 2019 was the last day for the Governor to sign or veto bills passed by the 
Legislature.  Below is a summary of approved legislation of interest to CCCERA and its Board of 
Retirement. 

AB 672 Public Employees’ Retirement: Disability Retirement: Reinstatement. 
Introduced by Assembly Member Cervantes 
This bill applies to CalPERS and prohibits a person who has retired for disability from being 
employed by any employer without reinstatement from retirement if the position is the 
position from which the person retired or if the position includes duties or activities that the 
person was previously restricted from performing at the time of retirement, unless an 
exception applies. The bill requires an employer to provide to the CalPERS board the nature of 
the employment and the duties and activities the person will perform if a person retired for 
disability is employed by an employer without reinstatement. 
Status: Approved by Governor July 12, 2019.  Effective: January 1, 2020. 

AB 1819 Inspection of Public Records: Use of Requester’s Reproduction Equipment. 
Introduced by Assembly Committee on Judiciary 
Existing law, the California Public Records Act, requires state and local agencies to make public 
records available upon receipt of a request that reasonably describes an identifiable record not 
otherwise exempt from disclosure, and upon payment of fees to cover costs.  AB 1819 grants a 
requester who inspects a disclosable record on the premises of the agency the right to use the 
requester’s equipment on those premises, without being charged any fees or costs, to 
photograph or otherwise copy or reproduce the record in a manner that does not require the 
equipment to make physical contact with the record, unless the means of copy or reproduction 
would result in damage to the record, or unauthorized access to a computer system of the 
agency or secured network, as specified. (Government Code Section 6253.)  The bill authorizes 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#10



Legislation Update 
December 11, 2019 

Page 2 
 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520   Phone: (925) 521-3960    Fax: (925) 521-3969   cccera.org 

 

the agency to impose any reasonable limits on the use of the requester’s equipment that are 
necessary to protect the safety of the records or to prevent the copying of records from being 
an unreasonable burden to the orderly function of the agency and its employees. The bill 
authorizes the agency to impose any limit that is necessary to maintain the integrity of, or 
ensure the long-term preservation of, historic or high-value records.  
Status: Approved by Governor October 9, 2019.  Effective: January 1, 2020. 
 
AB 5 Worker Status: Employees and Independent Contractors 
Introduced by Assembly Member Gonzales 
This bill has codified the decision in the case of Dynamex Operations West, Inc. v. Superior Court 
of Los Angeles (2018) 4 Cal.5th 903 (Dynamex), creating a presumption that a worker is an 
employee for purposes of claims for wages and benefits under the Labor Code, the 
Unemployment Insurance Code, and the wage orders of the Industrial Welfare Commission.  
Specifically, a person providing labor or services for remuneration shall be considered an 
employee rather than an independent contractor unless the hiring entity demonstrates that the 
person is free from the control and direction of the hiring entity in connection with the 
performance of the work, the person performs work that is outside the usual course of the 
hiring entity’s business, and the person is customarily engaged in an independently established 
trade, occupation, or business.  
Status: Approved by Governor September 18, 2019.  Effective: January 1, 2020. 
 
Recommendation 
Receive and File. 



1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: December 11, 2019 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject: Consider and take possible action to add CCCERA staffing. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
Having carefully analyzed CCCERA’s operations, it appears that greater efficiencies can be 
achieved by adding a retirement services supervisor position to assist in the day to day 
administration of retirement services, including but not limited to, active and retiree member 
counseling, analysis and calculation of estimates and final pension allowances, supervising, 
documenting and training retirement counselors.  The hourly rate for this position is $42.74 to 
$51.95.  

In an effort to increase member outreach, CCCERA has increased the number and enrollment 
capacity of pre-retirement workshops and created overview workshops for members. The 
addition of a retirement services technician would provide additional support to the workshops 
as well as support the retirement counselors in processing retirement applications, purchases 
and retirement estimates. The hourly rate for this position is $21.70 to $30.53.  

Additionally, the establishment of a new classification of an internal auditor would assist 
CCCERA in conducting employer audits, assessing internal controls and performing internal 
audits. The monthly salary for this classification will be $9,881 to $12,845. Due to anticipated 
staggered hiring in 2020, the salary impact to the 2020 budget for the Retirement Services 
Supervisor, Retirement Services Technician and Internal Auditor is approximately $72,839, 
$25,883, and $107,640, respectively.  

Recommendations 
Consider and take possible action to add CCCERA staffing: 

a. Add one Retirement Services Supervisor, one Retirement Services Technician, and
establish an Internal Auditor classification;

b. Amend Attachment A of Resolution 2019-2 providing salary and benefits for
unrepresented employees of CCCERA effective January 1, 2020; and

c. Adopt the CCCERA Position Pay Schedules effective January 1, 2020.

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#11a.



Effective January 1, 2020

Class Title Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5

Accountant Exempt (Monthly) $5,805 $6,095 $6,400 $6,720 $7,056

Accounting Manager Exempt (Monthly) $9,928 $10,424 $10,945 $11,493 $12,067

Accounting Supervisor Exempt (Monthly) $7,408 $7,779 $8,168 $8,576 $9,005

Administrative/HR Manager Exempt (Monthly) $9,691 $10,176 $10,685 $11,219 $11,780

Administrative/HR Supervisor Exempt (Monthly) $7,408 $7,779 $8,168 $8,576 $9,005

Communications Coordinator Exempt (Monthly) $6,888 $7,232 $7,594 $7,973 $8,372

Compliance Business Analyst Exempt (Monthly) $7,594 $7,973 $8,372 $8,790 $9,230

Deputy General Counsel Exempt (Monthly) $13,969 $14,668 $15,401 $16,171 $16,980

Executive Assistant Non-Exempt (Hourly) $35.16 $36.92 $38.77 $40.70 $42.74

Information System Programmer/Analyst Exempt (Monthly) $7,056 $7,408 $7,779 $8,168 $8,576

Information Technology Coordinator Non-Exempt (Hourly) $36.92 $38.77 $40.70 $42.74 $44.88

Information Technology Manager Exempt (Monthly) $11,780 $12,369 $12,987 $13,637 $14,319

Investment Analyst Exempt (Monthly) $10,176 $10,685 $11,219 $11,780 $12,369

Investment Officer Exempt (Monthly) $14,319 $15,035 $15,786 $16,575 $17,404

Member Services Manager Exempt (Monthly) $9,691 $10,176 $10,685 $11,219 $11,780

Member Services Supervisor Non-Exempt (Hourly) $42.74 $44.88 $47.12 $49.48 $51.95

Retirement Services Manager Exempt (Monthly) $9,691 $10,176 $10,685 $11,219 $11,780

Retirement Services Supervisor Non-Exempt (Hourly) $42.74 $44.88 $47.12 $49.48 $51.95

Executive Class Title

Chief Executive Officer  

Chief Investment Officer

Compliance Officer

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

General Counsel

Internal Auditor

Resolution of the Board of Retirement 

Salary Range

Attachment A

(BOR Reso. No. 2019-2)

CCCERA Resolution for Salary and Benefits for Unrepresented Employees

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association

$9,881 - $12,845

$16,898 - $21,967

$22,525.85

Monthly Salary Range

$19,118 - $24,854

$9,881 - $12,845

$15,328 - $19,925

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#11b.



R
e

v
is

io
n

 D
a

te
s

: 
1

/1
/2

0
, 
7

/1
/1

9
, 
4

/1
/1

9
, 
2

/1
6

/1
9

, 
7

/1
/1

8
, 
1

/1
/1

8
, 
7

/1
/1

7
, 
4

/1
6

/1
7

, 
7

/1
/1

6
, 
2

/1
/1

6
, 
9

/1
/1

5
, 
1

/1
/1

5

E
li

g
ib

le
 f

o
r 

D
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l

P
o

s
it
io

n
s
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n

te
d
 b

y
 A

F
S

C
M

E
, 

L
o
c
a

l 
2

7
0

0
:

1
0
 y

e
a
r 

L
o

n
g

e
v
it

y

C
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 T
it

le
S

te
p

 1
S

te
p

 2
S

te
p

 3
S

te
p

 4
S

te
p

 5
S

te
p

 6
S

te
p

 7
S

te
p

 8
2

.5
0
%

O
ff

ic
e
 S

p
e

c
ia

li
s

t
$

2
1

.7
0

$
2
2

.7
9

$
2
3

.9
2

$
2
5

.1
2

$
2
6

.3
8

$
2
7

.7
0

$
2
9

.0
9

$
3
0

.5
3

Y
e

s

R
e

ti
re

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

ia
n

$
2
1

.7
0

$
2
2

.7
9

$
2
3

.9
2

$
2
5

.1
2

$
2
6

.3
8

$
2
7

.7
0

$
2
9

.0
9

$
3
0

.5
3

Y
e

s

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 T

e
c
h

n
ic

ia
n

$
2
6

.1
1

$
2
7

.4
2

$
2
8

.7
9

$
3
0

.2
3

$
3
1

.7
5

$
3
3

.3
3

Y
e

s

R
e

ti
re

m
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n

s
e
lo

r 
$

2
7

.4
2

$
2
8

.7
8

$
3
0

.2
2

$
3
1

.7
4

$
3
3

.3
3

$
3
5

.0
0

Y
e

s

M
e

m
b

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 S
p

e
c
ia

li
s

t
$

2
7

.4
2

$
2
8

.7
8

$
3
0

.2
2

$
3
1

.7
4

$
3
3

.3
3

$
3
5

.0
0

Y
e

s

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t
$

2
7

.8
9

$
2
9

.2
7

$
3
0

.7
5

$
3
2

.2
8

$
3
3

.8
9

Y
e

s

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 S

p
e

c
ia

li
s

t
$

3
1

.6
2

$
3
3

.2
0

$
3
4

.8
5

$
3
6

.6
0

$
3
8

.4
3

$
4
0

.3
5

Y
e

s

S
e

n
io

r 
R

e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
s

e
lo

r
$

3
1

.6
2

$
3
3

.2
0

$
3
4

.8
5

$
3
6

.6
0

$
3
8

.4
3

$
4
0

.3
5

Y
e

s

D
a

ta
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 S

p
e

c
ia

li
s

t
$

3
1

.6
2

$
3
3

.2
0

$
3
4

.8
5

$
3
6

.6
0

$
3
8

.4
3

$
4
0

.3
5

Y
e

s

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 S

p
e

c
ia

li
s

t
$

3
7

.1
2

$
3
8

.9
7

$
4
0

.9
2

$
4
2

.9
6

$
4
5

.1
0

Y
e

s

H
o

u
rl

y
 (

N
o

n
-E

x
e
m

p
t)

C
C

C
E

R
A

 P
o

s
it

io
n

 P
a
y
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

s
 -

  
E

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 1

/1
/2

0

 P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 
2

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#11c.



U
n

re
p
re

s
e
n

te
d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
s
:

1
0
 y

e
a
r 

L
o

n
g

e
v
it

y

1
5
 y

e
a
r 

L
o

n
g

e
v
it

y

2
0
 y

e
a
r 

L
o

n
g

e
v
it

y

C
P

A
, 

C
G

F
M

, 

C
IA

, 
C

M
A

A
S

A

C
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 T
it

le
S

te
p

 1
S

te
p

 2
S

te
p

 3
S

te
p

 4
S

te
p

 5
2

.5
0
%

2
.5

0
%

2
.0

0
%

5
%

5
%

H
o

u
rl

y
 (

N
o

n
-E

x
e
m

p
t)

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t
$

3
5

.1
6

$
3
6

.9
2

$
3
8

.7
7

$
4
0

.7
0

$
4
2

.7
4

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r
$

3
6

.9
2

$
3
8

.7
7

$
4
0

.7
0

$
4
2

.7
4

$
4
4

.8
8

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

M
e

m
b

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 S
u

p
e

rv
is

o
r

$
4
2

.7
4

$
4
4

.8
8

$
4
7

.1
2

$
4
9

.4
8

$
5
1

.9
5

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

R
e

ti
re

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 S
u

p
e

rv
is

o
r

$
4
2

.7
4

$
4
4

.8
8

$
4
7

.1
2

$
4
9

.4
8

$
5
1

.9
5

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

M
o

n
th

ly
 (

E
x

e
m

p
t)

A
c

c
o

u
n

ta
n

t
$

5
,8

0
5

$
6
,0

9
5

$
6
,4

0
0

$
6
,7

2
0

$
7
,0

5
6

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

$
9
,9

2
8

$
1
0

,4
2
4

$
1
0

,9
4
5

$
1
1

,4
9
3

$
1
2

,0
6
7

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 S

u
p

e
rv

is
o

r
$

7
,4

0
8

$
7
,7

7
9

$
8
,1

6
8

$
8
,5

7
6

$
9
,0

0
5

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e
/H

R
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

$
9
,6

9
1

$
1
0

,1
7
6

$
1
0

,6
8
5

$
1
1

,2
1
9

$
1
1

,7
8
0

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e
/H

R
 S

u
p

e
rv

is
o

r
$

7
,4

0
8

$
7
,7

7
9

$
8
,1

6
8

$
8
,5

7
6

$
9
,0

0
5

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
 C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r
$

6
,8

8
8

$
7
,2

3
2

$
7
,5

9
4

$
7
,9

7
3

$
8
,3

7
2

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 A
n

a
ly

s
t

$
7
,5

9
4

$
7
,9

7
3

$
8
,3

7
2

$
8
,7

9
0

$
9
,2

3
0

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

D
e

p
u

ty
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
C

o
u

n
s

e
l

$
1
3

,9
6
9

$
1
4

,6
6
8

$
1
5

,4
0
1

$
1
6

,1
7
1

$
1
6

,9
8
0

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 S

y
s

te
m

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
r/

A
n

a
ly

s
t

$
7
,0

5
6

$
7
,4

0
8

$
7
,7

7
9

$
8
,1

6
8

$
8
,5

7
6

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

$
1
1

,7
8
0

$
1
2

,3
6
9

$
1
2

,9
8
7

$
1
3

,6
3
7

$
1
4

,3
1
9

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

In
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t 

A
n

a
ly

s
t

$
1
0

,1
7
6

$
1
0

,6
8
5

$
1
1

,2
1
9

$
1
1

,7
8
0

$
1
2

,3
6
9

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

In
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e
r

$
1
4

,3
1
9

$
1
5

,0
3
5

$
1
5

,7
8
6

$
1
6

,5
7
6

$
1
7

,4
0
4

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

M
e

m
b

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r
$

9
,6

9
1

$
1
0

,1
7
6

$
1
0

,6
8
5

$
1
1

,2
1
9

$
1
1

,7
8
0

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

R
e

ti
re

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r
$

9
,6

9
1

$
1
0

,1
7
6

$
1
0

,6
8
5

$
1
1

,2
1
9

$
1
1

,7
8
0

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

C
h

ie
f 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
N

o
N

o
Y

e
s

C
h

ie
f 

In
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 O

ff
ic

e
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

D
e

p
u

ty
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c

u
ti

v
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

C
o

u
n

s
e
l

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
N

o
Y

e
s

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

o
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e

s
$

9
,8

8
1

 -
 $

1
2

,8
4
5

*N
O

T
E

: 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 D
if
fe

re
n
ti
a

ls
 c

a
n
n

o
t 

b
e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

c
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

 d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a

ls

E
li

g
ib

le
 f

o
r 

D
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l*

M
o

n
th

ly
 S

a
la

ry
 R

a
n

g
e

 (
E

x
e
m

p
t)

$
2
2

,5
2
5

.8
5

$
1
9

,1
1
8

 -
 $

2
4

,8
5
4

$
9
,8

8
1

 -
 $

1
2

,8
4
5

$
1
5

,3
2
8

 -
 $

1
9

,9
2
5

$
1
6

,8
9
8

 -
 $

2
1

,9
6
7

 P
a
g
e
 2

 o
f 
2



PROPOSED 
BUDGET

2020

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#12



2 2020 Annual Budget

December 11, 2019

Dear Board Members,

It is with pleasure to present the 2020 Proposed 
Budget for Contra Costa County Employees’ 
Retirement Association (CCCERA).

CCCERA continuously strives towards the priority 
of effective and efficient administration of the 
plan, safeguarding plan assets wherever possible, 
and ensuring that our members are provided with 
the best customer service.  The activities in this 
proposed budget support the strategic initiatives.

Included in the 2020 Proposed Budget, there are 
estimated expenses for the following:

• Addition of three new positions; internal 
auditor, retirement services supervisor, and 
retirement services technician 

• Anticipated filling vacant positions of two 
investment officers, retirement services 
counselor, and accountant 

• Increased overtime for next phase of data 
record verification on CPAS system 

• Professional services for the new pension 
administration system consultant (LRWL) 

• Addition of Investment Consulting and 
Actuarial fees to the annual budget process 

• Increased office expenses and IT support 
service contracts

The presentation format of the budget is summarized 
into major expense line items which match the same 
presentation in the Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report (CAFR). In addition to a 2020 Proposed 
Budget, also included is a FY2019 budget versus year-
end expense estimate. The FY2019 expense estimate 
was based on actuals through October 2019 rolled 
forward to December 31, 2019.

The 2020 Proposed Budget is divided into three 
sections:

• 2020 Proposed Total Budget—this section 
summarizes and combines all expenses from 
the 2020 Proposed Administrative and 2020 
Proposed Non-Administrative Budget 

• 2020 Proposed Administrative Budget—this 
section is comprised of expenses from 
administrative departments including Executive 
and Compliance, Administration/HR, 
Accounting, Information Technology, Retirement 
Services, and Member Services.  Administrative 
expenses are capped by a statutory limit of 21 
basis points against the latest Actuarial Accrued 
Liability prepared as of December 31, 2018. 

• 2020 Proposed Non-Administrative Budget—this 
section includes expenses for the Investment and 
Legal departments, along with Disaster Recovery 
Program expenses. These expenses are not 
subject to the statutory limit on administrative 
expenses and are excluded. Legal fees relating to 
general and fiduciary counsel, tax, investment, 
employment, and disabilities are presented as 
Non-Administrative. Also presented as new 
line items with the 2020 Non-Administrative 
budget is the addition of Investment Consulting 
and Actuarial Services fees. These are not new 
expenses and have always been expensed in the 
CAFR financial report, but are being presented 
as part of the annual budgeting process for 
additional information to the Board.

BUDGET SUMMARY



2020 Annual Budget        3

The 2020 Proposed Total Budget is $16.7 million, an 
overall increase of $2.5 million or 18%, compared 
to the 2019 budget. The majority of the budget 
increase is attributed to increased staff costs for 
staff additions and an increase in professional 
services which is mostly related to the addition of 
the Investment Consulting and Actuarial Services 
line items.  The chart below helps illustrate where 
the budget increases occur from.

The additional salary and benefits fill three new 
positions being proposed and fund four vacancies 
throughout the organization.  There is also more 
overtime to handle member data verification 
and the imaging project.  Besides the investment 
consulting and actuarial services line items, there 
is professional services budgeted for phase I of 
the new pension system consultant (LRWL). 
IT support service contracts increased for a 
microfiche data conversion project, software 
license renewals, along with additional disaster 
recovery costs. Office expenses increased for lease 
rent, equipment lease and maintenance related 
to disaster recovery, workers compensation 
insurance, and depreciation of leasehold 
improvements.  The increases were offset 
with various decreases mostly from less ICON 
consultant fees and less anticipated costs for legal.

The 2020 Proposed Administrative Budget is $11.8 
million, an increase of $1 million or 9%, compared 
to the 2019 budget.  The significant increases 
are staff costs and IT costs for pension system 
consultant and a microfiche project.

Section 31580.2 of the California Government 
Code limits administrative expenses to 0.21% of 
the current Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL).  As of 
December 31, 2018, the AAL is $9,682,143,750 
which results in a limit of $20.3 million.  The 
proposed 2020 administrative expenses of $11.8 
million are 0.122% of the AAL and well under the 
capped amount.

The 2020 Proposed Non-Administrative Budget is 
$4.9 million, an increase of $1.5 million or 43%, as 
compared to the 2019 budget.  The majority of 
the increase is related to adding the line items for 
investment consulting and actuarial fees along with 

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

Budget Summary (Continued)

Non-Administrative 
$4.9M

Administrative
$11.8M

Total 2020 Proposed Budget $16.7M

Professional Services 
$902K

Personnel Services
$1.1M

IT Systems 
$362K

Composition of $2.5M Budget Increase



4 2020 Annual Budget

anticipated investment officer recruitments.

Recommendation:

a)  Consider and take possible action to adopt the 2020 Proposed Total Budget

Thank you for your consideration.

Respectfully submitted,

Henry Gudino, CPA
Accounting Manager

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

Budget Summary (Concluded)

1. Improve communication within the 
organization and with external stakeholders.

2. Expand use of technology across the organization to 
achieve goals in the most efficient manner.

3. Implement measures to improve customer service to external 
and internal customers.

4. Data integrity and security are of paramount importance. New 
projects will be implemented to ensure data is accurate and 

secured appropriately.

5. Institute effective training and recognition programs to 
foster continued employee development.

20

18
-2020 STRATEGIC INITIATIVES



TOTAL BUDGET

ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET
  

NON-ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET
  

CAPITAL BUDGET

20
20 PROPOSED



6 2020 Annual Budget

2020 PROPOSED TOTAL BUDGET

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

2020 Proposed Total Budget
Including Administrative and Non-Administrative Departments

2019 Budget
FY2019 

Estimate
 $ Budget 

Remaining 
 % Budget 
Remaining 

2020 Proposed 
Total Budget

$ Change 
2019 Budget

% Change 
2019 Budget 

Personnel Services:

Salaries & Wages $6,087,900 $6,029,865 $58,035 1% $6,901,700 $813,800 13%

Employee Benefits & Retirement  4,700,000  4,423,107  276,893 6%  4,974,700  274,700 6%

Total Personnel Services  10,787,900  10,452,972  334,928 3%  11,876,400  1,088,500 9%

Operational Expenses:

Professional Services:

* Investment Consulting  -    -    -    -    925,000  925,000 100%

* Actuarial Services  -    -    -    -    215,000  215,000 100%

Outside Legal Counsel Services  626,000  357,856  268,144 43%  530,000  (96,000) (15%)

Audit Services  267,000  134,345  132,655 50%  101,000  (166,000) (62%)

Benefit Statements  75,000  72,000  3,000 4%  72,000  (3,000) (4%)

Disability Hearings/ Medical Reviews  150,000  48,623  101,377 68%  136,900  (13,100) (9%)

Other Professional Services  6,200  3,636  2,564 41%  46,500  40,300 650%

Total Professional Services  1,124,200  616,460  507,740 45%  2,026,400  902,200 80%

Office Expenses:

Office Lease  501,200  402,658  98,542 20%  546,500  45,300 9%

Telephone & Internet Services  61,500  76,396  (14,896) (24%)  61,800  300 0%

Equipment Lease & Maintenance  25,000  21,315  3,685 15%  48,000  23,000 92%

Furniture & Equipment  11,000  14,353  (3,353) (30%)  14,500  3,500 32%

Office Supplies & Maintenance  114,500  112,489  2,011 2%  115,600  1,100 1%

Printing & Postage  134,500  123,918  10,582 8%  140,700  6,200 5%

Training & Education  165,000  86,859  78,141 47%  156,950  (8,050) (5%)

Travel & Transporation  230,100  159,855  70,245 31%  234,750  4,650 2%

Insurance  260,000  260,773  (773) 0%  285,100  25,100 10%

Total Office Expenses  1,502,800  1,258,615  244,185 16%  1,603,900  101,100 7%

Information Technology Systems:

Support Service & Software Contracts  437,300  450,185  (12,885) (3%)  623,900  186,600 43%

Hardware & Equipment Maintenance  62,600  11,681  50,919 81%  57,600  (5,000) (8%)

Project Consulting  85,000  78,071  6,929 8%  265,000  180,000 212%

Total IT Systems 584,900  539,937 44,963 8%  946,500  361,600 62%

Assets Depreciation  212,200  222,810  (10,610) (5%)  279,900  67,700 32%

Total Expenses $14,212,000 $13,090,795 $1,121,205 8% $16,733,100 $2,521,100 18%

* Professional fees for Investment Consulting and Actuarial Services are not new, and have been expenses to CCCERA. They are being added to the 
annual budget process in FY2020 as part of the Non-Administrative expenses budget as additional information to the Board.



2020 Annual Budget        7

2020 PROPOSED ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

2020 Proposed Administrative Budget

2019 Budget
FY2019 

Estimate
 $ Budget 

Remaining 
 % Budget 
Remaining 

2020 Proposed 
Total Budget

$ Change 
2019 Budget

% Change 
2019 Budget 

Personnel Services:

Salaries & Wages  $4,612,900 $4,655,358 $(42,458) (1%) $5,148,000 $535,100 12%

Employee Benefits & Retirement  3,727,900  3,487,124  240,776 6%  3,945,200  217,300 6%

Total Personnel Services  8,340,800  8,142,483  198,317 2%  9,093,200  752,400 9%

Operational Expenses:

Professional Services:

Audit Services  267,000  134,345  132,655 50%  101,000  (166,000) (62%)

Benefit Statements  75,000  72,000  3,000 4%  72,000  (3,000) (4%)

Disability Hearings/ Medical Reviews  150,000  48,623  101,377 68%  136,900  (13,100) (9%)

Other Professional Services  5,200  3,636  1,564 30%  45,500  40,300 775%

Total Professional Services  497,200  258,604  238,596 48%  355,400  (141,800) (29%)

Office Expenses:

Office Lease  459,700  361,986  97,714 21%  475,400  15,700 3%

Telephone & Internet Services  47,100  54,039  (6,939) (15%)  49,800  2,700 6%

Equipment Lease & Maintenance  25,000  21,315  3,685 15%  38,000  13,000 52%

Furniture & Equipment  10,000  11,290  (1,290) (13%)  14,500  4,500 45%

Office Supplies & Maintenance  106,500  103,650  2,850 3%  105,800  (700) (1%)

Printing & Postage  132,800  123,446  9,354 7%  139,500  6,700 5%

Training & Education  144,500  77,967  66,533 46%  136,450  (8,050) (6%)

Travel & Transporation  130,900  69,483  61,417 47%  120,550  (10,350) (8%)

Insurance  260,000  260,773  (773) 0%  285,100  25,100 10%

Total Office Expenses  1,316,500  1,083,947  232,553 18%  1,365,100  48,600 4%

Information Technology Systems:

Support Service & Software Contracts  311,100  288,319  22,781 7%  449,200  138,100 44%

Hardware & Equipment Maintenance  49,500  11,249  38,251 77%  39,600  (9,900) (20%)

Project Consulting  65,000  54,321  10,679 16%  260,000  195,000 300%

Total IT Systems 425,600  353,889  71,711 17%  748,800  323,200 76%

Assets Depreciation  180,700  189,735  (9,035) (5%)  218,500  37,800 21%

Total Expenses $10,760,800 $10,028,658 $732,142 7% $11,781,000 $1,020,200 9%



8 2020 Annual Budget

2020 PROPOSED NON-ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

2020 Proposed Non-Administrative Budget
Investments, Legal, and Disaster Recovery Program

2019 Budget
FY2019 

Estimate
 $ Budget 

Remaining 
 % Budget 
Remaining 

2020 Proposed 
Total Budget

$ Change 
2019 Budget

% Change 
2019 Budget 

Personnel Services:

Salaries & Wages $1,475,000 $1,374,506 $100,494 7% $1,753,700 $278,700 19%

Employee Benefits & Retirement  972,100  935,983  36,117 4%  1,029,500  57,400 6%

Total Personnel Services  2,447,100  2,310,489  136,611 6%  2,783,200  336,100 14%

Operational Expenses:

Professional Services:

* Investment Consulting  -    -    -    -    925,000  925,000 100%

* Actuarial Services  -    -    -    -    215,000  215,000 100%

Fiduciary & General Legal Counsel  398,000  191,212  206,788 52%  355,000  (43,000) (11%)

Investment Legal Counsel  150,000  132,530  17,470 12%  115,000  (35,000) (23%)

Disabilities Legal Services  78,000  34,114  43,886 56%  60,000  (18,000) (23%)

Other Professional Services  1,000  -    1,000 100%  1,000  -   0%

Total Professional Services  627,000  357,856  269,144 43%  1,671,000  1,044,000 167%

Office Expenses:

Office Lease  41,500  40,672  828 2%  71,100  29,600 71%

Telephone & Internet Services  14,400  22,357  (7,957) (55%)  12,000  (2,400) (17%)

Equipment Lease & Maintenance  -    -    -   -  10,000  10,000 100%

Furniture & Equipment  1,000  3,063  (2,063) (206%)  -    (1,000) (100%)

Office Supplies & Maintenance  8,000  8,840  (840) (10%)  9,800  1,800 23%

Printing & Postage  1,700  472  1,228 72%  1,200  (500) (29%)

Training & Education  20,500  8,892  11,608 57%  20,500  -   0%

Travel & Transporation  99,200  90,372  8,828 9%  114,200  15,000 15%

Total Office Expenses  186,300  174,668  11,632 6%  238,800  52,500 28%

Information Technology Systems:

Support Service & Software Contracts  126,200  161,866  (35,666) (28%)  174,700  48,500 38%

Hardware & Equipment Maintenance  13,100  433  12,667 97%  18,000  4,900 37%

Project Consulting  20,000  23,750  (3,750) (19%)  5,000  (15,000) (75%)

Total IT Systems 159,300  186,049  (26,749) (17%)  197,700  38,400 24%

Assets Depreciation  31,500  33,075  (1,575) (5%)  61,400  29,900 95%

Total Expenses  $3,451,200  $3,062,137  $389,063 11%  $4,952,100 $1,500,900 43%

* Professional fees for Investment Consulting and Actuarial Services are not new, and have been expenses to CCCERA. They are being added to the 
annual budget process in FY2020 as part of the Non-Administrative expenses budget as additional information to the Board.



2020 Annual Budget        9

2020 Proposed Capital Budget

Asset Purchase Cost 2020 Depreciation

2020 Capital Purchases

IT Hardware $20,000 $4,000 

Scanner Equipment 15,000 3,000 

Total 2020 Capital Purchases 35,000 7,000 

2019 and Prior Years Capital Purchases

Leasehold Improvements 139,938 14,000 

Office Furniture/Workstations 537,822 107,600 

Communication & Network Equipment 119,964 18,000 

Audio Visual Equipment 188,821 37,800 

Security Equipment 101,947 20,400 

IT Hardware & Software 375,373 75,100 

Total 2019 and Prior Years Capital Budget 1,463,864 272,900 

Total Capital Budget Purchases and Depreciation $1,498,864 $279,900 

2020 PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association



CCCERA 2020 
COMPLIANCE  

ACTIVITY PLAN 

Prepared by Wrally Dutkiewicz   

Compliance Officer   

December 2019 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#13



 

CCCERA 2020 Compliance Activity Plan 
 

1 

 
Table of Contents Page 

  

Introduction……………………………………………………………………… 2 

Scope & Mission……………………………………………………………….. 2 

Risk Assessment………………………………………………………………. 3 

Employer Audits…………………….…………………………………………. 6 

Employer Audit Process……………………………………………………… 7 

2019 Compliance Activity Recap….……………………………………….... 9 

2020 Compliance Activity Plan………………………………………………. 11 

  

  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CCCERA 2020 Compliance Activity Plan 
 

2 

Introduction 
 
The Compliance Officer is authorized to engage in internal control reviews, business activity 

monitoring, risk assessments, and procedure development to support the retirement system’s 

activities.  Also, CCCERA Compliance coordinates its activities with auditors to ensure 

compliance with CERL, PEPRA, Board of Retirement Regulations, Internal Revenue Code, IRC, 

and other government statutes. 

Compliance monitoring and reporting will be the principal tools for the Compliance Department 

to evaluate the efficacy of the CCCERA’s internal controls, compliance, governance, and risk 

management going forward through the 2020 Compliance Activity Plan calendar and beyond.  

Scope & Mission 
 

The CERL, PEPRA, and CCCERA’s policies, along with the standards published by the Society of 

Corporate Compliance and Ethics (SCCE) and The Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) provide the 

framework within which the Compliance Officer performs compliance activities to support, 

manage, and test CCCERA’s Compliance Program and to determine the priorities for compliance 

activities. The Compliance Officer prepares an annual Compliance Activity Plan (CAP) to help 

identify, measure, and prioritize potential issues related to internal controls around business 

activities and the level of risk that may exist if those controls were to become impaired or 

rendered ineffective.  The purpose of the annual CAP is to outline the work to be performed 

and is designed to cover high risk activities while limiting the scope of work to what can 

realistically be accomplished during the upcoming fiscal year. 

Compliance Monitoring and Review Process 
 
The development and implementation of updated department procedures is an ongoing goal 
and CCCERA Compliance will work with each of the department managers and advise on 
matters concerning workflow, technical applications of government code and BOR policy, and 
supervisory tools and structures. 

 
The Compliance Officer will obtain a sufficiently detailed explanation of the business process 

from CCCERA staff. This process will be documented in the working paper files. Such 

documentation may take the form of a narrative description, a flowchart depiction, or a 

combination of both when appropriate. 

 



 

CCCERA 2020 Compliance Activity Plan 
 

3 

 

The annual compliance planning process includes the following major planning activities: 

• Defining the Compliance Universe 

• Conducting a Risk Assessment 

• Preparing the Compliance Activity Plan 

• Presenting the Compliance Activity Plan 

The Compliance Program encompasses the following five stages: 

1. Planning 
2. Review & Testing 
3. Quality Assessment 
4. Reporting  
5. Follow‐up 

 
Risk Assessment  
 
The Risk Assessment for compliance activity planning is the process of systematically scoring (or 

rating) the relative impact of a variety of “risk factors.” A risk factor is an observable or 

measurable indicator of conditions or events that could adversely affect the outcome of a 

business activity. Various risk factors will be used to measure risks (such as the complexity of 

operations or regulations) or organizational vulnerability (such as weak internal controls). 



 

CCCERA 2020 Compliance Activity Plan 
 

4 

A questionnaire is completed for each business process activity to score the level of risk for 

each of the risk factors identified. Also, weights are assigned to each risk factor based on 

relative importance as determined by input from management. The final step to complete the 

Risk Assessment is to calculate the total risk score for each business process activity in order 

from highest risk score to the lowest by tabulating the information gathered from the 

questionnaires and applying the weights assigned to the risk factors. 

The Compliance Department prepares a Risk Assessment Worksheet that provides a weighted 
risk assessment score for each business activity component under review.  If a business activity 
is comprised of several functional parts, the overall risk assessment will be the average of the 
sum of the risk assessment scores for its component parts. 
 
 

The Risk Assessment Worksheet takes into consideration the following eight risk factors: 
 

Incapacitation:  
Significance of an impairment event on the ability to meet strategic and/or organizational goals and 
objectives. Amount of impact the business activity process has on the retirement system’s constituents.  

External Influence:                                                                                                           
Concern about adverse publicity; laws and regulations; customer demands; and political exposure. 

Internal Controls:                                                                                 

• The internal control structure takes into consideration the adequacy of written procedures and 
whether or not controls have been previously tested.   

• Degree of segregation of duties and responsibilities, supervision and training, planning for business 
resumption and contingency, and reconciliation controls, make exposures for this audit. 

Complexity:  

• Business process has many steps and several control points.  May include both manual and system-
based steps; 

• Complexity can increase both the probability of error and the effort required to monitor the 
business activity process. Includes complexity of federal and state laws, rules and 
regulations governing a particular program. 

Information Technology Controls:   

• Computer applications affect the accuracy and timeliness of completed work tasks, as well as the 
productivities of the staff. Information systems should process information in a secure, reliable and 
accurate manner.                                                        

• Age, condition, extent of manual user intervention, efficiency and effectiveness of the data 
processing system specific to this business activity, and the perceived impact of general 
information technology controls related to: consistent use of an acceptable systems development 
methodology (including programmer and user documentation and testing procedures), consistent 
use of an acceptable project management system, effective computer maintenance change 
controls (to assure application program changes are properly authorized, managed, and recorded), 
and effective logical access security to guard against unwarranted access and unauthorized 
changes to computer programs and/or data. 



 

CCCERA 2020 Compliance Activity Plan 
 

5 

Change:      

• Changes in operation to meet statutory, regulatory, and legal requirements, and/or to address 
organizational restructuring including modifications to manual or automated procedures such as 
increased use of technology.                                                                                              

• Changes in operations can impact the efficiency and effectiveness of the retirement system's 
performance. Criteria include changes in staff size, processing changes (manual to computerized), 
systems (input and/or output), as well as staff turnover. This area includes concerns of rapid 
growth, which includes rapid growth of personnel size and of additional programs added to an 
operational area. 

 

Risk Assessment Scoring assigns a weighting to each of the eight risk assessment factors to 
generate an Overall Risk Assessment Score.   This scoring is used to create a risk-based map of 
CCCERA’s operations over time to aid in its governance, risk, and compliance (GRC) strategic 
planning. 
 
A “risk assignment” refers to the subjective classification of risk based on judgment rather than 
observation.   A “risk assessment” refers to the assignment of risk based on observable facts, 
activities, identified threats, and empirical analysis. 
 
The focus of the “risk assignment” review is to prioritize business activities that CCCERA’s 
compliance department will review in connection with its Compliance Activity Plan.   The 
following criteria are used during the “risk assignment” assignment review: 
  

• Financial Exposure 
• Compliance – Laws and Regulations  
• Complexity of Operations  
• Public Exposure 

 
 
 

Internal Audit Assignments: 
 
In anticipation of the creation of the Internal Audit function within CCCERA, those activities that 
have been performed by Compliance that traditionally have fallen under the purview of Internal 
Audit functions, will be identified over the course of 2020 Compliance Activity Plan and affect 
transfer thereof to the Internal Auditor as reasonably determined. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CCCERA 2020 Compliance Activity Plan 
 

6 

Employer Audits: 
 
With respect to Employer Audits, similar risk assignment criteria are used to establish a priority 
review framework to plan areas of focus for employer audits.  The following chart indicates 
those employer business activities that generally fall within the employer audit scope: 
 

Control Item Control Test 

Payroll Procedures 
Review Payroll Transactions and compare district payroll register with 
data reported to CCCERA to ensure pay rates in compliance with posted 
salary information 

Payroll Data & Conveyance 
Review process for reporting payroll to CCCERA. i) Timeliness; ii) 
Validation (time keeping, vacation, sick leave, disability, overtime) 

Earn Code Classifications 
Inventory of earn code classification - i) allowable pensionable 
compensation; ii) compensation calculation - methodology 

Internal Controls/EUC 
Review District's Internal Controls WSPs - i) segregation of duties; ii) 
system access; iii) reporting levels 

Contract between CCCERA & District 
MOU & Clarifying Addendums - in compliance with BOS/BOR/CERL 
Requirements 

Correspondence Between CCCERA & 
District 

Does communication methods support SLA (Service Level Agreements)? 

Personnel Procedures 
Inventory of WSP (Written Supervisory Procedures) and match against 
regulatory & CCCERA policy requirements 

Control Item Control Test 

Enrollment Procedures 
Review District Employee new hire enrollment procedures and match 
against regulatory & CCCERA Policy Requirements i) Part-Time/Temporary 
Employees; ii) Retired Employees; iii) Independent Contractors 

Employee Classification 
Review District Employee Classification to match against reported group, 
function and eligibility 

CCCERA Policy Compliance 
Review Compliance with i) Financial Controls; ii) Administrative Controls; 
iii) Procedural Controls 

CERL Compliance Match governance and policies against regulatory requirements  

 
 
 



 

CCCERA 2020 Compliance Activity Plan 
 

7 

 
 
 

 
The 2020 Employer Audit year will be a transitional year during which the Compliance 
Department will facilitate the orientation of, and eventual transfer of, the Employer Audit 
program, to the Internal Auditor.   

 
 
 

Schedule Audit & 
Communicate 

Audit Plan

Conduct Risk 
Assessment

Conduct Entrance 
Interview

Prepare 
Information 

Request

Sign 
Confidentialty 
and Access 

Forms

Perform 
Process 

Walkthroughs

Perform the 
Audit

Deliver Draft 
Report to 

Employer & 
CCCERA

Discuss any 
Changes or 
Inaccuracies

To Report

Conduct Exit 
Interview

Employer Audit Process

Audit Committee reports out to BORPresent to CCCERA Audit Committee  
 
 
While conducting the 2020 Employer Audits, the Compliance Department will work with the 
Internal Auditor to share observations made during the analysis of each of the Employer Audit 
Scope items. Upon completion of the audit, CCCERA staff will provide to the Board a written 
report of the audit results and the conclusions of the auditor and CCCERA staff. A copy of the 
report will be provided to the employer at least 10 days prior to any Board discussion or action. 

 
Reporting  
 
At the conclusion of fieldwork for each audit, the Compliance Officer will prepare a draft report 

of significant findings and observations including any significant risk exposures and control 



 

CCCERA 2020 Compliance Activity Plan 
 

8 

issues, fraud risks, or governance issues identified during the audit. The report should be 

accurate, objective, clear, concise, constructive, complete, and timely. 

The “Audit Work-Paper Report” includes the audit objectives, the scope of audit work 

performed, an overview of the business or activity, an opinion on the adequacy of the internal 

controls, conclusions regarding significant finding and observations, and recommendations to 

management to address any issues found. The report will also acknowledge when satisfactory 

performance is determined. 

 
Follow-Up 
 

Follow‐up work is performed after the completion of an audit. It entails the Compliance Officer 

reviewing recommendations with management and determining whether the weakness in 

procedures or processes identified have been adequately corrected in accordance with the 

management response and committed timelines.  

All recommendations arising from the auditor are summarized in an audit recommendations 

file maintained by the Compliance Officer. The file is continuously updated with the 

implementation status of the recommendations. Any information obtained as part of the follow 

up process, is electronically retained in a Follow Up file. Quarterly, a formal review of the status 

of outstanding recommendations will be completed and presented to CCCERA Executive 

Management and the Audit Committee when there are recommendations outstanding that still 

need to be properly implemented. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CCCERA 2020 Compliance Activity Plan 
 

9 

2019 Compliance Activity Recap  
 
2019 Compliance Internal Control Reviews & Projects: 
 
Internal Controls Reviews • Interest Crediting 
 • Vendor Audit 
 • Tax Compliance: 

o Compensation Limits;  
o Tax Reporting: 

▪ 1099R – include basis calculations 
and taxable amount un/known; and 

▪ Form 945 submissions and tax 
remittances  

 • Investment Fee Audit;  
 • County Pensionable Compensation and 

Contribution Reporting Quality Assurance Audit; 
 

Projects • Deferred in anticipation of the creation of the 
Internal Audit Activity for 2020-2021: 

o Collaborate with CCCERA department 
managers and staff to develop Key Risk 
Indicators (KRIs) for each core business 
activity and map to codified written 
procedures; 

o Draft Request for Proposal (RFP) for an 
independent enterprise risk assessment. 

 
Procedure Review Accounting Department: 

• Receivables; 

• Payables; 

• Procedure Review – Risk Based Procedure 
Development; [Will be ongoing through 2020]; and 

• Index of Procedures 
 
 

 
 
 



 

CCCERA 2020 Compliance Activity Plan 
 

10 

2019 Employer Audits: 
 
 CCCERA compliance resources were focused on a review of the following audit scope items: 
 

• Timekeeping and Payroll Reporting 

• Employee Enrollment Procedures 

• Retiree Return to Work Monitoring  
 

The following employer audits were conducted: 
 

 

Completed 

District Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association 

District Contra Costa County In-Home Supportive Services Public Authority   

District Contra Costa County Local Agency Formation Commission 

District First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

 
 

Completed – Pending Final Report to Board 

County Department Contra Costa County Probation Department 

County Department Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 

County Department Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 

 
 

In-Progress – Report Out First Quarter 2020 Audit Committee 

County Department Contra Costa County Employment & Human Services   

County Department Contra Costa County Clerk-Recorder Elections Department 

County Department Contra Costa County Office of the Assessor 

County Department  Contra Costa County Library 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CCCERA 2020 Compliance Activity Plan 
 

11 

Compliance Activity Planned for 2020  
 
 
Sources of Areas Selected For Compliance Review 
 
Areas selected for compliance review can come from a variety of sources. These include risk 
assessment, management and employee requests, surprise audits and allegations of fraud, 
waste, and abuse.  
 
Risk must be one of the primary factors in selecting areas for compliance review. Risk for some 
aspects of CCCERA operations is higher than others for many reasons. This includes the type of 
activities, financial and operational impact to CCCERA and its members if something were to go 
wrong. Those areas of the CCCERA and its participating Employers which are high risk should 
receive more attention than those of lower risk. It should be noted, however, that areas of 
lower risk should not be ignored; rather, they should be done with less frequency than the 
higher risk areas.  
 

2020 Compliance Activity Projects: 
 

• Facilitate and collaborate on updating Accounting Procedures and Desktop Manual; 

• Review and identify Compliance Department activities to transfer to Internal Audit 
function; 

• Employer Program & Audit Guide – Finalize and transfer to Internal Audit; 

• Compliance Program Guide – Update; and 

• Compliance Activity Monitoring: aggregate department data and visually represent 
core organizational business activities for trending, tracking, and reporting purposes. 
Specifically, compliance review, monitoring, and collaborative work will focus on the 
following annual reporting activities and their supporting procedures: 

o Annual Audit; 
o Annual Valuation; 
o CAFR Preparation; and 
o Member Statements. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

CCCERA 2020 Compliance Activity Plan 
 

12 

 
 
2020 Employer Audits: 
 
  
The following employer audits are anticipated: 
 

County Department Contra Costa County District Attorney 

County Department Contra Costa County Public Works  

County Department Contra Costa County Human Resources 

County Department Contra Costa County Child Support Services 

County Department Contra Costa County Conservation and Development 

County Department Contra Costa County Veterans Service Office 

County Department Contra Costa County Animal Services 

County Department Contra Costa County Administration 

County Department Contra Costa County Treasurer - Tax Collector 

County Department Contra Costa County Counsel 

District Rodeo Sanitary District 

District Contra Costa County Fire Protection District 

 



 

 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: December 11, 2019 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Wrally Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer  

Subject: Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture Employer Audit Report 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 
The Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture is a County Department. Its staff are 
County employees and their employment and compensation are set by the County Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Between April and September 2019 an employer audit was performed on Contra Costa County 
Department of Agriculture. An onsite review was performed at the Department’s office on July 
1, 2019.  
 
The employer audit scope items include the following: 
 

• Accuracy of Payroll Information Provided to CCCERA; 

• Salaries In Accordance with Publicly Available Pay Schedules; 

• Enrollment of All Eligible Employees; 

• Pension Benefit Review; 

• Internal Revenue Code 415 Limits; 

• Retiree Return to Work Monitoring; and 

• Forfeiture of Benefits Earned or Accrued from the Commission of a Felony. 
 
Follow Up Items 
There were no follow up action items noted in the report for the Department of Agriculture.  

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#14



EMPLOYER AUDIT REPORT 

November 13, 2019 

EMPLOYER AUDIT 

Contra Costa County 

Department of Agriculture 



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

AUDIT TRANSMITTAL LETTER ................................................................................................. 1 

BACKGROUND ....................................................................................................................... 3 

SCOPE ................................................................................................................................... 5 

OBSERVATIONS AND FINDINGS ............................................................................................. 6 

ACCURACY OF PAYROLL INFORMATION PROVIDED TO CCCERA .................................................... 6 

PAYROLL AND REPORTING PROCESS AND RECEIVABLES REVIEW .................................................. 6 

INPUT FILE REVIEW ......................................................................................................................... 7 

COMPENSATION LIMITS .................................................................................................................. 7 

PAYROLL REPORTING – PENSIONABLE COMPENSATION AND CONTRIBUTION REVIEW ............... 8 

SALARIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULE ................................ 10 

ENROLLMENT OF ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES ................................................................................ 11 

PENSION BENEFIT REVIEW ................................................................................................... 13 

REVIEW OF PENSION BENEFIT CALCULATIONS............................................................................. 13 

RETIREE RETURN TO WORK MONITORING ................................................................................... 13 

FORFEITURE OF BENEFITS EARNED OR ACCRUED FROM THE COMMISSION OF A FELONY ........ 13 

INTERNAL REVENUE CODE SECTION 415 COMPLIANCE ............................................................... 13 

FOLLOW-UP ITEMS .............................................................................................................. 14 

EMPLOYER REPLY ................................................................................................................ 15 

 



Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  1 

AUDIT TRANSMITTAL LETTER 

 

 
November 13, 2019 
 
David Twa 
Contra Costa County Administrator 
651 Pine Street, 10th Floor 
Martinez, CA 94553 
 
 
RE: Employer Audit Report – Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture Pensionable 
Compensation, Contribution and Reporting Audit 
 
 
Dear Mr. Twa, 
 
Enclosed is the employer audit report of the Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
(Department of Agriculture) pensionable compensation, contribution and reporting audit, conducted 
pursuant to Government Code Section 31543.  I want to thank you and all department staff for their 
assistance in gathering all the records and documents and making them readily available during this 
audit.  This cooperation was greatly appreciated and allowed for the audit to be completed in an 
efficient manner. 
  
The Employer Audit Report is enclosed for your review. There were no follow up items noted for the 
department to address.   
 
This report will be placed on the agenda and will be presented to the CCCERA Board of Retirement Audit 
Committee at its Wednesday November 20, 2019 meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  2 

In addition, I would like to extend my gratitude to Contra Costa County payroll and human resources 
staff and the courtesy that they extended to CCCERA compliance staff during the review. Should you 
wish to discuss or have any questions regarding the items reviewed and the observations contained 
within this report, please contact me at 925-521-3960. 
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
Wrally Dutkiewicz 
Compliance Officer 
 
 
 
 

CC:   Lisa Driscoll, County Finance Director 
        Matthew Slattengren, Agricultural Commissioner 
        Roxann Crosby, Executive Secretary - Department of Agriculture 
 
     



Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  3 

BACKGROUND 
 
The Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) is a public employee retirement 
system that was established by Contra Costa County on July 1, 1945, and is administered by the Board of 
Retirement (Board) to provide service retirement, disability, death, and survivor benefits for Contra 
Costa County (County) employees and 16 other participating agencies under the California State 
Government Code, Section 31450, et. seq. (County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 or CERL) and the 
California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA).  
 
CCCERA administers the retirement benefits for the employees of Contra Costa County and participating 
District employers. Participating employers within the CCCERA retirement system provide payroll 
information and retirement contributions to fund the benefits for their employees.  CCCERA establishes 
member accounts, processes service and disability applications, calculates retirement allowances, 
prepares monthly retirement benefit payment rolls, makes adjustments to retirement benefits when 
needed and prepares tax reporting records.  
 
Retirement allowances are computed in accordance with statute using three factors: years of service, 
age at retirement, and final compensation. For Legacy (pre-PEPRA) members, final compensation is 
defined as the highest average annual compensation earnable (as defined in G.C. Section 31461) by a 
member during the last one or three consecutive years of employment depending on the member’s 
Tier, unless the member elects a different period with a higher average. For PEPRA members, final 
compensation is defined as the highest average annual pensionable compensation (as defined in G.C. 
Section 7522.34) earned by the member during a period of 36 consecutive months. 
 
The employer’s knowledge of the rules relating to membership and payroll reporting facilitates the 
employer in providing CCCERA with appropriate employee information.  Correct enrollment of eligible 
employees and correct reporting of payroll information are necessary for the accurate computation of a 
member’s retirement allowance.  
 
The Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture is a County department. Its staff are County 
employees and their employment and compensation are set by the County Board of Supervisors. The 
Department of Agriculture is responsible for conducting regulatory and service activities pertaining to 
the agricultural industry and consumers of the county, under the direction of the California Department 
of Food and Agriculture, Department of Pesticide Regulation, and Division of Measurement Standards. 
The primary purpose and objective of the Agriculture Department is the promotion and protection of 
the county's agricultural industry, environment, and citizens.1 
 
Per CCCERA records, the Department of Agriculture had approximately thirty-two (32) employees in 
fiscal year 2016-2017 and approximately twenty-eight (28) employees in fiscal year 2017-2018 with 
active memberships in CCCERA. For these employees the County reported pensionable compensation to 
CCCERA of approximately $2,096,000 for fiscal year 2016-2017 and $2,069,000 for fiscal year 2017-2018. 

                                                           
1 Agriculture / Weights & Measures – Mission Statement. Retrieved from:  https://www.contracosta.ca.gov/1542/ 
Agriculture-Weights-Measures 



Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  4 

The County submitted approximately $232,000 in employee pension contributions and $608,000 in 
employer pension contributions for fiscal year 2016-2017 and $230,000 in employee pension 
contributions and $604,000 in employer pension contributions for fiscal year 2017-2018. As of 
December 31, 2018, CCCERA had twenty-one (21) retirees and beneficiaries on record for the 
Department of Agriculture with a total paid benefit amount of approximately $1,357,000 in 2018. 
 



Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  5 

SCOPE 
 
The 2013 Pension Reform legislation granted CCCERA the authority under Government Code Section 
31543 to conduct audits of employers to ensure that employee and payroll information used in the 
calculation of retiree pension benefits is correct and verifiable.  The scope of these on-site reviews 
includes: 
 

• Correctness of retirement benefits; 
 

• Reportable compensation; 
 

• Enrollment in, and reinstatement to the system (GC 31543); 
 

• Pensionable compensation (GC 31461 and GC 7522.34); 
 

• Determine if employees convicted of certain felonies have forfeited benefits earned or accrued 
from the commission of the felony (GC 7522.72(g) and GC 7522.74(g)); 

 

• Review MOUs with respect to compensation and salary regulations (i.e. Vacation Sales, etc.); 
 

• Determine if compensation is paid to enhance a member’s retirement benefit (GC 31461(b)(1) 
and GC 7522.34(c)(1)); 

 

• Evaluate employer’s compliance with restrictions on retirees returning to work (GC 7522.56, 
I.R.S. bona fide separation and normal retirement age rules). 
 

The on-site review of the Department of Agriculture was conducted on July 1, 2019.  The review period 
encompassed active employee records and retired employee records from 2016 through 2018. 

 



Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  6 

OBSERVATIONS AND FINDINGS 
 

ACCURACY OF PAYROLL INFORMATION PROVIDED TO CCCERA 

 
➢ Scope Item 1:  The Department of Agriculture did not provide all requested timekeeping records. 

Errors in employee payroll were observed during the audit period.  
 

PAYROLL AND REPORTING PROCESS AND RECEIVABLES REVIEW 

 
Pursuant to Board of Retirement Regulations Section IV: Employer pensionable payroll and 
corresponding pension contributions are to be reported to the retirement system timely and accurately. 
(Contributions And Reporting, 2. Due Dates, 4. Employer Certification). 
 
Due Dates: 
 
Each employer shall report to the Association in a manner and frequency as determined by the Board 
sufficient for the Board to credit contributions and service to each member’s record. 
 
Unless otherwise specified, reports shall be due no later than the tenth of each month for the previous 
month’s payroll and shall be accompanied by member and employer contributions. If the tenth of the 
month falls on a weekend or holiday, the due date shall be the last working day before the tenth. 
Reports, which are unreadable or incorrect, shall not be accepted and shall be returned to the employer. 
(Emphasis added.) 
 
Reports and contributions received after the due date shall be considered late and subject to a late 
reporting penalty equal to: the prime rate in effect on the due date computed on a daily, non-
compounding basis and applied to the contributions due. 
 
➢ Observation 1: a) Of the four (4) monthly time logs, the department could not provide the log for 

April 2017 containing the monthly timekeeping summary data for sixteen (16) out of the seventeen 
(17) sample employees. Weekly timecard information is manually entered into the log. The log is the 
basis for manual timekeeping data entry into Kronos, the County’s timekeeping system.  
b) Of the requested nineteen (19) timecards for November 2016, April 2017, November 2017 and 
April 2018, only two (2) timecards were provided for sample employee ID4. The provided timecards 
are for the second and fourth week of November 2017. The Department of Agriculture provided a 
handwritten statement by the employee detailing the accrual use during the audit period.  
c) In November 2016, a difference of nine (9) vacation hours was observed between the timecards of 
sample employee ID1 and PeopleSoft; however, the monthly time log matched PeopleSoft.  
d) In April 2017, seven (7) hours of floating holiday accrual use, twenty (20) hours of overtime 
compensatory hours taken and three (3) sick hours shown in the timecards for sample employee ID10 
were not included in PeopleSoft. No monthly time log was available for review for this month. 
e) In November 2017, the monthly time log indicated that eight (8) floating holiday hours for sample 
employee ID4 were submitted late. The hours were not reflected in PeopleSoft for November 2017. 



Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  7 

While eight (8) hours of floating holiday use was reflected in PeopleSoft for December 2017, it could 
not be confirmed that the entry was for the previous month. No adjustment was processed.  
 

➢ Follow-Up to Observation 1:  The Department of Agriculture reviewed CCCERA’s observations and 
agreed that the observed differences are errors. Based on communications with the Auditor-
Controller’s office and the Department of Agriculture, employee payroll errors are only corrected for 
six (6) months after occurrence. As the observed errors exceeded the six (6) months period, they will 
not be corrected. The Department of Agriculture advised that the staff members responsible for 
payroll have implemented a new quality assurance process where a different staff member reviews 
the payroll information entered by the primary staff member. 
 

INPUT FILE REVIEW 

 
Employer Certification 
 
Each payroll and pension contribution report shall include or be accompanied by a certification, under 
penalty of perjury, as to its accuracy. The certification shall be made by a duly authorized representative 
of the employer. (Board of Retirement Regulations Section IV, 4. Employer Certification.) 
 
➢ Observation 2: None 
 

COMPENSATION LIMITS 

 
Federal and state laws place annual limits on the compensation that can be used to determine 
contributions and benefits for CCCERA plan members. 
 
Legacy Members: 
 

• The Internal Revenue Code provides for dollar limitations on benefits and contributions under 
qualified retirement plans which are adjusted annually for cost-of-living increases. 

• Members who commenced participation in CCCERA on or after January 1, 1996 are subject to 
the annual federal Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a)(17) compensation limit. 

• For CERL benefit formulas (General Tiers 1, 3, Safety Tiers A & C), the 2018 calendar year 
compensation limit was increased by the I.R.S. to $275,000 from $270,000 for calendar year 
2017. 

• Members who commenced participation in CCCERA prior to January 1, 1996 are not subject to 
the Internal Revenue Code annual compensation limit. 

 
PEPRA Members: 
 

• For new employees who commenced participation in CCCERA on or after January 1, 2013 under 
PEPRA benefit formulas (General Tiers 4,5, Safety Tiers D & E), the compensation which exceeds 
that annual pensionable compensation limit under California Government Code Section 
7522.10(c) and (d) is not included in determining benefits or contributions. 



Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  8 

• The 2018 calendar year PEPRA compensation limits are as follows: 
o For employees enrolled in Social Security – increased to $121,388. 
o For employees not enrolled in Social Security – increased to $145,666. 

• The 2017 calendar year PEPRA compensation limits are as follows: 
o For employees enrolled in Social Security – increased to $118,775. 
o For employees not enrolled in Social Security – increased to $142,530. 

 
➢ Observation 3: None 
 

PAYROLL REPORTING – PENSIONABLE COMPENSATION AND CONTRIBUTION REVIEW 

 
Compensation Earnable Applicable Law for Legacy Members 
 
"Compensation earnable" does not include, in any case, the following: 
“Payments for additional services rendered outside of normal working hours, whether paid in a lump 
sum or otherwise.” (G.C. § 31461(b)(3).) 
 
Pursuant to CCCERA’s “Compensation Earnable Policy”2, Section III.D. “Compensation Earnable” 
excludes payments for additional services rendered outside of normal working hours.  
 
Pay received for "overtime" is not included in "compensation earnable." To be included, the time for 
which compensation is received: 
 

(1) must be the normal working hours set forth in the applicable employment agreement; 
(2) must be required by the employer to be worked by the employee (as distinguished from 

voluntarily worked); and  
(3) must be ordinarily worked by all others in the same grade or classification at the same rate of 

pay during the FAS period. 
 

Pay that will be reviewed under these conditions is often described as "standby" and "on-call." 
Employers must report to CCCERA as pensionable only that pay for work that is required of and 
ordinarily served by everyone in the same grade or classification, at the same rate of pay. 
 
Pensionable Compensation Applicable Law for PEPRA members 
 
PEPRA defines "pensionable compensation" as follows: 
 
"Pensionable compensation" of a new member of any public retirement system means the normal 
monthly rate of pay or base pay of the member paid in cash to similarly situated members of the same 
group or class of employment for services rendered on a full-time basis during normal working hours, 
pursuant to publicly available pay schedules. 
 

                                                           
2 https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies 



Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  9 

Compensation that has been deferred shall be deemed pensionable compensation when earned rather 
than when paid. (Gov. Code Section 7522.34(a) and (b).) 
 
PEPRA excludes from "pensionable compensation" the following: 
 

(1) Any compensation determined by the board to have been paid to increase a member's 
retirement benefit under that system. 

(2) Compensation that had previously been provided in kind to the member by the employer or 
paid directly by the employer to a third party other than the retirement system for the benefit 
of the member and which was converted to and received by the member in the form of a cash 
payment. 

(3) Any one-time or ad hoc payments made to a member. 
(4) Severance or any other payment that is granted or awarded to a member in connection with or 

in anticipation of a separation from employment, but is received by the member while 
employed. 

(5) Payments for unused vacation, annual leave, personal leave, sick leave, or compensatory time 
off, however denominated, whether paid in a lump sum or otherwise, regardless of when 
reported or paid. 

(6) Payments for additional services rendered outside of normal working hours, whether paid in a 
lump sum or otherwise. 

(7) Any employer-provided allowance, reimbursement, or payment, including, but not limited to, 
one made for housing, vehicle, or uniforms. 

(8) Compensation for overtime work, other than as defined in Section 207(k) of Title 29 of the 
United States Code [FLSA]. 

(9) Employer contributions to deferred compensation or defined contribution plans. 
(10) Any bonus paid in addition to the compensation described in subdivision (a) [of G.C. § 7522.34]. 
(11) Any other form of compensation a public retirement board determines is inconsistent with the 

requirements of subdivision (a) [of G.C. § 7522.34]. 
(12) Any other form of compensation a public retirement board determines should not be 

pensionable compensation. (Gov. Code Section 7522.34(a) and (b).) 
 
Pursuant to CCCERA’s “Pensionable Compensation Policy”3, Section III: 
 
The CCCERA Board has determined that "Pensionable Compensation" includes "base pay." Pensionable 
compensation does not include any pay other than base pay, in accordance with Govt. Code Sections 
7522.34(c)(11) and (12). 
 
Pensionable compensation (GC 31461 and 7522.34) is to be reported to the retirement system and the 
corresponding contributions are to be reported to the retirement system. 
 
➢ Observation 4: None 

                                                           
3 https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies 

https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies


Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  10 

SALARIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULE 
 
➢ Scope Item 2: No exceptions were observed in this section. 
 
Pursuant to CCCERA’s Policy On Determining “Pensionable Compensation”4 Under PEPRA For Purposes 
Of Calculating Retirement Benefits, a "publicly available pay schedule" must meet all of the following 
requirements: 
 

1. Has been duly approved and adopted by the employer's governing body in accordance with 
requirements of applicable public meetings laws; 

2. Identifies the position title for every employee position; 
3. Shows the pay rate for each identified position, which may be stated as a single amount or as 

multiple amounts within a range; 
4. Indicates the time base, including, but not limited to, whether the time base is hourly daily, bi-

weekly, monthly, bi-monthly, or annually; 
5. Is posted at the office of the employer or immediately accessible and available for public review 

from the employer during normal business hours or posted on the employer's internet website; 
6. Indicates an effective date and date of any revisions; 
7. Is retained by the employer and available for public inspection for not less than five years; and 
8. Does not reference another document in lieu of disclosing the pay rate. 

 
 
➢ Observation 5: None 
 
 

                                                           
4 https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies 

https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies


Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  11 

ENROLLMENT OF ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES 
 

➢ Scope Item 3: No exceptions were observed in this section. 
 
1. Exclusion from Membership – By Type of Employment 
 

A. All officers and employees of the County or districts shall be members of the association as 
provided in Article 4 under Sections 31550-31567 of the County Employees’ Retirement Law of 
1937 (Gov. Code Secs. 31450, et seq. “CERL”), unless excluded from membership by this Section. 

 
B. The following employees shall be excluded from membership: 

 
i. Temporary, seasonal or independent contract employees who are employed or re-

employed for temporary service or at certain specified periods each year. 
 

ii. Intermittent or permanent-intermittent employees who are appointed to serve less 
than 80% of the full number of working hours required of regular employees or who 
actually serve less than 80% of such full number of working hours in one year as 
certified by their appointing authority. 

 
iii. Part-time employees whose service for the County or district is less than fifty (50) 

percent of the full number or working hours required of fulltime employees at that 
employer. 

 
iv. Project employees, unless the appointing authority certifies that the project is expected 

to be of one year or more in duration on a greater than part-time basis. 
 

v. Provisional employees, unless they otherwise meet the requirements for reciprocal 
benefits with other retirement systems under Article 15 of CERL. 

 
C. In making its determination regarding an employee’s inclusion in or exclusion from membership, 

the Board will not rely solely upon the term given to the type of employment. Rather, the Board 
will rely upon such additional facts such as the nature of the employment, its expected or actual 
duration, and its relationship to what is considered full-time, permanent employment. 

 
2. Exclusion from Membership – by Compensation 
 
Except as otherwise herein provided, all employees of the County or district who receive compensation 
amounting to less than one-hundred ($100) dollars per month, and in the case of employees paid on 
other than a monthly basis an average of one-hundred ($100) dollars per month for the preceding year, 
including maintenance valued according to the schedule adopted by the governing body, are hereby 
excluded and exempted from membership in the Retirement Association. Any member of the 
Retirement Association whose salary is reduced to an amount less than one-hundred ($100) dollars per 



Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  12 

month shall have the option of continuing or discontinuing his/her active membership in the 
Association. 
 
2.1 Exclusion from Membership – by Waiver 
 
Newly hired employees age 60 and older may waive membership as authorized by Gov. Code Section 
31552. Any such waiver of membership shall be effective only if it is submitted to the CCCERA Chief 
Executive Officer within 90 days of the employee’s date of hire; provided, however, that the Chief 
Executive Officer may, in his/her sole and reasonable discretion, waive the time limitation if the newly 
hired employee establishes good cause for such a waiver. 
 
3. Certifications 
 
Every employee of the County or district within the county whose employees are members of the 
Association shall, upon entry into the Association, complete a sworn statement as provided for in Gov. 
Code Section 31526(b). A certified copy of the member’s birth certificate or other evidence of birth may 
be required by the Board. 
 
It shall be the employer’s responsibility to assure compliance with this section. The Board shall assess 
the employer five hundred ($500) dollars per employee for every month or fraction thereof that the 
required certification is not submitted. The Board shall notify the employer in writing of the imposition 
of assessment at least thirty days before the assessment. 
 
➢ Observation 6: The enrollment packet for one employee hired in 2018 was not received at the time 

of the audit. The Department of Agriculture completed a new enrollment packet which was received 
by CCCERA on August 22, 2019. 

 



Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  13 

PENSION BENEFIT REVIEW 
 
➢ Scope Item 4: No exceptions were observed in this section. 
 

REVIEW OF PENSION BENEFIT CALCULATIONS 

 
a. Compensation Policies 

i. Policy On Determining “Compensation Earnable Under Assembly Bill 197 For Purposes Of 
Calculating Retirement Benefits For “Legacy” (Pre-PEPRA) Members – Adopted: 
9/10/2014; GC 31461; 

ii. Policy On Determining “Pensionable Compensation” Under PEPRA For Purposes Of 
Calculating Retirement Benefits  - Adopted: 9/10/2014; GC 7522.34; 

iii. Policy Regarding Assessment and Determination Of Compensation Enhancements – 
Adopted 11/1/2012, Amended: 3/8/2017; GC 31461(b)(1) and 7522.34(c)(1) 

 
➢ Observation 7: None 
 

RETIREE RETURN TO WORK MONITORING 

 
b. Retiree Return to Work Monitoring 

i. GC 7522.56 Retired Persons; Service and Employment Restrictions 
 
➢ Observation 8: None 
 

FORFEITURE OF BENEFITS EARNED OR ACCRUED FROM THE COMMISSION OF A FELONY 

 
c. Felony Forfeiture Monitoring and Notification – GC 7522.72(g) and GC 7522.74(g) 

 
➢ Observation 9: None 
 

INTERNAL REVENUE CODE SECTION 415 COMPLIANCE 

 
As adopted on December 8, 2010 and amended on January 9, 2013 and July 11, 2018. 
 
➢ Observation 10: None 



Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  14 

FOLLOW-UP ITEMS 
 
The following items were noted during the course of the review and require follow-up by the 
Department and CCCERA: 
 
 
The Department of Agriculture has no follow-up items. 



Contra Costa County Department of Agriculture 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  15 

EMPLOYER REPLY 
 
The following reply was received from the Department of Agriculture by CCCERA: 
 

 
 
  



 

 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: December 11, 2019 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Wrally Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer  

Subject: Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff Employer Audit Report 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 
The Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff is a County Department. Its staff are County 
employees and their employment and compensation are set by the County Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Between April and October 2019 an employer audit was performed on Contra Costa County 
Office of the Sheriff. An onsite review was performed at the Department’s office on June 27, 
2019.  
 
The employer audit scope items include the following: 
 

• Accuracy of Payroll Information Provided to CCCERA; 

• Salaries In Accordance with Publicly Available Pay Schedules; 

• Enrollment of All Eligible Employees; 

• Pension Benefit Review; 

• Internal Revenue Code 415 Limits; 

• Retiree Return to Work Monitoring; and 

• Forfeiture of Benefits Earned or Accrued from the Commission of a Felony. 
 
Follow Up Items 
The Employer Audit Report was presented to the CCCERA Audit Committee at its November 20, 
2019 meeting. 
 
The County, as the employer of the Office of Sheriff, responded to the employer audit report on 
November 8, 2019, which stated that the employer agreed with the findings and has no 
questions nor comments.  
 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#15



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 
Employer Audit Report 

December 11, 2019 
Page 2 

 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520   Phone: (925) 521-3960    Fax: (925) 521-3969   cccera.org 

 

The following items were noted during the course of the review and require follow-up by the 
Office of the Sheriff: 
 

1. Accuracy of Payroll Information Provided to CCCERA: Please advise what steps 
department payroll will take to ensure that all hours worked, and accrual use are 
reviewed, and verified when being entered into the County’s timekeeping system. 
 
A response was received on November 12, 2019 from the Office of the Sheriff that 
indicated the following actions would be taken by the Office: 
 

i. Review payroll processing regulations with staff to ensure accuracy when 
manually entering information into the County’s Timekeeping System. 
 

ii. Attempts will be made to contact the County’s Auditor-Controller’s Office timely 
should an error be discovered to ensure corrections can be made within a 
timeline set forth by the appropriate Memorandum of Understanding. 

 
2. Enrollment:  CCCERA requests that promotions from recruit to Deputy Sheriff are 

submitted as position changes going forward. 
 

In its November 12, 2019 response the Office of the Sheriff stated that the Office did not have 
the authority to contact CCCERA regarding employment changes; this is handled by the 
County’s Human Resources (HR) Department.  The Office will reach out to County HR to notify 
them of CCCERA’s request. 



EMPLOYER AUDIT REPORT 

November 13, 2019 

EMPLOYER AUDIT 

Contra Costa County 

Office of the Sheriff 



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

AUDIT TRANSMITTAL LETTER .............................................................................................................1 

BACKGROUND ...................................................................................................................................3 

SCOPE ................................................................................................................................................5 

OBSERVATIONS AND FINDINGS ..........................................................................................................6 

ACCURACY OF PAYROLL INFORMATION PROVIDED TO CCCERA .................................................................. 6 

PAYROLL AND REPORTING PROCESS AND RECEIVABLES REVIEW ................................................................ 6 

INPUT FILE REVIEW ....................................................................................................................................... 6 

COMPENSATION LIMITS ................................................................................................................................ 7 

PAYROLL REPORTING – PENSIONABLE COMPENSATION AND CONTRIBUTION REVIEW ............................. 8 

SALARIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULE ............................................. 10 

ENROLLMENT OF ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES ............................................................................................. 11 

PENSION BENEFIT REVIEW ............................................................................................................... 13 

REVIEW OF PENSION BENEFIT CALCULATIONS ........................................................................................... 13 

RETIREE RETURN TO WORK MONITORING ................................................................................................. 13 

FORFEITURE OF BENEFITS EARNED OR ACCRUED FROM THE COMMISSION OF A FELONY ....................... 13 

INTERNAL REVENUE CODE SECTION 415 COMPLIANCE ............................................................................. 14 

FOLLOW-UP ITEMS ........................................................................................................................... 15 

EMPLOYER REPLY ............................................................................................................................. 16 

 



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 

Employer Audit Report  |  1 

AUDIT TRANSMITTAL LETTER 

 

 
November 13, 2019 
 
David Twa 
Contra Costa County Administrator 
651 Pine Street, 10th Floor 
Martinez, CA 94553 
 
 
RE: Employer Audit Report – Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff Pensionable Compensation, 
Contribution and Reporting Audit 
 
 
Dear Mr. Twa, 
 
Enclosed is the employer audit report of Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff (Office of the Sheriff) 
pensionable compensation, contribution and reporting audit, conducted pursuant to Government Code 
Section 31543.  I want to thank you and all Office of the Sheriff staff for their assistance in gathering all 
the records and documents and making them readily available during this audit.  This cooperation was 
greatly appreciated and allowed for the audit to be completed in an efficient manner. 
  
The Employer Audit Report is enclosed for your review.  Contained in the report is a list of Follow-Up 
Items that were noted during the audit and for the Office of the Sheriff to address. CCCERA is in receipt 
of a written response from the Office of the Sheriff dated November 12, 2019 pertaining to the “Follow-
Up Items” indicated in the report. This response will be included in the “Final Report” which will be 
submitted to CCCERA’s Audit Committee for its review. 
  
This report will be placed on the agenda and will be presented to the CCCERA Board of Retirement Audit 
Committee at its Wednesday, November 20, 2019 meeting.  
 
 
 
 



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 

Employer Audit Report  |  2 

In addition, I would like to extend my gratitude to Contra Costa County payroll and human resources 
staff and the courtesy that they extended to CCCERA compliance staff during the review. Should you 
wish to discuss or have any questions regarding the items reviewed and the observations contained 
within this report, please contact me at 925-521-3960. 
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
Wrally Dutkiewicz 
Compliance Officer 
 
 
 
 
CC:   Lisa Driscoll, County Finance Director 
         David O. Livingston, Sheriff 
         Mary Jane Robb, Sheriff’s Chief of Management Services 
         Sandra Brown, Director of Support Services 
 
     



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  3 

BACKGROUND 
 
The Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) is a public employee retirement 
system that was established by Contra Costa County on July 1, 1945, and is administered by the Board of 
Retirement (Board) to provide service retirement, disability, death, and survivor benefits for Contra 
Costa County (County) employees and 16 other participating agencies under the California State 
Government Code, Section 31450, et. seq. (County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 or CERL) and the 
California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA).  
 
CCCERA administers the retirement benefits for the employees of Contra Costa County and participating 
District employers. Participating employers within the CCCERA retirement system provide payroll 
information and retirement contributions to fund the benefits for their employees.  CCCERA establishes 
member accounts, processes service and disability applications, calculates retirement allowances, 
prepares monthly retirement benefit payment rolls, makes adjustments to retirement benefits when 
needed and prepares tax reporting records.  
 
Retirement allowances are computed in accordance with statute using three factors: years of service, 
age at retirement, and final compensation. For Legacy (pre-PEPRA) members, final compensation is 
defined as the highest average annual compensation earnable (as defined in G.C. Section 31461) by a 
member during the last one or three consecutive years of employment depending on the member’s 
Tier, unless the member elects a different period with a higher average. For PEPRA members, final 
compensation is defined as the highest average annual pensionable compensation (as defined in G.C. 
Section 7522.34) earned by the member during a period of 36 consecutive months. 
 
The employer’s knowledge of the rules relating to membership and payroll reporting facilitates the 
employer in providing CCCERA with appropriate employee information.  Correct enrollment of eligible 
employees and correct reporting of payroll information are necessary for the accurate computation of a 
member’s retirement allowance.  
 
The Office of the Sheriff is a department of Contra Costa County. Its staff are County employees and 
their employment and compensation are set by the County Board of Supervisors. The Office of the 
Sheriff is the largest law enforcement agency in Contra Costa with over 1,100 sworn and professional 
employees who provide services to over 1,000,000 residents of Contra Costa County.1 “Responsibilities 
include unincorporated area policing, contract cities (Danville, Lafayette, and Orinda) and special 
districts, air support (helicopters), marine patrol, dispatch, investigations, coroners, county detention 
facilities, custody alternative, court security, forensic services, police academy, and Office of Emergency 
Services.” 2 
 
Per CCCERA records, the Office of the Sheriff had approximately 1,030 employees with active 
memberships in CCCERA in fiscal year 2016-2017 and 1,044 employees in fiscal year 2017-2018. For 
these employees the County reported pensionable compensation to CCCERA of approximately 

                                                           
1 Office of the Sheriff Overview. Retrieved from: http://www.cocosheriff.org/about/overview.htm 
2 Office of the Sheriff Overview. Retrieved from: http://www.cocosheriff.org/about/overview.htm 



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 

Employer Audit Report  |  4 

$85,334,000 for fiscal year 2016-2017 and $91,894,000 for fiscal year 2017-2018. The County submitted 
approximately $12,810,000 in employee pension contributions and $52,901,000 in employer pension 
contributions for fiscal year 2016-2017 and $14,078,000 in employee pension contributions and 
$55,276,000 in employer pension contributions for fiscal year 2017-2018. As of December 31, 2018, 
CCCERA had 997 retirees and beneficiaries on record for the Office of the Sheriff with a total paid 
benefit amount of approximately $68,940,000 in 2018. 



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  5 

SCOPE 
 
The 2013 Pension Reform legislation granted CCCERA the authority under Government Code Section 
31543 to conduct audits of employers to ensure that employee and payroll information used in the 
calculation of retiree pension benefits is correct and verifiable.  The scope of these on-site reviews 
includes: 
 

• Correctness of retirement benefits; 
 

• Reportable compensation; 
 

• Enrollment in, and reinstatement to the system (GC 31543); 
 

• Pensionable compensation (GC 31461 and GC 7522.34); 
 

• Determine if employees convicted of certain felonies have forfeited benefits earned or accrued 
from the commission of the felony (GC 7522.72(g) and GC 7522.74(g)); 

 

• Review MOUs with respect to compensation and salary regulations (i.e. Vacation Sales, etc.); 
 

• Determine if compensation is paid to enhance a member’s retirement benefit (GC 31461(b)(1) 
and GC 7522.34(c)(1)); and 

 

• Evaluate employer’s compliance with restrictions on retirees returning to work (GC 7522.56, 
I.R.S. bona fide separation and normal retirement age rules). 
 

The on-site review of the Office of the Sheriff was conducted on June 27, 2019.  The review period 
encompassed active and retired employee records from 2016 through 2018. 

 



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 

Employer Audit Report  |  6 

OBSERVATIONS AND FINDINGS 
 

ACCURACY OF PAYROLL INFORMATION PROVIDED TO CCCERA 

 
➢ Scope Item 1:  Errors in employee payroll were observed during the audit period.  
 

PAYROLL AND REPORTING PROCESS AND RECEIVABLES REVIEW 

 
Pursuant to Board of Retirement Regulations Section IV: Employer pensionable payroll and 
corresponding pension contributions are to be reported to the retirement system timely and accurately. 
(Contributions And Reporting, 2. Due Dates, 4. Employer Certification). 
 
Due Dates: 
 
Each employer shall report to the Association in a manner and frequency as determined by the Board 
sufficient for the Board to credit contributions and service to each member’s record. 
 
Unless otherwise specified, reports shall be due no later than the tenth of each month for the previous 
month’s payroll and shall be accompanied by member and employer contributions. If the tenth of the 
month falls on a weekend or holiday, the due date shall be the last working day before the tenth. 
Reports, which are unreadable or incorrect, shall not be accepted and shall be returned to the employer. 
(Emphasis added.) 
 
Reports and contributions received after the due date shall be considered late and subject to a late 
reporting penalty equal to: the prime rate in effect on the due date computed on a daily, non-
compounding basis and applied to the contributions due. 
 
➢ Observation 1: Sample employee ID1 used 14.67 hours of vacation accrual in April 2018 but only 

12.67 hours of vacation accrual were posted in PeopleSoft, the County’s payroll system. Accrual 
amounts were verified with department payroll which included a note on the absence report form for 
the two (2) additional hours to be posted as historical adjustment in Kronos. The noted two (2) 
additional hours of vacation accrual use were not entered into Kronos.  
 

 

INPUT FILE REVIEW 

 
Employer Certification 
 
Each payroll and pension contribution report shall include or be accompanied by a certification, under 
penalty of perjury, as to its accuracy. The certification shall be made by a duly authorized representative 
of the employer. (Board of Retirement Regulations Section IV, 4. Employer Certification.) 
 



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 

Employer Audit Report  |  7 

➢ Observation 2: The pension administration system demographic input files for 2017 contained two 
(2) enrollment entries each for twelve (12) ”Deputy-Sheriff-Recruits”, one when they were enrolled as 
recruits and one when they were promoted to “Deputy Sheriff-40 Hours” later in 2017. For 2018 
enrollment entries were observed for eight (8) Deputy Sheriffs who were originally enrolled as 
recruits in November 2017.  The change from recruit to full-time Deputy Sheriff is a promotion and 
should be submitted to CCCERA as a position change. Enrollment entries are for new hires or rehires 
when they become eligible for CCCERA membership.  

 

COMPENSATION LIMITS 

 
Federal and state laws place annual limits on the compensation that can be used to determine 
contributions and benefits for CCCERA plan members. 
 
Legacy Members: 
 

• The Internal Revenue Code provides for dollar limitations on benefits and contributions under 
qualified retirement plans which are adjusted annually for cost-of-living increases. 

• Members who commenced participation in CCCERA on or after January 1, 1996 are subject to 
the annual federal Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a)(17) compensation limit. 

• For CERL benefit formulas (General Tiers 1, 3, Safety Tiers A & C), the 2018 calendar year 
compensation limit was increased by the I.R.S. to $275,000 from $270,000 for calendar year 
2017. 

• Members who commenced participation in CCCERA prior to January 1, 1996 are not subject to 
the Internal Revenue Code annual compensation limit. 

 
PEPRA Members: 
 

• For new employees who commenced participation in CCCERA on or after January 1, 2013 under 
PEPRA benefit formulas (General Tiers 4, 5, Safety Tiers D & E), the compensation which exceeds 
that annual pensionable compensation limit under California Government Code Section 
7522.10(c) and (d) is not included in determining benefits or contributions. 

• The 2018 calendar year PEPRA compensation limits are as follows: 
o For employees enrolled in Social Security – increased to $121,388. 
o For employees not enrolled in Social Security – increased to $145,666. 

• The 2017 calendar year PEPRA compensation limits are as follows: 
o For employees enrolled in Social Security – increased to $118,775. 
o For employees not enrolled in Social Security – increased to $142,530. 

 
➢ Observation 3: For one PEPRA Safety employee compensation exceeding $142,530 and contributions 

using the full salary as basis were reported in 2017. The review showed that in PeopleSoft an off-
cycle pay check dated 12/29/2017 was processed with an adjustment. No evidence of this 
adjustment being reported to CCCERA was found in CPAS or the submitted input files. For the same 
employee compensation exceeding $145,666 was reported in 2018. Contributions were correctly 
reported based on the compensation limit. CCCERA engaged with the County to address this issue. 
The input file generation workflow was revised starting at the beginning of 2019. 



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 

Employer Audit Report  |  8 

PAYROLL REPORTING – PENSIONABLE COMPENSATION AND CONTRIBUTION REVIEW 

 
Compensation Earnable Applicable Law for Legacy Members 
 
"Compensation earnable" does not include, in any case, the following: 
“Payments for additional services rendered outside of normal working hours, whether paid in a lump 
sum or otherwise.” (G.C. § 31461(b)(3).) 
 
Pursuant to CCCERA’s “Compensation Earnable Policy”3, Section III.D. “Compensation Earnable” 
excludes payments for additional services rendered outside of normal working hours.  
 
Pay received for "overtime" is not included in "compensation earnable." To be included, the time for 
which compensation is received: 
 

(1) must be the normal working hours set forth in the applicable employment agreement; 
(2) must be required by the employer to be worked by the employee (as distinguished from 

voluntarily worked); and  
(3) must be ordinarily worked by all others in the same grade or classification at the same rate of 

pay during the FAS period. 
 

Pay that will be reviewed under these conditions is often described as "standby" and "on-call." 
Employers must report to CCCERA as pensionable only that pay for work that is required of and 
ordinarily served by everyone in the same grade or classification, at the same rate of pay. 
 
Pensionable Compensation Applicable Law for PEPRA members 
 
PEPRA defines "pensionable compensation" as follows: 
 
"Pensionable compensation" of a new member of any public retirement system means the normal 
monthly rate of pay or base pay of the member paid in cash to similarly situated members of the same 
group or class of employment for services rendered on a full-time basis during normal working hours, 
pursuant to publicly available pay schedules. 
 
Compensation that has been deferred shall be deemed pensionable compensation when earned rather 
than when paid. (Gov. Code Section 7522.34(a) and (b).) 
 
PEPRA excludes from "pensionable compensation" the following: 
 

(1) Any compensation determined by the board to have been paid to increase a member's 
retirement benefit under that system. 

(2) Compensation that had previously been provided in kind to the member by the employer or 
paid directly by the employer to a third party other than the retirement system for the benefit 

                                                           
3 https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies 



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 

Employer Audit Report  |  9 

of the member and which was converted to and received by the member in the form of a cash 
payment. 

(3) Any one-time or ad hoc payments made to a member. 
(4) Severance or any other payment that is granted or awarded to a member in connection with or 

in anticipation of a separation from employment, but is received by the member while 
employed. 

(5) Payments for unused vacation, annual leave, personal leave, sick leave, or compensatory time 
off, however denominated, whether paid in a lump sum or otherwise, regardless of when 
reported or paid. 

(6) Payments for additional services rendered outside of normal working hours, whether paid in a 
lump sum or otherwise. 

(7) Any employer-provided allowance, reimbursement, or payment, including, but not limited to, 
one made for housing, vehicle, or uniforms. 

(8) Compensation for overtime work, other than as defined in Section 207(k) of Title 29 of the 
United States Code [FLSA]. 

(9) Employer contributions to deferred compensation or defined contribution plans. 
(10) Any bonus paid in addition to the compensation described in subdivision (a) [of G.C. § 7522.34]. 
(11) Any other form of compensation a public retirement board determines is inconsistent with the 

requirements of subdivision (a) [of G.C. § 7522.34]. 
(12) Any other form of compensation a public retirement board determines should not be 

pensionable compensation. (Gov. Code Section 7522.34(a) and (b).) 
 
Pursuant to CCCERA’s “Pensionable Compensation Policy”4, Section III: 
 
The CCCERA Board has determined that "Pensionable Compensation" includes "base pay." Pensionable 
compensation does not include any pay other than base pay, in accordance with Govt. Code Sections 
7522.34(c)(11) and (12). 
 
Pensionable compensation (GC 31461 and 7522.34) is to be reported to the retirement system and the 
corresponding contributions are to be reported to the retirement system. 
 
➢ Observation 4: None 

                                                           
4 https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies 

https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies


Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  10 

SALARIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULE 
 
➢ Scope Item 2: No exceptions were observed in this section. 
 
Pursuant to CCCERA’s Policy On Determining “Pensionable Compensation”5 Under PEPRA For Purposes 
Of Calculating Retirement Benefits, a "publicly available pay schedule" must meet all of the following 
requirements: 
 

1. Has been duly approved and adopted by the employer's governing body in accordance with 
requirements of applicable public meetings laws; 

2. Identifies the position title for every employee position; 
3. Shows the pay rate for each identified position, which may be stated as a single amount or as 

multiple amounts within a range; 
4. Indicates the time base, including, but not limited to, whether the time base is hourly daily, bi-

weekly, monthly, bi-monthly, or annually; 
5. Is posted at the office of the employer or immediately accessible and available for public review 

from the employer during normal business hours or posted on the employer's internet website; 
6. Indicates an effective date and date of any revisions; 
7. Is retained by the employer and available for public inspection for not less than five years; and 
8. Does not reference another document in lieu of disclosing the pay rate. 

 
 
➢ Observation 5: None 
 
 

                                                           
5 https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies 

https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies


Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  11 

ENROLLMENT OF ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES 
 

➢ Scope Item 3: No exceptions were observed in this section. 
 
1. Exclusion from Membership – By Type of Employment 
 

A. All officers and employees of the County or districts shall be members of the association as 
provided in Article 4 under Sections 31550-31567 of the County Employees’ Retirement Law of 
1937 (Gov. Code Secs. 31450, et seq. “CERL”), unless excluded from membership by this Section. 

 
B. The following employees shall be excluded from membership: 

 
i. Temporary, seasonal or independent contract employees who are employed or re-

employed for temporary service or at certain specified periods each year. 
 

ii. Intermittent or permanent-intermittent employees who are appointed to serve less 
than 80% of the full number of working hours required of regular employees or who 
actually serve less than 80% of such full number of working hours in one year as 
certified by their appointing authority. 

 
iii. Part-time employees whose service for the County or district is less than fifty (50) 

percent of the full number or working hours required of fulltime employees at that 
employer. 

 
iv. Project employees, unless the appointing authority certifies that the project is expected 

to be of one year or more in duration on a greater than part-time basis. 
 

v. Provisional employees, unless they otherwise meet the requirements for reciprocal 
benefits with other retirement systems under Article 15 of CERL. 

 
C. In making its determination regarding an employee’s inclusion in or exclusion from membership, 

the Board will not rely solely upon the term given to the type of employment. Rather, the Board 
will rely upon such additional facts such as the nature of the employment, its expected or actual 
duration, and its relationship to what is considered full-time, permanent employment. 

 
2. Exclusion from Membership – by Compensation 
 
Except as otherwise herein provided, all employees of the County or district who receive compensation 
amounting to less than one-hundred ($100) dollars per month, and in the case of employees paid on 
other than a monthly basis an average of one-hundred ($100) dollars per month for the preceding year, 
including maintenance valued according to the schedule adopted by the governing body, are hereby 
excluded and exempted from membership in the Retirement Association. Any member of the 
Retirement Association whose salary is reduced to an amount less than one-hundred ($100) dollars per 



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 

Employer Audit Report  |  12 

month shall have the option of continuing or discontinuing his/her active membership in the 
Association. 
 
2.1 Exclusion from Membership – by Waiver 
 
Newly hired employees age 60 and older may waive membership as authorized by Gov. Code Section 
31552. Any such waiver of membership shall be effective only if it is submitted to the CCCERA Chief 
Executive Officer within 90 days of the employee’s date of hire; provided, however, that the Chief 
Executive Officer may, in his/her sole and reasonable discretion, waive the time limitation if the newly 
hired employee establishes good cause for such a waiver. 
 
3. Certifications 
 
Every employee of the County or district within the county whose employees are members of the 
Association shall, upon entry into the Association, complete a sworn statement as provided for in Gov. 
Code Section 31526(b). A certified copy of the member’s birth certificate or other evidence of birth may 
be required by the Board. 
 
It shall be the employer’s responsibility to assure compliance with this section. The Board shall assess 
the employer five hundred ($500) dollars per employee for every month or fraction thereof that the 
required certification is not submitted. The Board shall notify the employer in writing of the imposition 
of assessment at least thirty days before the assessment. 
 
➢ Observation 6: The enrollment packet for one employee hired in 2018 was not received at the time 

of the audit. The Office of the Sheriff completed a new enrollment packet which was received by 
CCCERA on September 13, 2019. 

 



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  13 

PENSION BENEFIT REVIEW 
 
➢ Scope Item 4: The department’s procedure to monitor retirees returning to work did not succeed in 

preventing an erroneous posting of hours for one retiree in fiscal year 2016-2017 and another retiree 
working excess hours over the 960-hour limit in fiscal year 2017-2018. 

 

REVIEW OF PENSION BENEFIT CALCULATIONS 

 
a. Compensation Policies 

i. Policy On Determining “Compensation Earnable Under Assembly Bill 197 For Purposes Of 
Calculating Retirement Benefits For “Legacy” (Pre-PEPRA) Members – Adopted: 
9/10/2014; GC 31461; 

ii. Policy On Determining “Pensionable Compensation” Under PEPRA For Purposes Of 
Calculating Retirement Benefits - Adopted: 9/10/2014; GC 7522.34; 

iii. Policy Regarding Assessment and Determination Of Compensation Enhancements – 
Adopted 11/1/2012, Amended: 3/8/2017; GC 31461(b)(1) and 7522.34(c)(1) 

 
➢ Observation 7: None 
 

RETIREE RETURN TO WORK MONITORING 

 
b. Retiree Return to Work Monitoring 

i. GC 7522.56 Retired Persons; Service and Employment Restrictions 
 
➢ Observation 8: a) In fiscal year 2016-2017 one (1) retiree who returned to work for the Office of the 

Sheriff appeared to exceed 960 hours by 14.25 hours. The employer-provided Kronos (County 
timekeeping system) report showed that 77 hours were entered into Kronos for the work day 
8/30/2016 instead of the seven (7) hours reported on the timecard. After subtracting the erroneously 
paid 70 hours, the fiscal year 2016-2017 total hours worked by the retiree does not exceed the 960-
hour limit. 
b) In fiscal year 2017-2018, per an annual report provided by the Auditor-Controller’s Office, one (1) 
other retiree exceeded the 960-hour limit by 66.5 hours. The Office of the Sheriff confirmed the 
occurrence and that the retiree and responsible management were advised of the exception. The 
training on County Policy which requires that annuitants do not work more than 900 hours in a fiscal 
year, was repeated. Responsible management was required to monitor hours for all retirees who 
returned to work for the Office of the Sheriff. 

 

FORFEITURE OF BENEFITS EARNED OR ACCRUED FROM THE COMMISSION OF A FELONY 

 
c. Felony Forfeiture Monitoring and Notification – GC 7522.72(g) and GC 7522.74(g) 

 
➢ Observation 9: None 
 



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 

Employer Audit Report  |  14 

INTERNAL REVENUE CODE SECTION 415 COMPLIANCE 

 
As adopted on December 8, 2010 and amended on January 9, 2013 and July 11, 2018. 
 
➢ Observation 10: None 



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  15 

FOLLOW-UP ITEMS 
 
The following items were noted during the course of the review and require follow-up by the 
Department and CCCERA: 
 
 

1. Accuracy of Payroll Information Provided to CCCERA: Please advise what steps department 
payroll will take to ensure that all hours worked, and accrual use are reviewed, and verified 
when being entered into the County’s timekeeping system. 

 
2. Enrollment: CCCERA requests that promotions from recruit to Deputy Sheriff are submitted as 

position changes going forward. 



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  16 

EMPLOYER REPLY 
 
The following reply was received from the Office of the Sheriff by CCCERA: 
 

 



Contra Costa County Office of the Sheriff 

Employer Audit Report  |  17 

 

 



 

 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: December 11, 2019 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Wrally Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer  

Subject: Contra Costa County Probation Department Employer Audit Report 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 
The Contra Costa County Probation Department is a County Department. Its staff are County 
employees and their employment and compensation are set by the County Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Between April and September 2019 an employer audit was performed on Contra Costa County 
Probation Department.  Onsite reviews were performed at each of the Department’s payroll-
producing office locations as follows: Field Services on June 20, 2019; The Ranch on June 21, 
2019; and Juvenile Hall on June 25, 2019.  
 
The employer audit scope items include the following: 
 

• Accuracy of Payroll Information Provided to CCCERA; 

• Salaries In Accordance with Publicly Available Pay Schedules; 

• Enrollment of All Eligible Employees; 

• Pension Benefit Review; 

• Internal Revenue Code 415 Limits; 

• Retiree Return to Work Monitoring; and 

• Forfeiture of Benefits Earned or Accrued from the Commission of a Felony. 
 
Follow Up Items 
The Employer Audit Report was presented to the CCCERA Audit Committee at its November 20, 
2019 meeting. 
 
The County, as the employer of the Probation Department, responded to the employer audit 
report on November 8, 2019, which stated that the employer agreed with the findings and has 
no questions nor comments. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#16



Contra Costa County Probation Department 
Employer Audit Report 

December 11, 2019 
Page 2 

 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520   Phone: (925) 521-3960    Fax: (925) 521-3969   cccera.org 

 

The following items were noted during the course of the review and require follow-up by the 
Probation Department: 

 

• Enrollment: Please advise which steps the Probation Department will take to ensure 
that complete enrollment packets for all Probation Department new hires are provided 
to CCCERA. 
 

In its November 13, 2019 response, the Probation Department stated new employees will be 
filling out the new retirement enrollment form as part of the on-boarding process and the 
Probation personnel staff will return the completed packet directly to CCCERA.  The 
Department also created a checklist for its on-boarding process that includes the completion of 
the CCCERA enrollment packet. 



EMPLOYER AUDIT REPORT 

November 13, 2019 

EMPLOYER AUDIT 

Contra Costa County 

Probation Department 



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

AUDIT TRANSMITTAL LETTER ................................................................................................. 1 

BACKGROUND ....................................................................................................................... 3 

SCOPE ................................................................................................................................... 5 

OBSERVATIONS AND FINDINGS ............................................................................................. 6 

ACCURACY OF PAYROLL INFORMATION PROVIDED TO CCCERA .................................................... 6 

PAYROLL AND REPORTING PROCESS AND RECEIVABLES REVIEW .................................................. 6 

INPUT FILE REVIEW ......................................................................................................................... 6 

COMPENSATION LIMITS .................................................................................................................. 7 

PAYROLL REPORTING – PENSIONABLE COMPENSATION AND CONTRIBUTION REVIEW ............... 7 

SALARIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULE ................................ 10 

ENROLLMENT OF ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES ................................................................................ 11 

PENSION BENEFIT REVIEW ................................................................................................... 13 

REVIEW OF PENSION BENEFIT CALCULATIONS............................................................................. 13 

RETIREE RETURN TO WORK MONITORING ................................................................................... 13 

FORFEITURE OF BENEFITS EARNED OR ACCRUED FROM THE COMMISSION OF A FELONY ........ 13 

INTERNAL REVENUE CODE SECTION 415 COMPLIANCE ............................................................... 13 

FOLLOW-UP ITEMS .............................................................................................................. 14 

EMPLOYER REPLY ................................................................................................................ 15 

 



Contra Costa County Probation Department 

Employer Audit Report  |  1 

AUDIT TRANSMITTAL LETTER 

 

 
November 13, 2019 
 
David Twa 
Contra Costa County Administrator 
651 Pine Street, 10th Floor 
Martinez, CA 94553 
 
 
RE: Employer Audit Report – Contra Costa County Probation Department Pensionable Compensation, 
Contribution and Reporting Audit 
 
 
Dear Mr. Twa, 
 
Enclosed is the employer audit report of the Contra Costa County Probation Department (Probation 
Department) pensionable compensation, contribution and reporting audit, conducted pursuant to 
Government Code Section 31543.  I want to thank you and all Probation Department staff for their 
assistance in gathering all the records and documents and making them readily available during this 
audit.  This cooperation was greatly appreciated and allowed for the audit to be completed in an 
efficient manner. 
  
The Employer Audit Report is enclosed for your review.  Contained in the report is a list of Follow-Up 
Items that were noted during the audit and for the Probation Department to address. CCCERA is in 
receipt of a written response from the Probation Department dated November 13, 2019 pertaining to 
the “Follow-Up Items” indicated in the report. This response will be included in the “Final Report” which 
will be submitted to CCCERA’s Audit Committee for its review. 
  
This report will be placed on the agenda and will be presented to the CCCERA Board of Retirement Audit 
Committee at its Wednesday, November 20, 2019 meeting.  
 
 
 



Contra Costa County Probation Department 

Employer Audit Report  |  2 

In addition, I would like to extend my gratitude to Contra Costa County payroll and human resources 
staff and the courtesy that they extended to CCCERA compliance staff during the review. Should you 
wish to discuss or have any questions regarding the items reviewed and the observations contained 
within this report, please contact me at 925-521-3960. 
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
Wrally Dutkiewicz 
Compliance Officer 
 
 
 
 
CC:   Lisa Driscoll, County Finance Director 
         Todd Billeci, County Probation Officer 
         Danielle Fokkema, Chief of Administrative Services   
         Robin Otis, Executive Secretary 
 
     



Contra Costa County Probation Department 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  3 

BACKGROUND 
 
The Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) is a public employee retirement 
system that was established by Contra Costa County on July 1, 1945, and is administered by the Board of 
Retirement (Board) to provide service retirement, disability, death, and survivor benefits for Contra 
Costa County (County) employees and 16 other participating agencies under the California State 
Government Code, Section 31450, et. seq. (County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 or CERL) and the 
California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA).  
 
CCCERA administers the retirement benefits for the employees of Contra Costa County and participating 
District employers. Participating employers within the CCCERA retirement system provide payroll 
information and retirement contributions to fund the benefits for their employees.  CCCERA establishes 
member accounts, processes service and disability applications, calculates retirement allowances, 
prepares monthly retirement benefit payment rolls, makes adjustments to retirement benefits when 
needed and prepares tax reporting records.  
 
Retirement allowances are computed in accordance with statute using three factors: years of service, 
age at retirement, and final compensation. For Legacy (pre-PEPRA) members, final compensation is 
defined as the highest average annual compensation earnable (as defined in G.C. Section 31461) by a 
member during the last one or three consecutive years of employment depending on the member’s 
Tier, unless the member elects a different period with a higher average. For PEPRA members, final 
compensation is defined as the highest average annual pensionable compensation (as defined in G.C. 
Section 7522.34) earned by the member during a period of 36 consecutive months. 
 
The employer’s knowledge of the rules relating to membership and payroll reporting facilitates the 
employer in providing CCCERA with appropriate employee information.  Correct enrollment of eligible 
employees and correct reporting of payroll information are necessary for the accurate computation of a 
member’s retirement allowance.  
 
The Probation Department is a department of Contra Costa County. Its staff are County employees and 
their employment and compensation are set by the County Board of Supervisors. The Probation 
Department operates Field Services offices located throughout the county that offer services for adults 
and juveniles.1  In addition, “the Probation Department operates four treatment programs for the youth 
of Contra Costa County, John A. Davis Juvenile Hall, The Orin Allen Youth Rehabilitation Center, Home 
Supervision and Sexual Abuse Prevention Detection and Response”.2  
 
Per CCCERA records, the Probation Department had approximately 330 employees with active 
memberships in CCCERA in fiscal years 2016-2017 and 2017-2018. For these employees the County 
reported pensionable compensation to CCCERA of approximately $23,340,000 for fiscal year 2016-2017 
and $23,980,000 for fiscal year 2017-2018. The County submitted approximately $4,008,000 in 
employee pension contributions and $16,220,000 in employer pension contributions for fiscal year 

                                                           
1 https://www.contracosta.ca.gov/703/Field-Services 
2 https://www.contracosta.ca.gov/677/Institutions 



Contra Costa County Probation Department 

Employer Audit Report  |  4 

2016-2017 and $4,124,000 in employee pension contributions and $16,195,000 in employer pension 
contributions for fiscal year 2017-2018. As of December 31, 2018, CCCERA had 393 retirees and 
beneficiaries on record for the Probation Department with a total paid benefit amount of approximately 
$19,854,000 in 2018. 



Contra Costa County Probation Department 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  5 

SCOPE 
 
The 2013 Pension Reform legislation granted CCCERA the authority under Government Code Section 
31543 to conduct audits of employers to ensure that employee and payroll information used in the 
calculation of retiree pension benefits is correct and verifiable.  The scope of these on-site reviews 
includes: 
 

• Correctness of retirement benefits; 
 

• Reportable compensation; 
 

• Enrollment in, and reinstatement to the system (GC 31543); 
 

• Pensionable compensation (GC 31461 and GC 7522.34); 
 

• Determine if employees convicted of certain felonies have forfeited benefits earned or accrued 
from the commission of the felony (GC 7522.72(g) and GC 7522.74(g)); 

 

• Review MOUs with respect to compensation and salary regulations (i.e. Vacation Sales, etc.); 
 

• Determine if compensation is paid to enhance a member’s retirement benefit (GC 31461(b)(1) 
and GC 7522.34(c)(1)); and 

 

• Evaluate employer’s compliance with restrictions on retirees returning to work (GC 7522.56, 
I.R.S. bona fide separation and normal retirement age rules). 
 

An on-site review was conducted for each of the Probation Department’s three payroll-processing 
locations, Field Services on June 20, 2019, Orin Allen Youth Rehabilitation Center on June 21, 2019 and 
Juvenile Hall on June 25, 2019.  The review period encompassed active and retired employee records 
from 2016 through 2018. 

 



Contra Costa County Probation Department 

Employer Audit Report  |  6 

OBSERVATIONS AND FINDINGS 
 

ACCURACY OF PAYROLL INFORMATION PROVIDED TO CCCERA 

 
➢ Scope Item 1:  The Probation Department did not provide all requested timekeeping records. An 

error in employee payroll was observed during the audit period. 
 

PAYROLL AND REPORTING PROCESS AND RECEIVABLES REVIEW 

 
Pursuant to Board of Retirement Regulations Section IV: Employer pensionable payroll and 
corresponding pension contributions are to be reported to the retirement system timely and accurately. 
(Contributions And Reporting, 2. Due Dates, 4. Employer Certification). 
 
Due Dates: 
 
Each employer shall report to the Association in a manner and frequency as determined by the Board 
sufficient for the Board to credit contributions and service to each member’s record. 
 
Unless otherwise specified, reports shall be due no later than the tenth of each month for the previous 
month’s payroll and shall be accompanied by member and employer contributions. If the tenth of the 
month falls on a weekend or holiday, the due date shall be the last working day before the tenth. 
Reports, which are unreadable or incorrect, shall not be accepted and shall be returned to the employer. 
(Emphasis added.) 
 
Reports and contributions received after the due date shall be considered late and subject to a late 
reporting penalty equal to: the prime rate in effect on the due date computed on a daily, non-
compounding basis and applied to the contributions due. 
 
➢ Observation 1: a) The Probation Department was not able to provide November 2016 timecards for 

four (4) sample employees.   
b) Sample employee ID8 worked 0.67 hours of overtime in November 2016 that was erroneously 
entered as holiday comp hours earned into PeopleSoft, the County’s payroll system.  
 

 

INPUT FILE REVIEW 

 
Employer Certification 
 
Each payroll and pension contribution report shall include or be accompanied by a certification, under 
penalty of perjury, as to its accuracy. The certification shall be made by a duly authorized representative 
of the employer. (Board of Retirement Regulations Section IV, 4. Employer Certification.) 
 
➢ Observation 2:  None. 



Contra Costa County Probation Department 

Employer Audit Report  |  7 

 

COMPENSATION LIMITS 

 
Federal and state laws place annual limits on the compensation that can be used to determine 
contributions and benefits for CCCERA plan members. 
 
Legacy Members: 
 

• The Internal Revenue Code provides for dollar limitations on benefits and contributions under 
qualified retirement plans which are adjusted annually for cost-of-living increases. 

• Members who commenced participation in CCCERA on or after January 1, 1996 are subject to 
the annual federal Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a)(17) compensation limit. 

• For CERL benefit formulas (General Tiers 1, 3, Safety Tiers A & C), the 2018 calendar year 
compensation limit was increased by the I.R.S. to $275,000 from $270,000 for calendar year 
2017. 

• Members who commenced participation in CCCERA prior to January 1, 1996 are not subject to 
the Internal Revenue Code annual compensation limit. 

 
PEPRA Members: 
 

• For new employees who commenced participation in CCCERA on or after January 1, 2013 under 
PEPRA benefit formulas (General Tiers 4, 5, Safety Tiers D & E), the compensation which exceeds 
that annual pensionable compensation limit under California Government Code Section 
7522.10(c) and (d) is not included in determining benefits or contributions. 

• The 2018 calendar year PEPRA compensation limits are as follows: 
o For employees enrolled in Social Security – increased to $121,388. 
o For employees not enrolled in Social Security – increased to $145,666. 

• The 2017 calendar year PEPRA compensation limits are as follows: 
o For employees enrolled in Social Security – increased to $118,775. 
o For employees not enrolled in Social Security – increased to $142,530. 

 
➢ Observation 3:  None. 
 

PAYROLL REPORTING – PENSIONABLE COMPENSATION AND CONTRIBUTION REVIEW 

 
Compensation Earnable Applicable Law for Legacy Members 
 
"Compensation earnable" does not include, in any case, the following: 
“Payments for additional services rendered outside of normal working hours, whether paid in a lump 
sum or otherwise.” (G.C. § 31461(b)(3).) 
 



Contra Costa County Probation Department 

Employer Audit Report  |  8 

Pursuant to CCCERA’s “Compensation Earnable Policy”3, Section III.D. “Compensation Earnable” 
excludes payments for additional services rendered outside of normal working hours.  
 
Pay received for "overtime" is not included in "compensation earnable." To be included, the time for 
which compensation is received: 
 

(1) must be the normal working hours set forth in the applicable employment agreement; 
(2) must be required by the employer to be worked by the employee (as distinguished from 

voluntarily worked); and  
(3) must be ordinarily worked by all others in the same grade or classification at the same rate of 

pay during the FAS period. 
 

Pay that will be reviewed under these conditions is often described as "standby" and "on-call." 
Employers must report to CCCERA as pensionable only that pay for work that is required of and 
ordinarily served by everyone in the same grade or classification, at the same rate of pay. 
 
Pensionable Compensation Applicable Law for PEPRA members 
 
PEPRA defines "pensionable compensation" as follows: 
 
"Pensionable compensation" of a new member of any public retirement system means the normal 
monthly rate of pay or base pay of the member paid in cash to similarly situated members of the same 
group or class of employment for services rendered on a full-time basis during normal working hours, 
pursuant to publicly available pay schedules. 
 
Compensation that has been deferred shall be deemed pensionable compensation when earned rather 
than when paid. (Gov. Code Section 7522.34(a) and (b).) 
 
PEPRA excludes from "pensionable compensation" the following: 
 

(1) Any compensation determined by the board to have been paid to increase a member's 
retirement benefit under that system. 

(2) Compensation that had previously been provided in kind to the member by the employer or 
paid directly by the employer to a third party other than the retirement system for the benefit 
of the member and which was converted to and received by the member in the form of a cash 
payment. 

(3) Any one-time or ad hoc payments made to a member. 
(4) Severance or any other payment that is granted or awarded to a member in connection with or 

in anticipation of a separation from employment, but is received by the member while 
employed. 

(5) Payments for unused vacation, annual leave, personal leave, sick leave, or compensatory time 
off, however denominated, whether paid in a lump sum or otherwise, regardless of when 
reported or paid. 

                                                           
3 https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies 



Contra Costa County Probation Department 

Employer Audit Report  |  9 

(6) Payments for additional services rendered outside of normal working hours, whether paid in a 
lump sum or otherwise. 

(7) Any employer-provided allowance, reimbursement, or payment, including, but not limited to, 
one made for housing, vehicle, or uniforms. 

(8) Compensation for overtime work, other than as defined in Section 207(k) of Title 29 of the 
United States Code [FLSA]. 

(9) Employer contributions to deferred compensation or defined contribution plans. 
(10) Any bonus paid in addition to the compensation described in subdivision (a) [of G.C. § 7522.34]. 
(11) Any other form of compensation a public retirement board determines is inconsistent with the 

requirements of subdivision (a) [of G.C. § 7522.34]. 
(12) Any other form of compensation a public retirement board determines should not be 

pensionable compensation. (Gov. Code Section 7522.34(a) and (b).) 
 
Pursuant to CCCERA’s “Pensionable Compensation Policy”4, Section III: 
 
The CCCERA Board has determined that "Pensionable Compensation" includes "base pay." Pensionable 
compensation does not include any pay other than base pay, in accordance with Govt. Code Sections 
7522.34(c)(11) and (12). 
 
Pensionable compensation (GC 31461 and 7522.34) is to be reported to the retirement system and the 
corresponding contributions are to be reported to the retirement system. 
 
➢ Observation 4: None. 

                                                           
4 https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies 

https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies


Contra Costa County Probation Department 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  10 

SALARIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULE 
 
➢ Scope Item 2: No exceptions were observed in this section. 
 
Pursuant to CCCERA’s Policy On Determining “Pensionable Compensation”5 Under PEPRA For Purposes 
Of Calculating Retirement Benefits, a "publicly available pay schedule" must meet all of the following 
requirements: 
 

1. Has been duly approved and adopted by the employer's governing body in accordance with 
requirements of applicable public meetings laws; 

2. Identifies the position title for every employee position; 
3. Shows the pay rate for each identified position, which may be stated as a single amount or as 

multiple amounts within a range; 
4. Indicates the time base, including, but not limited to, whether the time base is hourly daily, bi-

weekly, monthly, bi-monthly, or annually; 
5. Is posted at the office of the employer or immediately accessible and available for public review 

from the employer during normal business hours or posted on the employer's internet website; 
6. Indicates an effective date and date of any revisions; 
7. Is retained by the employer and available for public inspection for not less than five years; and 
8. Does not reference another document in lieu of disclosing the pay rate. 

 
 
➢ Observation 5: None. 
 
 

                                                           
5 https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies 

https://www.cccera.org/governance-and-policies


Contra Costa County Probation Department 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  11 

ENROLLMENT OF ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES 
 

➢ Scope Item 3: CCCERA did not receive all expected Probation Department enrollment packets for the 
audit period. 

 
1. Exclusion from Membership – By Type of Employment 
 

A. All officers and employees of the County or districts shall be members of the association as 
provided in Article 4 under Sections 31550-31567 of the County Employees’ Retirement Law of 
1937 (Gov. Code Secs. 31450, et seq. “CERL”), unless excluded from membership by this Section. 

 
B. The following employees shall be excluded from membership: 

 
i. Temporary, seasonal or independent contract employees who are employed or re-

employed for temporary service or at certain specified periods each year. 
 

ii. Intermittent or permanent-intermittent employees who are appointed to serve less 
than 80% of the full number of working hours required of regular employees or who 
actually serve less than 80% of such full number of working hours in one year as 
certified by their appointing authority. 

 
iii. Part-time employees whose service for the County or district is less than fifty (50) 

percent of the full number or working hours required of fulltime employees at that 
employer. 

 
iv. Project employees, unless the appointing authority certifies that the project is expected 

to be of one year or more in duration on a greater than part-time basis. 
 

v. Provisional employees, unless they otherwise meet the requirements for reciprocal 
benefits with other retirement systems under Article 15 of CERL. 

 
C. In making its determination regarding an employee’s inclusion in or exclusion from membership, 

the Board will not rely solely upon the term given to the type of employment. Rather, the Board 
will rely upon such additional facts such as the nature of the employment, its expected or actual 
duration, and its relationship to what is considered full-time, permanent employment. 

 
2. Exclusion from Membership – by Compensation 
 
Except as otherwise herein provided, all employees of the County or district who receive compensation 
amounting to less than one-hundred ($100) dollars per month, and in the case of employees paid on 
other than a monthly basis an average of one-hundred ($100) dollars per month for the preceding year, 
including maintenance valued according to the schedule adopted by the governing body, are hereby 
excluded and exempted from membership in the Retirement Association. Any member of the 
Retirement Association whose salary is reduced to an amount less than one-hundred ($100) dollars per 



Contra Costa County Probation Department 

Employer Audit Report  |  12 

month shall have the option of continuing or discontinuing his/her active membership in the 
Association. 
 
2.1 Exclusion from Membership – by Waiver 
 
Newly hired employees age 60 and older may waive membership as authorized by Gov. Code Section 
31552. Any such waiver of membership shall be effective only if it is submitted to the CCCERA Chief 
Executive Officer within 90 days of the employee’s date of hire; provided, however, that the Chief 
Executive Officer may, in his/her sole and reasonable discretion, waive the time limitation if the newly 
hired employee establishes good cause for such a waiver. 
 
3. Certifications 
 
Every employee of the County or district within the county whose employees are members of the 
Association shall, upon entry into the Association, complete a sworn statement as provided for in Gov. 
Code Section 31526(b). A certified copy of the member’s birth certificate or other evidence of birth may 
be required by the Board. 
 
It shall be the employer’s responsibility to assure compliance with this section. The Board shall assess 
the employer five hundred ($500) dollars per employee for every month or fraction thereof that the 
required certification is not submitted. The Board shall notify the employer in writing of the imposition 
of assessment at least thirty days before the assessment. 
 
➢ Observation 6: CCCERA did not receive enrollment packets for two (2) Probation Department 

employees hired in 2017 and for four (4) Probation Department employees hired in 2018. In addition, 
CCCERA received three (3) incomplete Probation Department enrollment packets in 2017 and 2018 
that were missing the employer certification. The Probation Department advised that four (4) of the 
six (6) identified employees no longer work for Contra Costa County. The remaining two (2) 
enrollment packets and the previously incomplete packets will be provided to CCCERA by the 
department. 
The employer certifications for the three (3) incomplete enrollment packets were received by CCCERA 
on November 12, 2019.  The Probation Department completed new enrollment packets for the two 
employees who still work for the department of which CCCERA has received one on November 6. The 
other packet has not been received.



Contra Costa County Probation Department 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  13 

PENSION BENEFIT REVIEW 
 
➢ Scope Item 4: No exceptions were observed in this section. 
 

REVIEW OF PENSION BENEFIT CALCULATIONS 

 
a. Compensation Policies 

i. Policy On Determining “Compensation Earnable Under Assembly Bill 197 For Purposes Of 
Calculating Retirement Benefits For “Legacy” (Pre-PEPRA) Members – Adopted: 
9/10/2014; GC 31461; 

ii. Policy On Determining “Pensionable Compensation” Under PEPRA For Purposes Of 
Calculating Retirement Benefits  - Adopted: 9/10/2014; GC 7522.34; 

iii. Policy Regarding Assessment and Determination Of Compensation Enhancements – 
Adopted 11/1/2012, Amended: 3/8/2017; GC 31461(b)(1) and 7522.34(c)(1) 

 
➢ Observation 7: None. 
 

RETIREE RETURN TO WORK MONITORING 

 
b. Retiree Return to Work Monitoring 

i. GC 7522.56 Retired Persons; Service and Employment Restrictions 
 
➢ Observation 8: None. 

 

FORFEITURE OF BENEFITS EARNED OR ACCRUED FROM THE COMMISSION OF A FELONY 

 
c. Felony Forfeiture Monitoring and Notification – GC 7522.72(g) and GC 7522.74(g) 

 
➢ Observation 9: None. 
 

INTERNAL REVENUE CODE SECTION 415 COMPLIANCE 

 
As adopted on December 8, 2010 and amended on January 9, 2013 and July 11, 2018. 
 
➢ Observation 10: None. 



Contra Costa County Probation Department 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  14 

FOLLOW-UP ITEMS 
 
The following items were noted during the course of the review and require follow-up by the 
Department and CCCERA: 
 
 

1. Enrollment:  Please advise which steps the Probation Department will take to ensure that 
complete enrollment packets for all Probation Department new hires are provided to CCCERA. 



Contra Costa County Probation Department 
 

Employer Audit Report  |  15 

EMPLOYER REPLY 
 
The following reply was received from the Probation Department by CCCERA: 
 

 
 



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#18a.









> > Contents 1

APRIL 14TH & 15TH, 2020
WESTIN ST. FRANCIS HOTEL 

SAN FRANCISCO

CELEBRATING 

15 YEARS

info@pensionbridge.com | Florida Office: (561) 455-2729 | New York Office: (516) 818-7989

THE ANNUAL
2020

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date12/11/19Agenda Item#18b.



2

The Pension Bridge Annual Conference provides the highest level of education 
and networking to the institutional investment community. A mix of Public Funds, 
Corporate Funds, Foundations, Endowments, Union Funds, Taft-Hartley Funds, Family 
Offices, Sovereign Wealth Funds, Consultants and Investment Managers will come 
together for this exclusive event.

The Pension Bridge Annual provides the industry’s only controlled attendance 
structured event. This helps Pension Bridge to maintain the best conference ratio 
in the industry. There will be approximately 250 Pension Fund Representatives 
and Non-Discretionary Consultants in attendance. We have allowed for only 110 
Investment Manager Firms. This better than 2:1 ratio, combined with participation 
from the most influential industry figures, creates a more enjoyable environment  
for all.

OUR EVENT FOCUS 

The focus at 2020’s event will be capital preservation while identifying the key reward 
drivers for generating consistent returns. Learn from the experts about the most 
important trends, challenges, opportunities and strategies to attack the long-awaited 
cycle contraction that will shape our industry for the immediate and long-term future. 
We remain in a challenging investment environment that is fully valued with a high-
risk profile.  The Pension Bridge Annual will uncover various structural transformations 
and investment ideas that will be beneficial for long-term fiscal sustainability.  

We will also focus on climate change and technological innovation which will both 
continue to have a transformational impact not only on markets and investments, but 
on every aspect of our lives.

THE PENSION BRIDGE ANNUAL HAS TWO GOALS IN MIND 

First is to provide the highest level of education with the top speaker faculty. This 
highly regarded group will bring forth influential insights and concepts. The second 
goal is to help build relationships between the pension plans, consultants and 
investment managers. We have provided the best possible environment for this event 
which is designed to be conducive for networking. We will cap off the event with 
a fun and enjoyable networking outing necessary for maintaining relationships and 
connecting with your peers and prospective business contacts.

We look forward to a strong event and a very productive one from both an educational 
and relationship perspective. We have structured this conference in a manner that will 
be most beneficial for you. We hope that you will join us to be amongst your industry 
peers to learn about the most up-to-date insights, investment strategies and trends.

THE PENSION BRIDGE ANNUAL
April 14th & 15th, 2020  |  Westin St. Francis Hotel, San Francisco



3

KEY QUESTIONS WE WILL ADDRESS

 • What are the Best Strategies and Approaches for Downside Protection during a Period 
of Market Stress?

 • Managing Drawdown Risk, Liquidity Risk, Leverage Risk and More

 • Addressing Climate Change Impact, Risks and Investment Opportunities

 • Which Hedge Fund Strategies will provide the Best Downside Protection during the 
Next Market Downturn?

 • How can a Multi-Asset Approach help you Manage Drawdown Risk?

 • Benefiting from Risk Parity for the Downturn and Understanding its Hidden Drawbacks

 • Where can you find Pockets of Opportunity and Relative Value in the Credit Space?

 • Incorporating Artificial Intelligence into Investment Decision-Making and Portfolio 
Management

 • What are the Investment Implications of Disruptive Change and how can you Benefit?

 • Developing a Cybersecurity Risk Management Strategy—Staff Education and Best 
Practices

 • Biggest Risks of Late Cycle Investing in Private Equity and how to Navigate Successfully

 • Which Socio/Demographic Trends you can Benefit from in Real Estate? Most Resilient 
Sectors?

 • Distressed Opportunities in BBB-Rated Bonds, Corporate Debt, European Debt and More

 • Best Opportunities and Greatest Risks for Unconstrained Fixed Income

 • The Advantages of Fixed Income Factor Investing as a Credit Diversifier

 • Will China’s Debt Problem and Tariffs Cause a Hard Landing?

 • Currency Risk – to Hedge or Not to Hedge?

 • Most Promising Areas for Impact Investing in Emerging and Developed Markets

 • How Alternative Risk Premia can show Little or No Correlation to a 60/40 or Hedge 
Fund Portfolio

 • Most Attractive Sectors and Geographies in Infrastructure while taking Interest Rates 
into Consideration

 • Insights from Impactful CIOs on Risks, Allocations, Positioning for the Downturn and More

In addition to the listed themes above, we will be covering many more challenging issues that are 
crucial to the investment decision making process during these uncertain economic times. We will 
learn from the best about how to adapt in our industry which is always evolving and transforming.



4

THE ANNUAL  
2020

  7:00 AM – BREAKFAST  6 

8:00 AM – OPENING REMARKS 6 

8:05 AM – KEYNOTE SPEAKER 6

8:35 AM – KEYNOTE SPEAKER – MACROECONOMIC VIEW 6 

9:05 AM –  ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE IN ASSET MANAGEMENT AND BENEFITING  
FROM DISRUPTIVE INNOVATION INVESTMENT 6

  9:55 AM – REFRESHMENT BREAK 7

10:25 AM – ASSET ALLOCATION AND RISK MANAGEMENT 7

11:15 AM – RISK MITIGATING STRATEGIES 8

11:50 AM – RISK PARITY 9

  12:25 PM – LUNCH 9

1:35 PM – UNCONSTRAINED FIXED INCOME 9

2:20 PM – FIXED INCOME FACTOR INVESTING 10

   2:50 PM – REFRESHMENT BREAK 10

3:20 PM –  CLIMATE CHANGE IMPACT, RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES  
IN THE INVESTMENT PROCESS 10 

4:05 PM – CYBERSECURITY 11

4:20 PM – IMPACT INVESTING 12

   4:50 PM – COCKTAIL RECEPTION 12

6:05 PM – COCKTAIL RECEPTION CONCLUDES  12

TUESDAY, APRIL 14TH



5

   7:00 AM – BREAKFAST 13

8:00 AM – EMERGING MARKETS 13

8:40 AM – CURRENCY RISK – TO HEDGE OR NOT TO HEDGE? 13

8:55 AM – MULTI-ASSET INVESTING 14

9:25 AM – ALTERNATIVE RISK PREMIA 14

   10:00 AM – REFRESHMENT BREAK 15

10:30 AM – HEDGE FUNDS 15

11:20 AM – CREDIT STRATEGIES 16

12:05 PM – DISTRESSED INVESTING – OPPORTUNISTIC AND SPECIAL SITUATIONS 17

   12:40 PM – LUNCH 17

1:45 PM – REAL ESTATE 17

2:30 PM – INFRASTRUCTURE 18

   3:05 PM – REFRESHMENT BREAK 19

3:30 PM – PRIVATE EQUITY 19

4:15 PM – CIO ROUNDTABLE 19

5:05 PM – CONFERENCE CONCLUDES 20

5:05 PM – WRISTBANDS FOR NETWORKING EVENT HANDED OUT IN THE CONFERENCE ROOM 20

   6:00 PM – 9:00 PM – NETWORKING EVENT, TBD 20

5:45 PM – 8:45 PM WINE TASTING AND DINNER NETWORKING EVENT 20

WEDNESDAY,  APRIL 15TH Agenda



6 > > Contents

  7:00 AM – BREAKFAST

 8:00 AM – OPENING REMARKS

8:05 AM – KEYNOTE SPEAKER

8:35 AM – KEYNOTE SPEAKER – MACROECONOMIC VIEW

 • Would you say we have an Everything Bubble or is it Isolated?

 • Corporate Debt Growth for Financial Engineering – Outlook for Defaults

 • Are we seeing a Bubble in BBB Bonds? What will happen to BBB during the Upcoming Recession?  

 • Algos and Passive Investment as a Market Risk

 • Which Country’s High Debt and Risks pose the Biggest Threat? Does that put the EU and Euro at Risk?

 • China – Tariffs, Slower Growth, Debt Levels, Leverage and Real Estate Bubble

 • Japan’s Demographics and Debt – what might be the Far-Reaching Effects?

 • What Countries have the Most Unfavorable Demographics Globally?

 • Which are the Shakier Emerging Market Countries that have High Debt that can be Hurt by a Strong 
Dollar?

 • What are your Expectations for Inflation/Deflation?

 • How do you think about Derivatives Risk?

 • What are your Expectations for Equities and Bonds?

 • Where have you seen the Most Speculative Excess or Froth in the Markets?

 • What is the Single Largest Risk Factor? Next Black Swan?

 • What is the Likelihood that the Equity/Bond Correlation will Shift During the Next Extended Equity 
Decline?

 • What are the Most Appealing Investments in this Environment?

9:05 AM –  ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE IN ASSET MANAGEMENT AND BENEFITING  
FROM DISRUPTIVE INNOVATION INVESTMENT

(A) ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE 

 • Why should AI be on a Plan Sponsor’s Radar?

 • What are the most Impactful Ways that Artificial intelligence and Machine Learning will Transform 
the Financial Services Industry and Investment Decision Making Process? What are the Long-Term 
Implications for Investment Professionals?

 • Where is the Technology being Deployed? How can CIOs use Technology to Improve their Research and 
Portfolio Management Processes?

TUESDAY, APRIL 14TH — Westin St. Francis Hotel, San Francisco



> > Contents 7

 • What are the Most Widely-Adopted Techniques, Models and Algorithms in Recent A.I. Advancements 
that you use? How do you Incorporate these Solutions?

 • Is Data Quality your Biggest Barrier to the Adoption and Deployment of Machine Learning? 

 • What are the Industries in China that will Benefit from their Recent Artificial Intelligence Patent Surge?

 • What are your Most Useful Technology Tips that may help to Boost Future Returns?

 • What is a Concrete Example of how a Highly Configurable System can make life easier for Asset 
Owners?

 • How can A.I. result in Better Executions, Lower Transaction Costs and Faster Investment of New Cash 
Flows for Fixed Income? Have you Integrated this Technology Yet?

 • How will Robotics take Operational Efficiency to the Next Level?

 • How can Investors Truly Evaluate a Manager who claims to use A.I.? What are the Risks you need to 
know?

(B) INVESTMENT IMPLICATIONS OF DISRUPTIVE CHANGE

 • How will Blockchain Transform the Capital Markets? How Impactful and Disruptive will Blockchain 
Technology be? 

 • What Industries can Benefit from Blockchain and how should you Invest in this Innovation for Strong 
Returns?

 • What are the Possible Threats to Blockchain Development? What are Regulatory Issues and Potential 
Risks Arising from the New Technology?

 • Where do you see Opportunities in Frictionless Value Transfer? 

 • Impact from Autonomous Vehicles and Mobility as a Service, (MaaS) – Who are the Potential Winners?

 • Where will the Opportunities be in Life Sciences and Genome Editing?

 • Do you see Battery Storage in the Energy Space as an Investment Opportunity for Outsized Returns?

 • Which Industries will Benefit the Most from 3D Printing?

 • Which Industries do you see the Biggest Opportunity for Internet of Things? What are some Examples 
of IoT for Smart Cities? Healthcare Sector?

 • What are the Obstacles to Success in these Disruptive Technologies?

  9:55 AM – REFRESHMENT BREAK

10:25 AM – ASSET ALLOCATION AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(A) ASSET ALLOCATION
 • Is the Asset Allocation Decision Primarily Return Focused or Risk Focused or Balanced?

 • Do you experience a Stumbling Point of Staying Committed to a Risk Allocation-Based Approach in an 
Environment where Balance and Diversification have Not Kept Up with Equity-Centric Approaches over 
the past 10+ Years?

 • Is a Static Asset Allocation Policy a Problem for Risk Management? Have you considered  
Economic Regime-Based or Dynamic Asset Allocation as an Enhancement? Is this Feasible?

 • What has Worked and Not Worked in your Asset Allocation relative to Expectations?

 • Has the Risk of a Large Drawdown Impacted your Asset Allocation?



8 > > Contents

 • What Changes are you making in your Asset Allocation, if any? What were your most Recent Changes?

 • Do you expect to meet your Actuarial Targets in the Short/Long Term?

(B) RISK MANAGEMENT

 • What Risks are you Most Concerned about Today and how are you addressing them?

 • How do you Manage Drawdown Risk in a Portfolio with High Equity Factor Risks? Are we still too Over-
Reliant on Equities?

 • Understanding Asset Class Correlation and Behavior Risk when Correlations Change

 • How does Stress Testing or Scenario Analysis factor into your Process? Does Illiquidity Risk play an 
Important Role?

 • How do you Manage Leverage Risks?

 • From a Risk Perspective, What Keeps You Up at Night?

(C) RISK CULTURE

 • Describe your Risk Culture and how it’s Evolved – how well is Risk Management Integrated into your 
Investment Decision-Making Process?

 • What Challenges do you have in Ensuring a Robust Risk Management Practice at your Organization?

 • How do you Communicate your Risk Tolerances with your Board and Managers? How Frequently?

 • How do Staff Utilize Risk Reports for Investment Decision Making? Are Risk Reports Useful for Macro 
Decisions such as Tactical Allocations?

 • What should Boards/Organizations Consider when Building a Risk Culture?

11:15 AM – RISK MITIGATING STRATEGIESR

 • Understanding Tail Risk Frequency, Severity and Impact

 • Understanding the Value of Risk Mitigating Strategies – why is it Important to Improve your Risk/Return 
Profile Now? What Risks should be Hedged?

 • Why should this be its Own Bucket or Asset Class? What Type of Allocation is Warranted?

 • What are the Different Asset Classes and Strategies of Risk Mitigating Strategies? Expectations for each 
Approach?

 • What are the Merits of an Option Overlay Strategy In Lieu of Owning a Tail Risk Hedge?

 • What are the Trend or Momentum Following Strategies that you Prefer for Downside Protection?

 • Why is Global Macro the Ideal Hedge Fund Allocation for Diversification and Decreasing the Depth of 
Drawdowns?

 • How has Managed Futures Performed During Periods of Market Stress or Crisis Events?

 • Long Duration U.S. Treasuries as a Diversifier in Extreme Market Conditions

 • Building a Tactical Portfolio using Futures to Reduce Tail Losses and Enjoy Larger Gains 

 • Put Options as Insurance

 • Using Information from the Derivatives Markets to assess Stress Points – where we are seeing Tail Risks 
Building?



> > Contents 9

 • Systematic Risk Premia Allocations and Systematic Multi-Strategy Funds – does it Enhance Performance 
Outcomes? Are Short Track Records and Wide Variations in Products Concerning for Trend Risk Premia?

 • Are there Alternative Ways to Deal with Equity Risk? How Defensive are these Strategies?

 • Cost of Implementation as an Obstacle - how do you Minimize it?

11:50 AM – RISK PARITY

 • How can Risk Parity Lower your Risk Profile?

 • Does Risk Parity Make Sense Now if we Expect Low Market Returns in the Future?

 • How did Risk Parity Perform during the last Financial Crisis Compared to other Asset Mix Models? 
Would you Expect Similar or Different Results for the Upcoming Downturn?

 • What are the Hidden Risks and Drawbacks of Risk Parity Portfolios?

 • Do you worry about a Correlation Shift when Bonds could Become Less Likely to Protect against a 
Large Drawdown in Equities?

 • Is there an Over-Reliance on Bonds with Current Valuations? Should we be Worried about Leverage or 
Leveraging the Inappropriate Assets?

 • Commodities Role in Risk Parity and Expectations

 • Active vs. Passive – what are the Advantages and Disadvantages of Each? 

 • Leverage and Illiquidity Do Not Mix – any Approaches to Avoid this Combination?

 • What Progress have we seen towards Adopting an Appropriate Benchmark?  
Any Implementable Indexes?

 • Thoughts on Measuring Expected Tail Loss Rather Than Volatility for Tail Risk Parity?  
Can it be More Effective?

 • How do Investors Bucket the Risk Parity Strategy within the Asset Allocation Framework?

 • How should Investors think about Differences in Forecasting Volatility when Selecting a Manager?

  12:25 PM – LUNCH

1:35 PM – UNCONSTRAINED FIXED INCOME

 • Assessing the Current Environment – where we are in the Cycle for Rates and Credit?

 • Why might a Plan Sponsor want to consider Unconstrained Funds as Opposed To using a Collection of 
Fixed Income Funds that focus on Specific Strategies such as Core, Investment Grade, High Yield, Etc?

 • With the Proliferation of Products which are Diverse, what is the Return Objective?

 • What are your Best Ideas/Opportunities in today’s Bond Market?

 • How do you Approach Portfolio Construction with the Need for Increased Disaggregation of Alpha 
Sources?

 • Where do you see the Greatest Risks and what might be the Trigger Points that Enhance that Potential?

 • How do you Benchmark and Define Success for Unconstrained Fixed Income Strategies?

 • With Non-Linearity of Risk Correlations and Volatility Not Being Stable through time, how are you 
Taking Advantage of Current Market Dislocations?



10 > > Contents

 • How Important is Liquidity Management? Should Investors think about Transparency of Positioning in 
Unconstrained Fixed Income?

 • What are the Implications of Reduced Liquidity? Have you Increased your Use of Bond ETFs to offer 
Enhanced Liquidity? If so, what were some Other Reasons for this Decision?

 • Using Structured Products, Swaps and Derivatives to Create Alpha and Hedge Volatility

 • What are your Expectations and Outlook for Corporate Debt? Do you see a Disaster in the Making with 
the Huge Growth of BBB Bonds and the Inverted Yield Curve?

 • Do you view Bank Loans as a Hedge in Rising Rate Environment?

 • How will Trump’s GSE Reform Impact the MBS Market?

 • Understanding how to Select Managers – Multi-Sector, Multi-Region, Multi-Currency Skill Set or Duration 
Range Targets?

2:20 PM – FIXED INCOME FACTOR INVESTING

 • With Active Fixed Income Managers Beating the Index by taking on More Credit Risk (Highly Correlated 
to Equities), how can Factors in Fixed Income (Value, Momentum, Carry, Defensive), offer hope for 
Outperformance that’s Uncorrelated to Equity Markets?

 • Explain your Systematic Process for your Multi-Factor Model and how it’s a Credit Diversifier

 • What are the Factors and Features that help you to Target the Precise Outcomes you need?

 • Why Factor Investing/Factor ETFs Over Passive Fixed Income ETFs? What are the Advantages? 
Disadvantages?

 • Is it Possible to Obtain Stable Alpha Without taking Additional Risk?

 • If you are Identifying Hidden Risks in a Bond Portfolio such as Unintended Overweights in Interest Rate or 
Credit Risk, what are the Other Strategic Allocations for True Drivers of Returns?

 • How does the Cost Compare?

 • What are the Biggest Challenges to Widespread Factor Adoption in Debt Markets?

 • What should you be Looking for in a Manager?

  2:50 PM – REFRESHMENT BREAK

3:20 PM – CLIMATE CHANGE IMPACT, RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES IN THE INVESTMENT PROCESS

(A) MANAGING CLIMATE RISK

 • What are the Catastrophic Consequences of a Global Temperature Rise of 2 Degrees Celsius, (3.6 
Degrees Fahrenheit) and how do we Create a Sense of Urgency to Address this Major World Problem? 

 • How will Climate Change Affect Developed and Emerging Markets Differently?

 • What are some Examples of Climate-Related Risks Across Asset Classes?

 • Understanding the Impacts of Climate Change on Real Estate Investments and Lending

 • With Increasing Water-Related Risks, what will be the Credit Implications and the Impact on Credit 
Ratings?

 • What are the Options for Reducing Portfolio-Wide Exposure to Climate-Related Risks?



> > Contents 11

 • What Sources of CO2 Emissions are Investors Not Focused On?

 • How do you Hedge Climate Risk?

(B) STRATEGIES AND IMPLEMENTATION

 • Where do you see the Best Opportunities in Smart Cities, Green Buildings, Decarbonizing Technologies, 
Electric Vehicles, Water, Renewable Energy, Battery Storage, and other Appealing Sectors?

 • What are the Various Approaches and Models to Narrowing the Financing Gap for Investing in these 
Sector Opportunities? 

 • How do you Assess the Opportunities in Public-Private Partnerships?

 • What’s Behind the Rise in Green Bond Issuance and what is the Growth Potential? Is China, Europe, U.S. 
or Other Region Most Attractive for this Green Investment?

 • Do we have Early Results of the Performance of a Low Carbon Stock Program Versus a Broader Market 
Segment on a Long-Term Basis?

(C) GOVERNANCE AND FIDUCIARY DUTY

 • Push for Greater Transparency - what are some Questions you should be asking your Investment 
Managers about their Climate Risk Assessment during the Investment Process?

 • What are some Examples of Different Climate-Related Metrics that are available?

 • FSB Taskforce on Climate-Related Financial Disclosure, (TCFD) – will this be the Industry Standard for 
Climate-Related Financial Reporting?

 • Are Board Processes in place to Assess the Risks and Opportunities? 

 • How can Boards Incorporate Climate Change into Investment Beliefs and Policies?

4:05 PM – CYBERSECURITY

 • What are the Greatest Cybersecurity Threats and Challenges Organizations are currently facing? 
Specific Risk Areas?

 • Overview of Types of Cybersecurity Attacks – Phishing, Botnet Hackers, Wire Transfer Fraud, Vendor 
Payment Fraud, Compromised Business E-mails, Attempts to Steal Healthcare Information, etc. Where 
will Future Attacks come from?

 • What is an Interesting or Extreme Cyber Attack Example you’ve come across for a Pension Plan? An 
Investment Manager?

 • Developing a Cybersecurity Risk Management Strategy – what are the Critical Components?

 • How should you approach Staff Education about Cybersecurity Risk and Best Practices?

 • Should the Board Hire a Third Party to Perform an Independent Analysis?

 • As a Pension Plan, Endowment, Foundation or Family Office LP, what Cybersecurity Questions should 
you ask in your Due Diligence of your Investment Managers?

 • Will it become Common for Pension Plans’ Responsibility to start at the Request for Proposal (RFP) 
Stage by providing Details for Data Protection and Privacy Provisions?

 • Importance of a PE Firm’s Approach to Cybersecurity Enterprise Risk for M&A

 • What Precautions can you take to Avoid Phishing and who within the Organization is being Targeted? 
How Often can your PE Portfolio Companies be Phished?

 • Should Plan Sponsors have Cybersecurity Insurance Coverage? What is typically Covered in a Policy?



12 > > Contents

4:20 PM – IMPACT INVESTING

 • How do you Define Impact at your Organization?

 • The Role of UN’s Sustainable Development Goals in Impact Investing Strategy

 • Will Investors Abandon this Space during the Next Recession? When and How will it Become 
Mainstream?

 • What are some Attractive Opportunities for Impact Investing in Emerging Markets? Developed Markets?

 • What are the Latest Trends in Impact Investment Globally?

 • Investing in Technology for Social Impact

 • What are the Top Challenges for Investors?

 • What are the Biggest Areas Risks of Impact Investing Projects?

 • Why is Private Equity Particularly Well-Suited for Impact Investing?

 • What are some of the Socially Impact Bonds or Municipal Impact Bonds you’ve Invested in?

 • Do you find it Difficult to Measure the Impact of Public Market Investments? How do you Measure 
Impact in the Bond Market?

 • How are Big Data and Advanced Analytics used as Tools to Improve the Measurement of Impact?

 • How should Impact Investors think about Reporting? Have you Embraced the Need for Disclosure with 
Sustainability Accounting Standards Board, (SASB)?

 • What Evidence have we seen that Impact Investments will Reap Healthy Returns?

 • What should you look for in Public/Private Impact Managers?

 • Do Larger Firms have an Advantage in this Space?

 4:50 PM – COCKTAIL RECEPTION

6:05 PM – COCKTAIL RECEPTION CONCLUDES



> > Contents 13

 7:00 AM – BREAKFAST

8:00 AM – EMERGING MARKETS

 • Macro Environment and Recent Developments, (Central Banks, Dollar, Commodity Prices, etc.)—how 
does that affect your Investments?

 • As the Growth Advantage in EM begins to Fade, what should you be looking for to Focus on Economic 
Progress and Development?

 • What Effect do the Tariffs have on your Outlook for China and other Emerging Markets? Any Markets 
that are More Insulated?

 • How Concerned are you about China’s Debt Problem? Is a Hard Landing Likely or Unlikely?

 • What would be the Effects on Emerging Markets if we see a Recession in the U.S.? Instability in the 
Eurozone? Slowdown in China?

 • How do Valuations look Relative to Risk in Different Regions?

 • What are the Key LP Concerns and Challenges in Particular Regions?

 • Which Country do you see Favorable Demographic Trends such as a Growing Middle Class, 
Urbanization, Promising Consumer Buying Behavior and Economic/Fiscal Reforms?

 • Are there Any EM Countries to Avoid with High Debt, Growing Inflation or a Currency Crisis?

 • Which Markets in Frontier Countries can you Profit from Strong Growth and Access a Lower Correlation? 
What are the Complexities of Investing in these Frontier Markets?

 • Given the Current Environment, will Emerging Markets Outperform Developed Markets? What are your 
Returns Expectations for Particular Regions?

 • What can be done to Mitigate Currency Risks?

 • The Case for Emerging Markets Corporate Debt

 • What Metrics are you using to Determine Relative Value in Sovereign Bonds?

 • Public vs. Private Emerging Markets – Benefits and Drawbacks of each

 • Active vs. Passive Debate

 • What is an Appropriate Long-Term Allocation to Emerging Markets? What should that Allocation look 
like, (Public Equity, Fixed Income, Private Equity, Frontier Markets, Alternatives, etc.)?

 • Choosing an Emerging Markets Fund or Manager – should you be Investing by Region, Country or 
Sector?

8:40 AM – CURRENCY RISK – TO HEDGE OR NOT TO HEDGE?

 • What are the Factors Driving Currencies Today?

 • What is the Impact of China Devaluing the Yuan?

 • What is the Annual Impact on Returns for a Portfolio that is Hedged vs. Unhedged? Long Term Impact?

WEDNESDAY,  APRIL 15TH — Westin St. Francis Hotel, San Francisco



14 > > Contents

 • What has Changed that Enables One’s Ability to Manage Hedging and Reduce Risk for both Developed 
Markets and Emerging Markets?

 • How does Dynamic Hedging Reduce Risk and Capture some of the Return?

 • How do Active Currency Overlay Strategies take the Currency Exposures Inherent in International 
Investments and Manage them Separately?

 • Benefits of Extracting Alpha from Currency Markets – Uncorrelated Alpha and Accessed Without the 
Need for Funding

 • Is there an Optimum Currency Hedge Ratio for a Plan?

 • What are the most Common Reasons Asset Owners give for Not Actively Managing Currency? Are these 
Reasons Valid or Not?

 • Hedging Costs – how should this factor into your Decision?

8:55 AM – MULTI-ASSET INVESTING

 • What are the Differences Between Multi-Asset Funds and Hedge Funds? What are the Advantages and 
Disadvantages of Choosing Multi-Asset Funds over Hedge Funds?

 • How can a Multi-Asset Approach help you Manage Drawdown Risk? What Strategies should be used 
based on Experience from the Financial Crisis?

 • Do you believe Downside Protection with Multi-Asset Strategies are as Effective as Managers Claim?

 • How do you Devise Effective Asset Allocation Strategies? What Stress Scenarios do you  
Consider?

 • Do Most Multi-Asset Portfolios need to be Restructured to Thrive in Today’s Environment?  
If so, how?

 • How can Factor Analysis be used to Mitigate Risk and Improve Multi-Asset Portfolios?

 • How Worrisome is the Reliance on Stable Correlation Relationships with No Certainty those 
Relationships will Persist?

 • Is Excessive Leverage a Concern?

 • How do you go about the Right Balance of Public and Private Equity when building the best Multi-Asset 
Portfolio for you?

 • How have Returns been and how do you Measure Performance?

 • How do Multi-Asset Managers Differentiate Themselves in this Crowded Field?

 9:25 AM – ALTERNATIVE RISK PREMIA

 • Understanding Alternative Risk Premia – how does it Differ from Smart Beta? From Alpha? 

 • Risk Premia to Choose From – Momentum, Value, Carry, Other 

 • How can a Multiple Market Neutral Alternative Risk Premia Combined in a Single Portfolio show Low or 
No Correlation to a 60/40 or Hedge Fund Portfolio?

 • Explain the Potential Benefits – Diversification, Liquid, Transparent, Efficient, Systematic Exposure

 • Lower Fees – what are the Typical Fees Investors can Expect?

 • What are the Different Ways you can Use and Implement Alternative Risk Premia?

 • What are the Biggest Risks?



> > Contents 15

 • Do you Worry about the Fallout if Correlations Change over Time?

 • How Concerning is Crowding and do you see it as a having a Negative Impact on  
Performance?

 • How should Investors determine which Alternative Risk Premia Strategies Best Meet their  
Objectives?

 • How should you Approach Manager Selection?

 • With these Funds being Relatively New, how Battle-Tested are they? What are the Early Signs of 
Performance during the Shorter-Term Market Corrections we’ve seen?

  10:00 AM – REFRESHMENT BREAK

10:30 AM – HEDGE FUNDS

(A) STATE OF THE INDUSTRY AND PORTFOLIO CONSTRUCTION OPTIONS

 • With Difficult Investment Conditions Pushing Many Seasoned Firms and Legendary Investors Out of the 
Business, does this mean some Strategies have Stopped Working? What do you see as the Reasons or 
Forces at Play?

 • How do you Approach the Current Industry Dynamics? How is your Firm Evolving and Staying 
Competitive?

 • If there was a Hedge Fund Strategy you would Invest in over the next Few Years, which one would it be 
and why? Which Strategies will have the Best Performance? Any Strategies to Avoid?

 • What sort of Downside Protection, Drawdown or Return Range do you expect we’ll see from each of the 
Different Hedge Fund Strategies during the Next Market Downturn?

 • Are there any Overcrowded Trades that should be Avoided when this Cycle Turns? 

 • Any Trades you like when the Next Downturn Bottoms? Any Specific Sector that will Emerge as a 
Leader?

 • Would you Invest in Hedge Funds Over Multi-Asset Strategy Funds for the Next Downturn and if so, 
why?

 • What does Crisis Risk Offset mean? Which Low Correlated Strategies do you find Most Attractive?

 • What is the Future of Long-Short Equity Hedge Funds and is the Struggle Here to Stay? With Return 
Dispersion Remaining High among Long-Shot Equity Hedge Funds, what Differentiates Managers that 
have been able to Outperform? 

 • What is the Future of Quantitative Funds as far as Performance goes? Does it Concern you that many 
Historical Stock Market Tendencies have Backfired and what might be the Reason Why?

 • Do you find Opportunities within the Global Macro Space Attractive and if so, why?

 • Managed Futures – Diversification and Performance during Periods of Market Stress or Crisis Events. 
How much can it Decrease the Depth of Portfolio Drawdowns and Volatility?

 • What is the Future of the Fund of Funds Space? Where will Fees be? What will it take to Stay 
Competitive?

 • Do Smaller Hedge Funds Outperform?  If so, why? How do Emerging Managers Differentiate Themselves 
in the Quest for Institutional Capital?

 • Liquid Hedge Fund Products such as UCITS, 40 Act and Hedge Fund Replication – are they a Viable 
Alternative and Under what Circumstances? How has their Performance and the Lower Fees Fared 
Relative to Hedge Funds?



16 > > Contents

 (B) IMPLEMENTATION CONCERNS

 • As an LP, how do you think about the Role of Hedge Funds in your Portfolio?

 • What Trends to you see developing in Liquidity Provisions for Hedge Funds? How do you  
Assess the Tradeoff Between Fees and Liquidity?

 • What is an Appropriate Fee Structure for Hedge Funds? How do you Ensure Payment for  
Alpha, Alignment of Interest and Not Overpaying for Underperformance?

 • Any Recent Trends you’ve seen for Institutions as far as Fees, Transparency, Customization, Increased 
Partnership, etc.? Will the 1 or 30 Model developed by Albourne and TRS Texas Catch On?

 • As an Investor, do you Negotiate the Frequency of Performance Fee Crystallization with your Managers 
so that it Doesn’t Lead to Hidden and Higher Costs?

 • How often should Operations Due Diligence be Reviewed/Updated?

 • What is your View on Absolute Return Co-Investments?

 • What is the Role of Separate Managed Accounts? What are the Benefits? Are they Better than 
Commingled Funds?

11:20 AM – CREDIT STRATEGIES

 • Current State of the Credit Market

 • What will be the Catalyst that will cause Credit Spreads to Widen and Defaults to Rise?

 • Where are Managers finding Pockets of Opportunity? Where is the Relative Value?

 • What Subsectors of Credit are Most Attractive given the Valuations? Any Areas you are Avoiding?

 • Do you see Investors being more willing to Trade Liquidity for Yield and should that be  
of Concern?

 • Is it possible to see a High Yield Meltdown with a Lack of Liquidity? Understanding the Corporate Debt 
Risk Factors and Strong Correlation to Equities

 • BBB Risk of a Mass Move to High Yield – how concerned should we be?

 • Do you believe ETFs pose a Systematic Risk in Market Turmoil with Exacerbated Volatility? 

 • Is Direct Lending in a Bubble and how would you Position for that?

 • What Sub-Sectors are you Favoring and Avoiding in the Middle Market Direct Lending Space?

 • How can Opportunistic Credit fit into the Direct Lending Ecosystem?

 • Outlook and Considerations for Structured – Are CLOs Safer than Pre-Crisis?

 • Can Securitized Credit Weather Market Turbulence? How has it Performed During Previous Credit 
Events? Is there a Lower Correlation to Broader Fixed Income Sectors?

 • Bank Loans Overview

 • How will the Subprime Loans in Autos Play Out?

 • Opportunities and Risks for Europe and Asia

 • How much should Plan Sponsors be Allocating to Credit? What is the Optimal Structure to a Credit 
Portfolio?

 • Should Multi-Asset Credit Strategies be a Tactical Asset Allocation with Dynamic Management for 
Pension Plans? If so, why?

 • How do we Develop Return and Risk Expectation for this Asset Class?

 • How do we Benchmark Performance?



> > Contents 17

12:05 PM – DISTRESSED INVESTING – OPPORTUNISTIC AND SPECIAL SITUATIONS

 • How are you Positioning your Portfolio relative to where we are in the Credit Cycle? Any Trends you’re 
seeing?

 • What are your Expectations for Default Rates going forward?

 • Which Sectors, Strategies and Geographies will create the Best Opportunities? Any Areas that should 
be Avoided?

 • Will the Froth in Direct Lending provide a Distressed Opportunity?

 • How Big a Role do you Expect Corporate Debt to Play and the Huge Growth of BBB-Rated Bonds?

 • How Concerning is the Debt Piled up by Corporations for their Share Buybacks?

 • Will the Prevalent Covenant-Lite Deals create Problems during the Next Cycle?

 • What are the Opportunities and Risks in Europe? Any Countries, Sectors or Types of Deals that Stand 
Out?

 • What is the Size and Scope of the Issues facing the European Banking Sector?

 • Do you see Opportunities in Asia or Elsewhere Globally?

 • What is your View on Leverage, (Fund-Level, BDC Changes, Asset-Level, Securitization Market)?

 • Do you worry about a Liquidity Problem in ETFs and other Structured Credit Vehicles if there is Credit 
Event?

 • How will the Different Implementation Approaches affect Expected Returns? Control vs. Non-Control? 
Private vs. Public?

 • What are the Pros and Cons of the Various Structures, (Hedge Fund Side Pockets, Evergreen Structures, 
Contingent Funds, Traditional Drawdown Structures)?

 • Where are LPs Spending the Bulk of their Time during Due Diligence? 

 • What Skill Sets/Characteristics should Pension Plans look for in a Distressed Manager? What Questions 
should LPs Ask?

  12:40 PM – LUNCH

1:45 PM – REAL ESTATE

 • How Significant a Drop in Pricing and Returns are you expecting? Does it depend on Sector and 
Location?

 • What Strategies do you see as the Biggest Risks and the Biggest Rewards/Relative Value?

 • Are there Resilient Sectors?

 • What Niche Property Types will be Defensive in a Downturn?

 • Are you Making Pivots or Tilts to Take Advantage of Macro Trends? Socio/Demographic Trends such as 
the Aging Population?

 • How will Real Estate Debt Perform in the Next Recession?

 • How do you View the Risk Profile of Core vs. Non-Core? Returns Expectations?

 • What is the Biggest Threat to Commercial in the next few years for this Fully Priced Market?

 • Where are the Most Crowded Trades?



18 > > Contents

 • Asia and European Real Estate Outlook – Opportunities and Investment Trends

 • What Real Estate Technology Trends/Disruption are you Watching Most Closely?

 • Will Co-Investments become more Common?

 • Current State of the Real Estate Secondary Market

 • Do you like REITS as a More Liquid form of Real Estate? If so, any Region or Property Type that you like 
for REITS?

2:30 PM – INFRASTRUCTURE

 • State of the Infrastructure Markets

 • With Low Interest Rates, Abundant Capital Flowing and High Valuations, is there Enough  
Supply to Meet Capital Demand?

 • If Interest Rates Rise in the coming years, what would be the Implications for Valuations and Liquidity 
Options for Existing Infrastructure Assets?

 • Is Leverage a Concern?

 • If the S&P were to enter a Multi-Year Correction (let’s say 30%), how much of a Decline can we 
Expect from Infrastructure Portfolios? What Impact would this Type of Portfolio Drawdown have on 
Infrastructure Allocations? What Opportunities would this would provide Investors?

 • As an LP, what are your Program Objectives, (Defensive, Low Correlation, Inflation Protection, Yield, 
etc)?

 • Which Sectors are Most Attractive and why?

 • Which Geographies are Most Appealing? Developed or Emerging Economies?

 • What are the Biggest Challenges/Risks facing Infrastructure Investors today?

 • Listed vs. Unlisted – which do you Favor in a Volatile Market for Downside Protection?  
Do Rising Interest Rates Favor Either?

 • Are you seeing Growth in Opportunities for Public-Private Partnerships across the U.S.?

 • How have GPs Adopted ESG Principals and what are the Remaining Challenges? How do you Approach 
ESG as an Energy Investor?

 • What are your Views on the Future Potential for Technology to Disrupt Infrastructure and what can 
Investors do to Avoid or Take Advantage of it?

 • Thoughts on Battery Storage for Renewables?

 • How have Tax Credits of Renewables Impacted the Industry over the Past Decade and how will the 
Phase-out of Subsidies affect the Industry?

 • What Sectors within Renewables or Alternative Forms of Energy do you find Attractive?  
Will the Best Opportunities be in the U.S. or Emerging Markets?

 • What are the Advantages and Challenges for LPs to Invest in infrastructure through Fund Commitments 
vs. Investing Directly as a Co-Investor or Deal Leader like many of the Large Plans?

 • What are the Similarities and Differences Between Infrastructure Assets and Private Equity Investments 
with the Blurring of Definitions over the past few years?

  3:05 PM – REFRESHMENT BREAK



> > Contents 19

3:30 PM – PRIVATE EQUITY

 • When it comes to the Concerns of Late Cycle, Dry Powder, Cheap and Plentiful Leverage and High 
Multiples, what should Investors be Focused On over the Next few Years to Successfully Navigate the 
Environment?

 • Should LPs expect Lower Returns Going Forward? Will Private Equity Outperform Public Markets?

 • With the Growing Size of the PE Market, do you believe the Industry can put the Excess Dry Power 
Capital to Work Responsibly?

 • Where are your Most Optimistic Returns Going Forward as far as Sector, Geography or Niche Strategy? 
What’s your Biggest Worry?

 • What Lower or Non-Correlation Investments Stand Out that are Independent of the Economy and can 
Withstand a Multi-Year Market Downturn?

 • Are you Seeking Investments with a Subscription Model for Greater Visibility of Revenues and Less 
Volatility? If so, what Recurring Revenue Metrics do you look for?

 • Does it Concern you that Subscription Lines of Credit have Distorted IRR? Will we Trend  
towards LPs Dictating the Format and Usage of Subscription Lines?

 • What are your Views on GP-Led Restructurings? What are the Pitfalls that LPs need to be Aware of?

 • What are your Views on Fund to Fund Sales?

 • How have Trade Tensions with China Impacted Existing Portfolio Companies and your Investment Decision-
Making? How are you preparing for a Scenario Where Tensions and Tariffs Persist?   

 • Given the all the Concerns, how are you Positioning your Portfolio within Buyouts? What do the Long 
Duration Vehicles Mean for Investors?

 • What are the Biggest Risks to be aware of for Investing in the Ultra-Competitive Growth Equity Space?

 • How are you playing the Co-Investment Frenzy? What will happen to Co-Investments in a Down Market?

 • Venture Capital Winners – Limited Access to the Top Few VCs that Generate the Bulk of the Industry’s 
Returns? What’s the Best Approach to this Challenge?

 • Issues, Outlook and Opportunities for European PE

 • How do you think about ESG Issues and Integration when making Individual Investment  
Decisions and as a Firm? 

 • From an LP Perspective, what does not work in Fundraising? What does it take to Stand Out?

4:15 PM – CIO ROUNDTABLE

(A) RISKS, ALLOCATIONS AND MACRO-BASED DECISIONS

 • In this Fully-Valued Environment, how are you Balancing the Risk of a Large Drawdown with your Return 
Goals? Has it Impacted your Asset Allocation?

 • Which De-Risking Strategies or Investments with a Low/Non-Correlation have you Allocated to?

 • What Hedge Fund Strategies are you Investing in? Will those Strategies provide a Cushion for the next 
Market Downturn? How do you use them to Reduce Risk?

 • What are your thoughts on Passive Equity Investing and its Performance vs. Active for the Next Major 
Downturn? Any Market Liquidity Concerns? Where are you using Passive and Active Management and 
why? 



20 > > Contents

 • How are you Viewing Emerging Markets Broadly and what do you feel is the proper EM Allocation? Any 
Geographic Regions, Countries or Sectors that Interest You?

 • Have you made Long-Term Cash Flow Investments through Partnerships and Co-Investment Structures?

 (B) ALIGNMENT OF INTERESTS

 • What Changes or Trends have you noticed in Fee Structures/Terms and your Bargaining Power? Has your 
Fund Size been an Advantage or Disadvantage?

 • Do You and Your Investment Departments have the Authority to be a Dynamic, Tactical and Active 
Investor in Response to Extreme Economic Conditions?

 • Are you able to Leverage your Portfolio to Generate Liquidity to Take Advantage of a Market Dislocation 
in an Economic Downturn?

 • How can you Overcome Governance Hurdles so that you can Effectively Partner with Outside Providers, 
bring a Portion of the Investment Management In-House and provide Incentive-Based Compensation?

 • Have you Taken Steps to Address Diversity within your Investment Programs or your Organization’s 
Staff?

 • Do you have Processes or Policies in place to Assess the Risks of Climate Change?

 • Have you Addressed Cybersecurity Protection for your Plan? How have you Educated the Staff about 
the Risks and Taken Steps for Protection with Investment Managers?

 • Any Important Lessons Learned that you can Share from your Individual Plan Experiences?

 • What Keeps You Up at Night?

5:05 PM – CONFERENCE CONCLUDES

5:05 PM – WRISTBANDS FOR NETWORKING EVENT HANDED OUT IN THE CONFERENCE ROOM

Attendees must be present to attend event

   5:45 PM – 8:45 PM WINE TASTING AND DINNER NETWORKING EVENT

Hosted by Pension Bridge – Join our group at for a wine tasting and dinner at the Press Club, located 
just a few blocks from Westin St. Francis. Meet your industry peers in great setting as California Wine 
Country comes to the heart of the city. Experience the finest winemakers with new and rare vintages. 
We’ll have a fun wine tasting reception, followed by a tasteful dinner with the highest quality organic 
ingredients. Pension Bridge will utilize the 9000 square feet of the award winning “Best Restaurant 
Design” event space for networking for our high quality conference group.



21

TO REGISTER OR RECEIVE MORE INFORMATION ABOUT THE 2020 PENSION BRIDGE ANNUAL:

BOCA RATON OFFICE CONTACT 
Brett Semel

(561) 455-2729

bsemel@pensionbridge.com 

NEW YORK OFFICE CONTACT
Andrew Blake

(516) 818-7989

ablake@pensionbridge.com

ABOUT PENSION BRIDGE  

We are an innovative company offering educational conferences of the highest quality.  Our 
objective is to provide an education to the institutional investment community while providing an 
impressive speaker faculty in a setting that is conducive to great networking.  We help institutional 
money managers connect with Pension Funds and Consultants across the country in a fun, 
enjoyable atmosphere. Our events can act as a stepping stone to a successful financial relationship 
or simply help build the investment education. 
 
Our management team’s unique skills, operating experience, and industry relationships help to 
make our events the main attraction in the industry. We pride ourselves on being there to cater to 
our clients’ wants and needs. Our ratio of plan sponsor to investment manager allows our events to 
be the most desirable and accommodating in the conference industry. Pension Bridge is known for 
its strength, stability, relationships and operational excellence.

REGISTRATION

Please visit www.pensionbridge.com for additional details.  Registration is not available online.


	agenda 12.11.2019
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Item 18



